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PERFORMANCE REPORT 

The NHS continues to face extreme levels of financial challenge, as acknowledged in the 
outlining of the Autumn Budget in November 2017 where although it was announced that 
additional funds would be provided to the NHS, it is still not enough to close the gap between 
demand and finance. 
 
In addition to the financial challenges, there are significant workforce shortages in many areas 
of health, across all specialties and disciplines. Delivering this amount of efficiency savings 
coupled with the workforce crisis in some sectors, and the rise in demand for urgent care 
services, has required an extraordinary level of change and improvement for the NHS during 
2017/18. NHS St Helens Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is no exception to this pressure 
and has experienced the enormity of this challenge. 
 
The challenges faced by the CCG as a result are detailed within the Annual Report but can be 
summarised as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

THE CHALLENGE THE RESPONSE 
The CCG could not continue to fund the 
current level of demand for health services in 
the Borough, in particular urgent care, mental 
health placements and continuing healthcare, 
placing the CCG under significant financial 
pressure. During the year we have faced a £5 
million gap arising from forecasted costs 
exceeding funding for this year. 
 
 
The legal directions imposed in 2016/17 have 
not been lifted. The CCG had to deliver against 
the second year of the Recovery and 
Improvement Plan submitted in 2016/17 to 
NHS England (NHSE). The CCG have 
continued to have recovery meetings with 
NHSE. 

Continued formal processes to monitor and deliver 
the improvement and recovery plan, which has 
been overseen by the Executive Team and 
Governing Body. 
  
The CCG has met its financial control total in year. 
Whilst the CCG remains in deficit, this was planned 
for from the beginning of the year and agreed with 
NHSE as part of the CCGs financial control total. 
 
The CCG has further developed its leadership and 
has developed the St Helens Cares Model 
throughout the year. This has resulted in the CCG 
improving its assurance rating with NHSE from 
‘Inadequate’ to ‘Requires Improvement’. The CCG 
has also been able to deliver its required financial 
control total in 2017/18.  
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Despite this turbulent and challenging time the CCG has managed to oversee and ensure 
delivery of consistently safe and high quality health services for the people of St Helens. 
Evidence of this is presented in this Annual Report 
 
Key achievements for the CCG this year include: 
 

 Rated good by NHSE for dementia care within the Improvement and Assessment 
Framework (IAF) 

 Rated good by NHSE for diabetes care within the IAF 

WORKFORCE 

THE CHALLENGE THE RESPONSE 
St Helens is not immune to the national 
workforce problems faced by the NHS, 
specifically the difficulty in recruiting and 
retaining staff across the health and care 
system including Primary Care, Community 
Care and Secondary Care providers.  
 

Working with our local partners and local authority to 
raise the profile of St Helens as an attractive place to 
both live and work through proactive PR and 
redeveloped branding.  
 
Investment into national and international GP 
recruitment campaigns working with NHSE and the 
British Medical Journal (BMJ). 
 
Working with local schools and colleges to promote 
health service careers across all disciplines 
 
Working with Local Universities to develop careers in 
healthcare programmes.  Supporting the bid to 
achieve Medical School status for Edge Hill 
University. 

URGENT CARE 

THE CHALLENGE THE RESPONSE 
The area of St Helens, much like other areas 
across the country have seen unprecedented 
demand for urgent care services in 2017/18, 
not only during the winter period but 
continuing into the spring.  
 
Although our local Provider trust is one of the 
best performing in the area with regards to 
the 4 hour wait target, we still need to work 
towards improving the 4 hour wait 
performance.  

It is a key focus across partnership organisations 
that delayed transfers of care are within agreed 
numbers, and that each partner is able to support 
reductions and action initiatives that will positively 
affect the number of patients who are delayed on a 
ward. There is an A&E delivery board at mid Mersey 
level, and the CCG is proactively working with the 
delivery board through an Operational Group (UCOG 
Urgent Care Operations Group) - chaired by the 
CCG. This group will address patient flow issues in a 
collaborative manner across the system. Key 
partners include community nursing providers, walk- 
in centre provider, the acute trust, Knowsley and St 
Helens social care and Knowsley CCG. 
 
The CCG entered and won a bid for additional 
monies to provide primary care cover over the winter 
period. 
 
Enhanced system working with partners in Local 
Authority, Providers and Housing to provide 
solutions to demand and system pressures. 
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 Improved our  rating in respect of the  CCG 
IAF  for 2016/17 from ‘Inadequate’ to ‘Requires Improvement’ 

 CCG performance recognised by NHSE as being at or above the level required for the 
majority of NHS constitutional standards (excepting AED 4 hour access standard) 

 Made significant progress in implementing our Improvement Plan delivering £13.5m in 
Quality Innovation Performance and Productivity (QIPP) savings in 2017/18 

 Through proactive medicines management work which included reduced prescribing 
waste through schemes to reduce third party ordering of pharmaceuticals and 
medicines to treat minor ailments saving £3.7m in 2017/18 

 NHSE has recognised the CCGs efforts to establish stronger leadership, more rapid 
decision making and greater grip on finance, activity and performance through its 
assurance process 

 Rates of infection across our commissioned services remain good in respect of C- 
Difficile 

 Through our Commissioning for Value/Rightcare approach successfully reduced the 
number of endoscopies carried out by implementing a new pathway 

 The CCG has consistently achieved above the 92% standard for referral to treatment 
time for our patients who require a secondary care consultant led intervention 

 Worked proactively with the Local Authority and our main Acute provider to reduce 
delayed transfers of care (DTOC) for St Helens patients 

 Introduced a successful pilot muscular skeletal scheme for patients experiencing hip 
and knee problems  - this has resulted in reduced costs in secondary care and improved 
patient experience 

 Young people’s mental health services – working with partners to implement THRIVE 

model which was commended by CQC 

 Member practices perform well in Quality Outcomes Framework (QOF) 

 Maintained core NHS constitutional targets 

 Continue to lead work to reduce falls and pressure ulcers in the borough 

 Signed a contract to develop a shared care record for the people of St Helens which will 
be rolled out throughout 2018/19 

 
We will start 2018/19 with a financial control total of “break even”. To achieve this will require 
£14.7m in savings which will be very challenging. The CCG will require another robust 
recovery plan addressing this and schemes will be put in place aimed at bringing cost and 
demand for health services in line with our allocated budget, ensuring that the CCG 
commission services that represent the best value for money for the people of St Helens. 
Particular areas of focus for 2018/19 include: 
 

 Urgent care – we will be prioritising work to reduce attendance at Accident and 
Emergency and to reduce emergency admissions 

 Primary Care- we will be working to implement the GP Forward View locally and in 
particular will focus on schemes to address workforce shortages 

 Out of Hospital Care – we will continue to develop and implement new models of care in 
line with the St Helens Cares model and integrated working.  

 Prevention – in line with Cheshire and Merseyside plans we will focus prevention work 
on improving hypertension diagnosis and management, reducing alcohol related ill 
health, reducing Type 2 Diabetes prevalence and improving Antimicrobial Resistance 
(appropriate use of antibiotics). 
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During 2017/18, the CCG has maintained the tenacity, determination and resilience required to 
meet the financial challenges. I am confident that we will continue with this in 2018/19 and 
through integration will be able to make the necessary transformational changes to ensure the 
local community receives the Right Care at the Right Time and in the Right Place. 
 
Lastly, I would like to thank all the staff at the CCG for their continued hard work, dedication 
and support and I would like to thank all key partners and the GP member practices for their 
support and on-going input during this year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Professor Sarah O’Brien 
Clinical Accountable Officer 
25th May 2018  
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Performance Overview 
 
The CCG is responsible for planning and delivering healthcare to a registered population of 
more than 197,000 people in St Helens. It also commissions hospital services on behalf of the 
local community and has delegated responsibility from NHSE to commission and contract for 
the provision of primary care including GP Practice Services.  
 
We are one of more than 200 CCGs around the UK whose collective challenge is meeting the 
needs of a population growing in size, age and living with increasingly complex health 
conditions. Our annual budget of circa £324.9 million (excluding running cost allowance) has 
been allocated to us to spend on health care.  
 
The 34 GP practices in St Helens form our membership and are represented via a GP 
Members Council that is a formal subcommittee of our Governing Body and ensures a clinical 
voice in relation to our commissioning strategies and plans holding our Governing Body to 
account (refer to Members Report page 58). 
 
Achieving our vision and values  
Through our close partnership working with St Helens People’s Board and the emergence of 
local care system St Helens Cares we have a joint vision for the borough; 
 
“Improving People’s lives in St Helens together, by tackling the challenge of cost and demand”  
 
We work in partnership to ensure that the community of St Helens receives high quality, 
modern, sustainable, needs-led and cost effective care within the financial budgets available 
and ensure that our plans fully reflect the joint priorities in the borough, through the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy, underpinned by the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment with oversight at 
the “People’s Board” (Joint Health and Wellbeing Board and Community Safety Partnership).  
 
This will result in our community receiving the right care, in the right setting by the most 
appropriately skilled clinician, which will improve the quality of care received and reduce 
dependency on emergency and hospital services. The CCG will promote good governance and 
proper stewardship of public resources in pursuance of its goals and in meeting its statutory 
duties.  
 
During 2017/18 the CCG developed a revised set of values which it is working to embed 
across the organisation; 
 

 Integrity – we will be honest and transparent when making difficult decisions, always 
aim to do the right thing by the people in St Helens and treat everyone fairly 

 Compassion and respect – we will show care and compassion to all people, find time 
for our staff, patients and the public without waiting to be asked, value every patient 
and member of staff 

 Working together – we will aim for better connected health and social care, work 
differently to improve integration, involve our staff and the people of St Helens, work 
collaboratively across teams and organisations, work together to constantly improve 
health and social care in St Helens 
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 Making a difference every day – we will improve the lives of people in St Helens, learn 
from everything that we do, constantly seek to be innovative and improve, engage with 
staff and people in St Helens and use this to drive improvement 

 
Underpinning all of this we value the St Helens £ and will spend it wisely in an efficient and 
sustainable way. 
 

How we have performed 
The CCG assurance process led by NHSE is the key performance mechanism by which CCGs 
are able to demonstrate they are delivering the best possible outcomes for their patients within 
their financial allocation.  
 
The CCG Assurance Framework covers CCG delivery and performance and assessment and 
is based on continuous assurance process that aims to provide confidence to internal and 
external stakeholders, and to the wider public, that CCGs are operating effectively. For 
2016/17 the CCG was assessed overall as “requires improvement” showing an improving 
position from the previous financial year. 
 
During 2017/18, and following an initial assurance meeting with the CCG, NHSE have adopted 
a wider footprint approach to monthly assurance calls with the “Alliance” group of CCGs St 
Helens, Knowsley, Halton and Warrington. This approach allows for the identification of 
common themes and solutions in relation to local performance issues. 
 
During 2017/18 NHSE revised the IAF that it uses to assure CCG performance with a new 
framework being published by NHSE in November 2017. 
 
2017/18 Assurance Process – CCG Improvement and Assessment Framework (IAF)  
Directions inevitably and rightly bring additional scrutiny on an organisation. Assurance for 
2017/18 has been a continuous process requiring a co-ordinated approach to internal 
assurance processes. The CCGs Organisational Development (OD) Strategy and supporting 
plan are critical to addressing the issue of financial recovery. The CCG has embedded a more 
integrated approach to the assurance process ensuring that it becomes everyone’s business 
and not just an ad hoc year end desk top exercise.  
 
The key components of the IAF for 2017/18 remain largely unchanged and are: 
 

 Better Health – how is the CCG contributing towards improving the health and 
wellbeing of its population 

 Better Care – this focuses on care redesign, performance of constitutional standards 
and outcomes in key clinical areas 

 Sustainability – this section looks at how the CCG is remaining in financial balance 
and securing good value 

 Leadership – this domain assesses the quality of CCG leadership, plans, partnership 
working and its governance arrangements 
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Figure 1 below illustrates the key components of 
the IAF for 2017/18  
 

 
 
In addition to the 4 domains illustrated above the IAF process also incorporates assessment in 
6 key clinical areas as follows: 
 

 Mental Health 

 Dementia 

 Learning Disabilities 

 Cancer 

 Diabetes 

 Maternity 
 
The CCG has had a meeting with NHSE reflecting on Quarter 1 performance followed by a 
series of monthly teleconferences on a wider “Alliance” CCG footprint (St Helens, Knowsley, 
Halton and Warrington) focussing on the assurance components on an exception basis. The 
CCG has submitted information to NHSE in March 2018 to self-assess against the Leadership 
domain. The final outcome of the overall IAF assurance process is subject to both regional and 
national moderation and will not be known until the summer of 2018. 
 
In addition, the NHS Constitution sets out expected rights and pledges and the NHSE 
assurance process includes an assessment of the CCG against key thresholds when 
assessing performance. The tables included within the performance analysis show key 
performance measures and CCG delivery against constitutional standards as of Quarter 4 
2017/18, due to the timing of production of the annual report and for consistency with the year-
end assurance process the 2016/17 comparative data is based on January 2018 data 
predominantly. Further information about NHS St Helens CCG and how we are performing  
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against the IAF framework can also be found at https://www.nhs.uk/service-
search/performance/search.  
 

Key Areas of Development in 2017/18 
The following paragraphs outline the key areas of development for The CCG during 2017/18.  
 
Working together across the borough 
2017/18 has seen the accelerated pace and scale of the development of St Helens Cares as a 
working and live model. Seen as a forerunner in developed place based care, achieving 
savings through integration and producing improved patient experiences, St Helens Cares truly 
demonstrates how working across systems and building meaningful and innovative 
partnerships can benefit the entire health and social care system. Looking forward to 2018/19, 
the ability to continue with the pace and scale of improvement and even further integration with 
partners will be key to continuing the success of St Helens Cares.  
 
So far, key achievements of St Helens Cares include; 
 

 Development of the Shared Care Record 

 The introduction of the new frailty team, which was developed as a result of a review of 
community nursing structures, providing additional nursing staff and leadership 

 Developed a clinical model in line with integrated working across the borough 

 The new ‘front door’ system brings a cross section of professionals together to deliver 
more joined up care to the community and health professionals of St Helens 

 
System Leadership 
The confidence in system leadership at The CCG has grown significantly over the past 12 
months, demonstrated not only by the appointment of Professor Sarah O’Brien in the 
Integrated role within People’s Services, but also through the CCGs 360o stakeholder survey, 
which asks a number of key stakeholders including GPs, Joint Health and Wellbeing Board, 
Healthwatch and Voluntary/Patient Groups, NHS Providers, Other CCG’s and the Local 
Authority, about the CCGs performance over the year. The results of the survey in 2017/18 
were improved across all categories, including; confidence in leadership, understanding and 
engagement with the leadership team and understanding of the vision and direction of 
healthcare in the borough.  
 
Key highlights from the 360o report include; 
 

 76% of respondents agreed that there is clear and visible leadership within the 
organisations. A 16% increase on last year’s results. 

 68% of respondents agreed that they have confidence in the leadership of the CCG to 
deliver on plans and priorities. A 20% increase on last year’s results.  

 71% of respondents agreed that they have confidence in the leadership of the CCG to 
deliver improved outcomes for patients, a 27% increase on last year’s results. 

 
 
 
 
 

https://www.nhs.uk/service-search/performance/search
https://www.nhs.uk/service-search/performance/search
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Children’s Health 
Special Educational Needs Disabilities (SEND) Inspection 

In January 2018, there was a Joint local area SEND inspection of the local area of St Helens 
conducted by Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission (CQC) judging the effectiveness of the 
area in implementing the disability and special educational needs reforms as set out in the 
Children and Families Act 2014.  
 
Inspectors spoke with children and young people who have special educational needs (SEN) 
and/or disabilities, parents and carers, Local Authority and NHS officers. They visited a range 
of providers and spoke to leaders, staff and governors about how they were implementing the 
special educational needs reforms. Inspectors looked at a range of information about the 
performance of the local area, including the local area’s self-evaluation. Inspectors met with 
leaders from the local area for health, social care and education. They reviewed performance 
data and evidence about the local offer and joint commissioning. 
 
The outcome of this review was extremely positive and resulted in the borough having no 
statement of action. 
 
Key highlights of the report include; 
 

 Community children’s nursing teams ensure that young people who have SEN and/or 
disabilities are well supported as they transition from children’s to adult services. These 
teams continue to support young people until appropriate and equivalent adult services 
are known to be in place for those young people at transition. This provides both young 
people and their parents with continuity at an anxious time. 

 Community nurses provide high-quality training and support to teaching assistants who 
work with pupils who have complex medical needs. The nurses ensure that teaching 
assistants have the skills and expertise to carry out medical procedures during the 
school day. Moreover, ongoing support ensures that teaching assistants continue to 
carry out procedures competently. This approach ensures that there is minimal 
disruption to pupils’ education. 

 The innovative neurodevelopmental pathway has transformed the accessibility, 
timeliness and coordination of specialist services for children, young people and their 
families. Parents and carers agree that referrals are dealt with efficiently and 
appropriately. 

 Parents and professionals agree that routine checks for babies and young children are 
used well to identify any emerging development needs. Effective partnerships between 
health and education professionals provide a timely and coordinated response to any 
concerns. Parents make good use of ‘drop-in’ services, including well-baby clinics at 
children’s centres and coffee mornings, to seek advice and guidance. 

 Children and young people who are looked after have their needs identified and 
assessed quickly. For example, those referred into the neurodevelopmental pathway 
are routinely prioritised for assessment by individual services. This means that they are 
assessed within six weeks of referral so they receive the support and help they need 
quickly 

 Leaders have a deep and accurate understanding of the local area’s strengths and 
weaknesses. Leaders acknowledge that the local area was late in starting to implement 
the reforms. However, progress in implementation has speeded up considerably over  
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 the past 12 months. Senior leaders, managers and frontline staff have embraced the 
spirit of the reforms, putting children, young people and families at the heart of their 
plans. 

 Joint commissioning is strength of the local area. The development of the 
neurodevelopmental pathway demonstrates the commitment of senior leaders and 
managers to work collaboratively. Arrangements for working together are strong, from 
senior managers through to frontline staff. 

 

Launch of St Helens Neurodevelopment Pathway Team 

The Neurodevelopmental Pathway officially launched on Monday 22nd January 2018. The 
Neurodevelopmental pathway team work with children and young people with complex 
neurodevelopmental difficulties, who require a multi-agency assessment to gain a better 
understanding of their needs.  
 
The assessments are carried out by professionals from;  

• St Helens Local Authority e.g Educational Psychologists, Language and Social 
Communication Team Teachers  

• Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust e.g Community 
Paediatricians, Speech and Language Therapists 

• North West Boroughs NHS Foundation Trust e.g Consultant Psychiatrist, Occupational 
Therapists and others.  

 
These results of coordinated assessments are considered by a multi-agency panel. This may 
result in a diagnosis of Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD), Attention Deficit and Hyperactivity 
Disorder (ADHD), General Developmental Delay (GDD) or difficulties with Attachment. This 
integrated way of working across both organisations and disciplines has resulted in the service 
working in a transformational way. 
 

New Models of Care  

Stroke Redesign 
Following a review of stroke services by commissioners across Warrington, Halton, St Helens 
and Knowsley, working closely with provider trusts (Warrington and Halton NHS Foundation 
Trust and St Helens and Knowsley Teaching Hospital Trust) and with the support of the Stroke 
Association, changes to stroke services have been agreed. The overall vision for stroke 
services across the Mid Mersey footprint was to have a single hyper-acute unit based at 
Whiston Hospital for Warrington, Halton, St Helens and Knowsley patients.   
 
The first phase of the changes to stroke services meant that any patients who display the signs 
and symptoms of a stroke, where the clinical assessment indicates they would benefit from 
Thrombolysis (clot busting medication) will be taken to Whiston Hospital for the acute clot 
busting treatment, regardless of the day/time.  The second phase of the new pathway extends 
on this with the development of a specialist single hyper-acute unit, where all patients with the 
symptoms of a stroke will be taken for their acute care.   
 
In June 2017 St Helens, Warrington and Halton CCG’s worked together to run an engagement 
exercise talking to the local community around their views on the proposed changes and 
provided them with the opportunity to make further comments. The outcome of this  
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engagement highlighted that the local community of St Helens had a clear understanding of 
the need and benefits of this integrated and cross borough way of working. 
 

Partnership to Prevent 
A key element to the success of delivering high quality healthcare whilst delivering savings is 
the integration and support to prevention strategies across St Helens. Working closely with 
Public Health and Local Authority Partners, we have supported the development and 
implementation of a number of key prevention strategies in the borough, including but not 
limited to;  
 

 Suicide prevention 

 Alcohol and drug abuse prevention 

 Diabetes prevention – National Diabetes Prevention Programme 
 
Working across a number of CCG areas including commissioning, engagement and 
communications, the CCG have been able to support the successful implementation and 
continued delivery of these strategies. 
 
Diabetes  
Following on from the successful launch of the National Diabetes Prevention Programme 
locally in St Helens in 2016/17, 2017/18 has seen the continued development and large uptake 
of this programme being adopted across all localities in the borough. The success of the 
programme in the St Helens area saw 448 patients go through initial assessments who were 
then referred onto the 12 month programme in 2017/18. Those who attended have reported 
extremely positive feedback, telling us that the programme has helped them to make lifestyle 
changes which have led to them feeling happier and healthier. 
 
 
Case Study – The first group in St Helens 
 
In January 2017, Cohort 22 was one of the first groups in St Helens to participate in the 12 

months NHS Type 2 Diabetes Prevention programme. 
Over the 12 months period of the programme, the 
three main targets were to reduce each patient’s blood 
sugar levels (Hba1c) by at least 2 points or back to a 
normal level, reduce their body weight by at least 5% 
and educate individuals on how to maintain the 
positive lifestyle changes they have made, to ensure 
they remain not at risk of developing type 2 diabetes. 
 
At the start of the programme, the average Hba1c 
level in the group was 46 (the lowest being 44 and the 

highest being 47). The starting average weight was 81.1kg. At the end of the programme the 
average Hba1c level in the group was 41 (An average reduction of 5 points). The end average 
weight was 79kg (An average reduction of 2.1 kg/4.5lbs).  
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Engaging and listening to our patients  
During the first session, it was obvious there was high degree of nervousness, apprehension 
and reluctance to engage in the programme. This was due to them being aware the 
programme was new and the first of its kind to be run in the area and they were unsure about 
how effective it was going to be. However, these feelings did not last long. 
 
Patients on the programme said, ‘due to the friendly, open and relaxed atmosphere created by 
the facilitator, we were made to feel at ease about concept of making lifestyle changes’.,  
 
‘I was wary at first to sit in a group but felt comfortable from Day 1…Casper (facilitator) was 
polite, helpful and cheerful and taught me many ways of eating healthy’. 
 
‘Casper’s guidance and support allowed us to realise how to make minor changes that were 
easy to maintain and but would have a large positive influence on our health. Secondly, having 
regular check-ups helped us keep on track, remain motivated and deal effectively with any 
setbacks’…My experience on this programme has made a big difference to my life and I have 
learnt a lot’.  
 
As the programme was 12 months long, it was important to quickly reduce any doubts and 
fears the patients had. Despite the focus of the educational sessions being long-term changes 
to their lifestyle, patients were educated and encouraged to predominately focus on the short-
term goals i.e. weekly target goals and a target for each area of lifestyle change. This allowed 
the patients to feel less overwhelmed about the amount of changes they had to make and 
allow them to feel more confident within themselves to develop and maintain a healthier 
lifestyle.  
 
 
Following on from this, Professor O’Brien lead on the Diabetes programme for the Health and 
Care Partnership in Cheshire and Merseyside, co-ordinating and submitting a Cheshire and 
Merseyside wide bid for wave 3 of the National Diabetes Prevention Programme, which would 
secure national funding for the role out of the programme across the Cheshire and Merseyside 
area. In addition, a partnership with Diabetes Network has been secured. The network will 
provide significant support to this programme and this has been agreed with Network Clinical 
lead.  
 
Cancer Strategy  
In St Helens the estimated spend on cancer is £39 per head each year and in 2015, it was 
recorded that cancer accounted for 38% of deaths in the area. People are living for longer after 
their diagnosis and treatment, needing more long term care, and this number is expected to 
continue to grow by 48% by 2030.  
 
To address some of these challenges, the CCG has produced a new Cancer Strategy in year 
with a clear action plan to implement in partnership to ensure that the CCG can continue to 
meet access standards for cancer services. The plan is based around joint initiatives to 
working towards one borough wide strategy. Engaging with the local community and the 
current and past service users of Cancer services in St Helens, we were able to use this 
insight and experiences to help shape Cancer Services in the borough. The Cancer Strategy 
looks at how care will be delivered in a more integrated way and is a key component of the 
way that St Helens Cares works. It demonstrates the key ethos of integrated commissioning, 
looking at all aspects of Cancer including prevention, diagnosis and treatment. 
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The cancers that the local care system in St Helens will focus on preventing are lung, 
colorectal, breast and prostate cancers. Joint work with Public Health to reduce the incidence 
of these and other cancers through a number of work streams include promoting healthy 
lifestyle choices, increasing the uptake of HPV vaccination, cancer screening, and protecting 
people from exposure to environmental risk factors. This work aims to tackle inequalities in the 
incidence of cancer through provision of support that is appropriately targeted and accessible 
to population groups which experience higher cancer incidence rates. A truly integrated and 
productive approach has seen the development of the Cancer Action Group, a group with 
representatives from across the system including patients. This Action Group also provides a 
clear governance structure, feeding in their findings to Governing Body and relevant 
committees as well as seeking expert guidance when needed.  
Working with clinical stakeholders has also been a key element to this work, carrying out 
clinical engagement has seen the successful launch of joined up clinician initiatives such as 
‘Advice and Guidance’. This is a set up by which GPs are able to raise a query with a 
consultant via an online system and receive a response within 72 hours prior to referring a 
patient. This has helped in reducing unnecessary referrals of patients to secondary care and 
an improved patient experience, as well as strengthening relationships between primary and 
secondary care.  
 
The St Helens cares model will continue to provide the platform to ensure integration and 
communication between service providers is possible in order to produce a seamless delivery 
of care for all patients. 
 

Mental Health  
In meeting the challenge of parity of esteem, the CCG did not withdraw or reduce the provision 
of mental health services, but chiefly due to a rebalancing of commissioner’s contributions to 
main mental health provider to resolve historic cross-subsidisation issues. This results in a 
lower payment by St Helens CCG but compensating higher payments by other commissioners. 
This is a financial issue only with no resulting impact to the services commissioned for the 
borough 

 
The CCG has placed a focus on the performance of Children and Young People’s (CYP) 
Mental Health Services during 2017/18. Historically the CCG had experienced long waiting 
times in relation to the services that it commissioned from Barnardo’s. Working with the 
provider the CCG has significantly reduced the numbers waiting for intervention from over 500 
waiting for more than 2 months to less than 30 at February 2018. In relation to the services 
commissioned from North West Boroughs at December 2017 the CCG had achieved 100% 
compliance for emergency and urgent access and had improved its routine access (within 6 
weeks) to 86%. During 2018/19 the CCG will redesign both services in partnership moving 
towards the THRIVE model of service – this is a multi-agency approach focussed on advice 
and signposting, getting help and risk support.  In February 2017 the CCG launched an Eating 
Disorder service for CYP with targets to commence treatment of urgent cases within 5 days 
and routine cases within 4 weeks. Take up of the services has been higher than prevalence 
data suggested (approx. 15 cases) with 28 cases treated in the first 10 months. The CCG has 
achieved 100% of the target for urgent cases and 66.6% for routine cases due to the level of 
demand. 
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In relation to adult mental health services during 2017/18 the CCG invited NHSE Improving 
Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) Intensive Support Team (IST) into the organisation 
to review our IAPT services “Minds Matter” provided by Lancashire Care Trust. CCG 
performance in relation to both the access and recovery targets for IAPT although improving 
had been inconsistent throughout the year. The final report has not been issued however 
feedback from the IST provided assurance that the service was good with much evidence of 
good practice. The CCG and provider demonstrated a good collaborative approach to the 
contract with transparency of reporting and an innovative commissioning approach. The review 
identified that there are a significant cohort of patients with more severe conditions that are not 
being counted although they are receiving a good service with good recovery outcomes. The 
visit also identified increasing waiting times which is an area that the CCG and Provider will 
focus on in 2018/19 as well as data quality and counting. 
 

Primary Care  
It is recognised nationally across the NHS that primary care is an area where new ways of 
working are required to meet demand and continue to provide high quality care. The GP 
Forward View sets out a number of key priority areas which the NHS both nationally and locally 
need to address. The following areas outline some of the work happening across St Helens to 
support the delivery of the GP forward view. 
 
Primary Care Workforce 
GP retention is a growing area of concern nationally, and this is reflected locally, with many 
member Practices losing experienced GPs and struggling to recruit to clinical posts. Notably, 
30% of St Helens’ GPs are aged over 55, which is a strong indication as to the numbers who 
may retire over the next 5-10 years. A disproportionate number of practice nurses are also 
aged over 55 with 8 due to retire in the next 3 years, plans in place to recruit 11 nurses and 4 
Healthcare Assistants (HCA).  
 
Early thinking around the workforce transformation priorities focuses on: 
 

 An expansion of the workforce delivering primary medical services 

 Increased numbers of staff delivering care in a community setting. 

 Staff with a broader range of skills that span health and social care  

 Exploring opportunities for staff to gain skills in working across all areas of care delivery 
(hospital, community and primary care) and integration of training 

 Exploring opportunities for the creation of new roles that will reduce duplication and 
improve the experience of people using health and social care services 

 
The CCG is also working on a number of projects to improve the Primary Care Workforce 
which include: 
 

 Releasing Time for Care Programme to implement 10 high impact changes 

 International GP Recruitment 

 BMJ Local GP Recruitment Campaign 

 Clinical Pharmacist Programme 

 On-Line Consultations 

 GP Retention Scheme 

 Apex Insight Development of newly combined workforce/workload tool  
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 Social Prescribing Pilot 

 Training and Development for Reception/Clerical Staff 

 Productive Workflows 
 
The CCG has an ambition to develop primary care as a career of choice and to work with 
partners to ensure that St Helens is as an attractive place to train and work.  It is essential that 
a wide range of professionals are exposed to primary care as part of their pre- and post-
registration training and that primary care is seen as a desirable option for a post-registration 
career. 
 
The CCG recognises that the GP role is core to the wider practice team and must be valued as 
the provider of holistic, patient- centred care for undifferentiated illness, across time within a 
continuous relationship. For this reason the CCG wishes to promote and support GP training, 
recruitment and retention within St Helens. 
 
Promoting general practice in St Helens as a career choice: The CCG submitted a bid for 
national funding as part of the GP Resilience Programme. The bid was successful and this 
funding will be used to work with the BMJ to deliver a recruitment programme that will raise the 
profile of St Helens.  
 
International Recruitment: NHSE Cheshire and Merseyside International Recruitment 
application was approved by the National Panel at the end of December 2017. 14 St Helens 
Practices have committed to the programme.  
 
Apex Insight Development of newly combined workforce/workload tool: The CCG is 
currently supporting the roll out of Apex Insight: Primary Care Workload and Workforce 
Transformation to all 34 Practices. 
 
The aim for the Apex Insight tool is to provide Primary Care/GP Practices with a detailed 
understanding of their workload activity and use this information to inform and develop a 
workforce plan that responds to new models of care and potentially adopt a more diverse 
clinical skill mix.  The combination of this improved understanding of workload and a robust 
workforce plan will help practices improve their short term resilience and longer term 
sustainability. 
 
Primary Care Extended Hours Engagement: The GP Forward View set out by NHSE 
outlined the requirements for additional access to be made available within the primary care 
setting.  
 
The CCG worked together with membership and the local community to support and design 
how this might be delivered in St Helens. As a result, the CCG is will implement Improved 
Access to General Medical Practice and is currently out to tender.  
 
Information Technology 
A key enabler for the implementation of joint initiatives and integrated working is Information 
Technology. 
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During 2017/18 the CCG has developed its digital technology significantly. Successes 
achieved in IT this year have included: 
 

 The CCG and partners (Local Authority and St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals Trust) 
have signed a contract for the development of a Shared Care Record that will be 
available to health and social care partners across the borough. This will be rolled out 
throughout 2018/19 and will ensure that all relevant professionals have access that is 
needed to care records of St Helens residents. This will be developed to ensure that 
appropriate governance arrangements are in place to protect the data of our residents 
and make sure that it is appropriately used with the correct consent in place to allow its 
use 

 All GP practices have been given access to mobile technology that will allow them to 
access patients’ records whilst out on home visits. This sets a platform for 
transformative working across primary care that will be built on throughout 2018/19. The 
CCG has secured further funding in 2018/19 to continue to develop mobile 
communications for primary care 

 The CCG has secured funds for additional cyber security measures to better protect 
data across the borough from cyber-attacks. Whilst the CCG is compliant with NHS 
standards for cyber security, any investment in this area further protects St Helens from 
future attacks as far as possible in the current climate 

 The CCG has made public WIFI available in all GP practices in line with national 
requirements. This allows people in St Helens to access digital technology in their GP 
practice that will enable them to manage their health proactively.  
 

Continued development of each of the elements moving into 2018/19 will allow for improved 
patient and staff experiences.  
 
Leadership Domain 
 
During 2017/18 the CCG received the 2016/17 assurance rating for its leadership.  
 
The CCG submitted a financial deficit plan due to the significant level of financial challenge that 
it faced for that year. Due to the financial challenge, the CCG could not attain a rating of more 
than ‘requires improvement’ under the Well Led performance indicator. 
 
The rating received of ‘Requires Improvement’ was an improvement from the previous year’s 
rating of ‘Inadequate’.  
 
For 2016/17 the process of rating Quality of Leadership within CCGs was revised. The CCG 
was required to submit evidence in response to key lines of enquiry (KLOE) from NHSE. This 
evidence was considered by the local NHSE management team and was also subject to 
regional and national moderation. The CCG was rated as amber for the quality of leadership in 
2016/17 meaning that only moderate weaknesses had been identified at that stage at the 
CCG. In its 2016/17 year-end review NHSE set out a summary for the CCG of key areas of 
strength and areas for improvement. NHSE noted; 
 

 The CCGs’ efforts to establish stronger leadership, more rapid decision making and 
greater grip on finance, activity and performance 
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 The CCGs’ constructive engagement with the 
Health and Care Partnership in Cheshire and Merseyside process and in particular the 
Accountable Officers’ involvement in the membership group and developmental work on 
Health and Care Partnership governance 

 The tangible shift in terms of leadership, but that sustained organisational development 
remains an area of challenge 

 
For 2017/18 the CCG has again self-assessed Quality of Leadership against a revised set of 
key lines of enquiry from NHSE. Following a robust internal assurance process the CCG has 
assessed its performance as green meaning that it has no issues with its leadership or 
minor/low risk issues.  
 
NHSE Directions 
The CCG was placed in NHS Directions in 2016 due primarily to its challenged financial 
position. The Directions remain in place and in summary focus on three key areas: 

 the production of an Improvement Plan; 

 the production of a financial recovery plan  

 that NHSE will be involved in the process to make any new appointments to the 
Executive Team and the next tier of management. 

 
During 2017/18 the CCG has remained compliant with these directions and NHSE have not 
raised any concerns in this regard. 
 

Financial Summary  
The main element of the CCG funding is its ‘programme’ allocation, which is for the 
commissioning of health services including delegated primary care co-commissioning funding. 
For 2017/18 the CCGs in year allocation for programme expenditure was £324.9m.  
 
The CCG also receives a running cost allowance, which covers the administration and 
management of the CCG, which equated to £4.2m. The CCG cannot use its programme 
allocation to increase the running cost allowance, although any underspend on its running 
costs can be used to support the purchase of healthcare services. 
 
These two allocations equate to the total in year revenue allocation to the CCG of £329.1m.  
The CCG spent £333.9m against this allocation, which represented an overspend against the 
control total in year of £4.8m.  
 
This was within the target set by NHSE after allowable adjustments for national cost pressures 
on certain drugs costs and rebates and the application of a 0.5% risk reserve that the CCG had 
to set aside as a contribution to the national position for financial risk. These adjustments are 
listed below. 
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Table 1: Adjustments 

 
 
Therefore the CCG was successful in meeting the ‘in year’ control totals for 2017/18. 
 
The CCG also received a capital expenditure allocation of £0.2m which was allocated 
specifically for the purchase of cyber security software and spent in year. 
 
The CCG received a growth allocation of 1.96% within 2017/18. However, the increase in 
demand for health services for the people of St Helens has put significant pressure on this 
allocation and the cost of healthcare was greater than the allocation received. At the beginning 
of the financial year, the CCG had set a plan which was approved by NHSE to achieve an in 
year deficit of no greater than £4.9m. In order to achieve this plan the CCG was required to 
make efficiency savings of £13.5m. 
 
The CCG was put under specific legal directions in 2016/17 by NHSE. These directions have 
not been lifted in 2017/18 and have not been revised. The CCG is working to the principle that 
delivery of an agreed financial plan and control total in year is the key financial metric to deliver 
against. The CCG had a two year improvement plan in place that covered 2016/17 and 
2017/18. This set out how the CCG would keep within its control total for 2017/18. At the 
beginning of the year, the CCG had recognised that it must deliver savings of £13.5m (4.2% of 
allocation) which represented a significant challenge to the CCG. In addition to this, the CCG 
had to meet the cost of emerging demand pressures in year. 
  
Of the original efficiency savings identified of £13.5m, the CCG successfully removed £12.2m 
from budgets and contracts at the start of the year. This was removed in the following 
budgetary areas: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£000s

Control total set by NHS England 4,987

Allowable adjustment re drugs cost pressures 1,731

Allowable adjustment - drugs price rebates -425

Release of risk reserve -1,450

Allowable control total 4,843
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Table 2: Efficiency savings  
 
 

 
 
All efficiency saving programmes are subject to equality and quality impact assessments and 
approved by the Governing Body. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Transactional schemes

 Original 

QIPP 

plan 

 

Removed 

from 

budget 

£000's 

Contract reviews 194          194          

CHC assessment & review 414          414          

Prescribing schemes including medicines optimisation, 

cessation of minor ailments and gluten free prescribing, 

review of medicines waste through third party ordering, drug 

price changes and review of biosimilar drugs 4,948      4,948      

Review of Procedures of Limited Clinical Value 1,979      1,979      

Local Enhanced Service review 300          -           

Premises/infrastructure savings 150          150          

Transactional schemes total 7,985      7,685      

Transformational schemes

 QIPP 

plan 

 

Removed 

from 

budget 

£000's 

Reprocurement of Community Nursing 503          503          

Reducing unwarranted variation in services 725          -           

Reduction in mental health out of borough placements 500          500          

MH contract realignment across commissioners 894          894          

Care Home Teletriage 539          539          

Falls vehicle 410          410          

Non GP referrals review 250          

Referal Management scheme 1,186      1,186      

GP in A&E 470          470          

Other additional savings required -           12            

Transformational schemes total 5,477      4,514      

Total 4.2% QIPP 13,462    12,199    

 £000's 
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Demand Pressures  
During the year, demand pressures continued to emerge. These pressures were most 
prevalent in the following areas: 
 

 Acute hospital budgets pressures - £3.2m.  Demand in Urgent Care placed 
considerable pressure on hospital budgets in year. This was largely due to the well-
publicised ‘winter’ pressures on non-elective care (urgent and emergency care) 

 Continuing Care – £0.4m. Budgetary pressure has continued for St Helens residents 
entitled to continuing healthcare. This is not unique to St Helens and is a consequence 
of an ageing population requiring continuing healthcare, therefore there are not only a 
higher volume of residents entitled to NHS continuing care, but also an increased 
complexity of need amongst these residents, which places this budget under increasing 
pressure annually 

 Mental Health – £0.9m. The CCG has faced pressure as a result of patients requiring 
treatments out of the Borough at a high cost. During the year, the CCG has been 
developing plans to bring some of these patients back into the borough for their 
treatment. Whilst the CCG has had some success in this repatriation, there remains a 
financial pressure in this area due to an increased volume of patients and increases in 
complexity of care needed 

 Prescribing – £0.8m. The CCG has faced a pressure in 2017/18 as a result of key 
medication that is prescribed by GPs being in short supply nationally. This has affected 
all CCGs during the year. This has driven up the cost of those drugs and as a result this 
has cost the CCG more than anticipated 

 
The CCG has been able to deliver the mitigations required to meet its control total and as set 
out above, the need to meet efficiency savings and emerging demand throughout the year by 
taking several key actions: 
 

 Identification of budgets where formal commitments had not been made. In some cases 
transformational schemes originally planned in 2017/18 will happen in 2018/19, 
therefore this puts pressure into future years 

 Management of activity in secondary care providers, particularly on elective care, in 
collaboration with providers of care, whilst ensuring that quality of care was unaffected 
and referral to treatment times continued to meet constitutional targets 

 Redesigns of patient pathways to improve the patient experience and reduce 
unwarranted variation in treatment, such as a change to the pathway for patients 
needing a scope 

 Reviewing the costs of estates across St Helens and ensuring the best possible 
utilisation of all sites 

 Freezing non-essential running costs 

 Reviewing prescribing patterns to minimise prescriptions dispensed for use beyond April 
2018 

 Successful bids for additional funding to support the CCG in delivery of services, such 
as the receipt of funding towards the development of a Shared Care Record across St 
Helens for use by health and care partners 

 
In addition, it was agreed nationally that all CCGs were able to amend their control total by the 
amount of pressure faced by the costs of drugs in short supply, £1.7m for St Helens. There  
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was also a national benefit of a price fall in some other key drugs (known as category M drugs) 
which gave the CCG a benefit of £0.4m in March 2018. 
 
The CCG was required to set aside 0.5% of its budget and hold this sum uncommitted to 
contribute towards a national risk reserve for the year. This £1.45m was then released in 
March 2018 and was used to improve the financial position of the CCG. This is the second 
year that this requirement has been placed upon CCGs in accordance with NHSE 
requirements and is consistent across 2016/17 and 2017/18 final accounts. 
 
Therefore, despite a very challenging year financially, the CCG has been able to deliver its 
financial plan; this represents an exceptional achievement, despite significant pressures on 
acute, mental health, drugs and continuing healthcare budgets, by delivering a series of 
mitigating actions in the latter part of the year.  
 
The table below highlights the final reported out turn for the CCG and how this reconciles back 
to the 2017/18 control total set by NHSE in April 2017. 
 
Table 3 below summarises the CCG’s performance against its statutory financial duties. 
 

Statutory Duties 2017/18 Target £m  Actual £m  Variance £m  Met? 

Expenditure not to exceed 
income  333.13 337.97 4.84 X 

Capital resource use does not 
exceed the amount specified 
in Directions  0.2 0.2 0  
Revenue resource use does 
not exceed the amount 
specified in Directions  329.13 333.97 4.84  
Revenue administration 
resource use does not 
exceed the amount specified 
in Directions  4.19 3.93 (0.26)  

 
 

How was the money spent in 2017/18?  
The CCG has faced some difficult choices when deciding on spending priorities in year and will 
continue to do so in the future. It is particularly important as the CCG is working towards 
financial recovery and sustainability that the Governing Body, management team and staff of 
the CCG work hard to ensure that the entire budget is spent wisely, and that it supports the 
aim of commissioning high quality healthcare for its population, whilst ensuring effectiveness, 
value for money and sustainability in the long term. 
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Figure 2: Allocations to the CCG were spent as 
follows:  
 

 
 
Value for Money in 2017/18 
 
The CCG’s external auditors will be required to give their statutory conclusion on arrangements 
to secure value for money.  
 
When considering the Value for Money Audit Opinion, the National Audit Office guidance 
issued to auditors asks auditors to consider whether: 
 

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.” 

 

This covers three specific areas of sustainable resource development, informed decision 
making and working with partners and third parties. The auditors will specifically consider 
areas such as: 
 

 The financial position of the CCG and whether it has achieved its control total; 

 CCG arrangements for agreeing budgets and savings plans 

 How the CCG communicate to key Committees 

 Arrangements for working with other partners and also working across the Cheshire and 
Mersey footprint 

 Arrangements for monitoring budget performance and risks and also arrangements for 
ensuring that services commissioned are effective 

 

Mental Health, 
£26.9m 

Acute 
Commissioning, 

£166.4m 

Other Primary Care, 
£5.8m 

Continuing Care, 
£22.2m 

Community Health, 
£26.6m 

Other (inc. Better 
Care Fund), £18.1m 

Running Costs, 
£3.9m 

Primary Care GP 
contracts, £28.0m 

Prescribing, £36.0m 
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Given the financial pressures the CCG has faced, it has worked hard over 2017/18 to put in 
place arrangements to ensure that it can deliver value for money services. We have developed 
a plan for break even in 2018/19 and will be developing a long term recovery plan by June 
2018.  
 
Key to this is the project management approach to financial recovery taken by the CCG. This 
establishes: 
 

 Key themes for recovery 

 Clear leadership for the recovery process 

 Clear accountability and ownership of each of the key themes across the organisation 

 Clear risk reporting 

 Formal systems for reporting progress through the CCG’s governance routes. 
 
In considering arrangements to achieve value for money the organisation can take confidence 
from the CCG’s strong internal audit results on budgetary controls, financial reporting and 
financial systems for 2017/18, as the CCG has secured significant assurances in these areas. 
 
The CCG has sought to achieve value for money in areas such as; 
 

 Continued optimisation of the referral management system to ensure that patients are 
seen in the most appropriate setting and not automatically sent to a hospital setting 
where an alternative community based provision is in place, with increased provision for 
clinical triage in additional specialties 

 Continuing to reduce unwarranted variation in care by embedding the Commissioning 
for Value/Rightcare approach in order to address areas of expenditure where costs are 
high but outcomes are relatively low. This year a key focus has been on reducing 
unwarranted variation where residents require healthcare as a result of a fall and 
scoping procedures have been addressed and revised patient pathways devised 

 Reviewing medicines management and prescribing, ensuring medicines waste is 
eliminated where possible and that patients are on the most appropriate medicines. In 
2017/18 there have been significant savings made from managing third party 
prescribing and waste, which has saved the CCG £1.3m. these savings are recurrent 
therefore will continue in to future years 

 Schemes that have addressed non elective admissions such as expanding the scope of 
the falls car to assess and deal with a wider cohort of patients avoiding  admission into 
hospital where appropriate 

 Embedding our estates strategy to use better quality premises more effectively to 
release older premises for disposal 

 

 Continuing to spend less on procedures that have less clinical value so that resources 
can be used more efficiently 

 
The CCG have received an unqualified VFM opinion in 2017/18. 
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Going Concern  
The CCG's financial accounts have been prepared under a direction issued by the NHS 
Commissioning Board under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).  In light of 
the 2017/18 planned deficit and referral to the Secretary of State under Section 30 of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014, made on the 8th March 2018, the CCG has undertaken an 
assessment of its status as a going concern.  The CCG’s financial plan for 2018/19 is to break 
even in year and the CCG will be submitting an improvement plan to NHSE by 30th June 2018 
that will demonstrate how it will get back in to cumulative financial balance. This recovery and 
improvement plan will supplement the annual plan of 30th April which will be subject to NHSE 
assurance processes. 
 
Regardless, for non-trading entities in the public sector, the anticipated continuation of the 
provision of a service in the future, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that 
service in published documents, is normally sufficient evidence of going concern.  
 
Therefore based on the above, the accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis on 
the basis that: 
 

• Health care services will continue to be provided for residents of St Helens 
• The CCG has a financial plan in place for 2018/19 which is for a break even position 

and will be developing a long term plan for cumulative recovery to specified statutory 
and financial control metrics on an ongoing basis 

 

Looking Forward to 2018/19 and beyond  

The CCG has received additional allocations in year of £8.77m (2.7%) to cover growth and 
demand pressures, which includes the CCG’s share of additional funding allocated to the NHS 
as part of the last national budget. 
 
Despite the increase, the demand pressures faced in recent years continue which means that 
the CCG remains under significant financial pressure. The CCG also delivered its financial 
position in 2017/18 using some mitigations which helped the position in 2017/18 but do not 
address the underlying demand pressures.  
 
The CCG has been set an in year break even control total for 2018/19 which represents an 
year on year improvement of £5m, which again presents the CCG with a significant challenge 
to deliver this financial position. The CCG must save 4.4% of its costs (£14.7m) in year to meet 
this target.  
 
However, the CCG has a solid foundation on which to build these plans as it has worked hard 
during 2017/18 to develop plans that reduce the demand for health services, which not only 
save money, but more importantly, enhance the quality of care received by residents of St 
Helens. These schemes are referenced in the Value for Money section above.  
 
Some of these schemes will be further developed in to 2018/19 to expand on these successes 
and the CCG has once again developed a detailed plan on delivery of savings. Additional 
schemes include: 

 Reducing variation in outpatient attendances according to national benchmarks 
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 Further pathway redesigns in elective care specialties such as Respiratory, 
Dermatology, Ear, Nose and Throat, Gynaecology, Diabetes and Cardiology 

 Development of the revised out of hospital contract to better manage patients within the 
community and help to reduce non elective admissions 

 Schemes aimed at reducing non elective admissions such as Urgent Care Treatment 
Centres, review of GP services to care homes and extending access for GP services; 

 Development of a supported tenancy unit for patients with enduring mental health 
problems who need support with their condition. 

 
The CCG has developed strong relationships with all partners in the health and social care 
economy through our Local Care System, St Helens Cares, to ensure that these changes can 
be introduced effectively in St Helens and support the overall strategic objective of a 
sustainable public service for the borough. 
 
The CCG has 2 year signed contracts with providers for 2017-19 and commissioning plans 
have been refreshed to ensure that they align to contracts for 2018/19 which is the second 
year of the contract period. 
 
2017/18 saw further developments in relation to the Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
(STP) for Cheshire and Merseyside with the emergence of the Cheshire and Merseyside 
Health and Care Partnership under new leadership and with a clear set of strategic 
programmes. The CCG is committed to continuing to support the Cheshire & Merseyside 
Partnership in 2018/19 and has aligned officers to each of the programmes to ensure that the 
CCG is sighted on the opportunities presented from the various programmes and projects. 
 
The scale of the financial and performance challenge remains significant and the CCG, along 
with all its health and care partners will have to continue to work collaboratively to achieve this. 
Plans are in development for 2018/19 and beyond and the CCG recognises that it will continue 
to be faced with difficult choices on spending priorities over the coming years. 
 
The principal risks to the financial position of the CCG continue to be; 
 

 Schemes not delivering the required level of demand reductions and savings 

 Demand growth in acute care being in excess of the assumptions made when financial 
planning 

 Growth in the cost and volume of Continuing Healthcare cases and high cost mental 
health placements out of areas 

 Managing the GP prescribing budget 

 Any unidentified savings required 
 
Through St Helens Cares we work in an integrated way across all partners across St Helens 
the CCG will seek to manage and mitigate these risks. This will include integrated 
commissioning with the Local Authority and developing the role of providers by working 
towards a lead provider arrangement which ensures that the provision of healthcare is 
integrated across the borough.  
 
In addition the CCG will continue to ensure that routine controls, governance and contract 
management remain robust. We will continue tackling prescribing waste, reviewing and  
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reducing out of borough placements for patients with mental health conditions and will continue 
to develop the joint pooled budget arrangements with St Helens Council in relation to 
Continuing Health Care cases.  
 
The internal structures which will help the CCG deal with these risks are set out in the 
Governance section of the Annual Report.  
 

Performance Analysis 
The below tables highlight the most current key performance measures against constitutional 
standards.  Pages 29 to 33 provide detail regarding the key performance measures.  
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Table 4 St Helens CCG Constitution Measures Performance 

 

St Helens CCG NHS CONSTITUTION MEASURES PERFORMANCE

Target 

(%)

2016/2017

(Apr16 - Jan17)

2017/18

(Apr17 - Jan 18)

Variance to 

2016/17

Patients on incomplete non-emergency 

pathways (yet to start treatment should have 

been waiting no more than 18 weeks from 

referral)

92%
93.8%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

93.4%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
-0.6%

Zero tolerance of over 52 week waiters 0
7

(Apr16 - Jan 17)

0

(Apr17 - Jan 18)
-7

Diagnostic test 

waiting times 

Patients waiting for a diagnostic test should 

have been waiting less than 6 weeks from 

referral

Below 1% 
0.13%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

0.45%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
0.32%

Patients should be admitted, transferred or 

discharged within 4 hours of their arrival at 

an A&E department (St Helens CCG)

95%
90.6%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

90.7%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
0.1%

No waits from decision to admit to admission 

(trolley waits) over 12 hours STHK ONLY
0

0

(Apr16- Feb 17)

0

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
0

Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient 

appointment for patients referred urgently 

with suspected cancer by a GP

93%
95.8%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

95.3%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
-0.5%

Maximum two-week wait for first outpatient 

appointment for patients referred urgently 

with breast symptoms (where cancer was not 

initially suspected

93%
96.6%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

95.8%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
-0.8%

Maximum one month (31-day wait from 

diagnosis to first definitive treatment for all 

cancers)

96%
97.5%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

97.6%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
0.1%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent 

treatment where that treatment is surgery
94%

98.4%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

97.8%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
-0.6%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent 

treatment where that treatment is an anti-

cancer drug regimen

98%
99.2%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

99.3%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
0.1%

Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent 

treatment where the treatment is a course of 

radiotherapy 

94%
97.1%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

98.5%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
1.4%

Maximum two month (62-day wait from 

urgent GP referral to first definitive 

treatment for cancer)

85%
84.7%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

83.8%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
-0.9%

Maximum 62-day wait from referral from an 

NHS screening service to first definitive 

treatment for all cancers

90%
92.2%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

97.3%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
5.1%

Maximum 62-day wait for first definitive 

treatment following a consultant’s decision 

to upgrade the priority of the patient (all 

cancers)

No operational 

Standard Set

90%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

79.3%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
-10.7%

Mixed Sex 

Accommodation 

Breaches 

Minimise breaches
Minimise

(5 cases at this 

point in 15/16)

5

(Apr16- Feb 17)

9

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
4

Mental health 
Care Programme Approach (CPA: The 

proportion of people under adult mental 

illness specialties on CPA who were followed 

up within 7 days of discharge from psychiatric 

in-patient care during the period)

95%
96.7%

(Apr16- Feb 17)

96.7%

(Apr17 - Feb 18)
0.1%

Cancelled 

Operations 

All patients who have operations cancelled, 

on or after the day of admission (including 

the day of surgery, for non-clinical reasons to 

be offered another binding date within 28 

days, or the patient’s treatment to be funded 

at the time and hospital of the patient’s 

choice)

100%

STHK - 100%

W&H - 86%

AUHT - 98%

Alder Hey - 78%

WWL - 90%

S&O - 100%

STHK - 100%

W&H - 94%

AUHT - 98%

Alder Hey - 84%

WWL - 95%

S&O - 100%

CCG Performance - key constitutional rights and pledges

Cancer waits – 2 

week wait 

Referral To 

Treatment waiting 

times for non-

urgent consultant-

led treatment 

A&E waits 

Cancer waits – 31 

days 

Cancer waits – 62 

days 
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Table 5 - RTT Week Performance 

 
 
Table 6 – IAPT Access Rate – Data source HSCIC 

 
 
Table 7 – Recovery Rate – Data Source NHS Digital 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.B.3 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

14/15 Incomplete <18wks 27913 28558 27505 27521 111497

14/15 Total Incomplete 28789 29359 28350 28370 114868

14/15 Baseline % Incomplete 97.0% 97.3% 97.0% 97.0% 97.1%

15/16 Incomplete <18wk 31105 30687 31206 31332 124330

15/16 Total Incomplete 31950 31764 32322 32788 128824

15/16 Baseline % Incomplete 97.4% 96.6% 96.5% 95.6% 96.5%

16/17 Actual Incomplete <18wk 36060 33683 32773 31805 134321

16/17 Actual Total Incomplete 37934 36013 35214 34040 429603

16/17 Actual % Incomplete 97.4% 96.6% 96.5% 95.6% 96.5%

17/18 Actual Incomplete <18wk 33270 32724 33465 99459

Constitution 2017/18 17/18 Actual Total Incomplete 35688 35117 35786 106591

92% 17/18 Actual % Incomplete 93.22% 93.19% 93.51% - 93.31%

RTT 18 Week Performance 

B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

RTT 

INCOMPLETE

 The percentage of 

incomplete pathways 

within 18 weeks for 

patients on 

incomplete pathways 

at the end of the 

period.

A
C

TU
A

L

E.A.S.3 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2014-15 Baseline 6.91% 6.01% 6.30% 9.47% 7.49%

2015-16 Baseline 9.06% 5.56% 18.33% 13.40% 10.21%

2016-17 Baseline 15.66% 11.74% 9.06% 19.77% 13.95%

2017-18 Actual 15.66% 16.68% - - -

IAPT Access Rate - Data Source HSCIC 

IAPT Access Rate 

IN_MONTH

(National Target 16.8%)

E.A.S.2 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2014-15 Baseline 44.55% 63.81% 37.70% 31.61% 43.47%

2015-16 Baseline 33.33% 46.15% 30.00% 33.30% 31.05%

2016-17 Baseline 38.30% 42.00% 51.00% 48.00% 46.32%

2017-18 Actual 50.00% 62.00% - - -

IAPT Recovery Rate

(National Target 50.0%)

IAPT Recovery Rate - Data Source NHS Digital
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Table 8 - Cancer 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.B.6 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

14/15 Number Waiting < 2 wks 1245 1230 1234 1258 4967

14/15 Total Number Waiting 1334 1296 1303 1315 5248

14/15 Baseline Performance % 93.3% 94.9% 94.7% 95.7% 94.6%

15/16 Number Waiting < 2 wks 1285 1457 1499 1519 5760

15/16 Total Number Waiting 1360 1552 1567 1550 6029

15/16 Baseline Performance % 94.5% 93.9% 95.7% 98.0% 95.5%

16/17 Actual No Waiting < 2 wks 1594 1625 1559 1630 6408

16/17 Actual Total Waiting 1661 1715 1632 1676 6684

16/17 Actual Performance % 95.97% 94.75% 95.53% 97.3% 95.87%

N
H

SE

17/18 Plan Performance % 93.63% 93.91% 94.90% 93.90% 94.12%

17/18 Actual No Waiting < 2 wks 1670 1731 1792 5193

Constitution 2017/18 17/18 Actual Total Waiting 1747 1829 1872 5448

93.00% 17/18 Actual Performance % 95.59% 94.64% 95.73% - 95.32%

All Cancer 

2 week wait

Cancer

B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

A
C

TU
A

L

E.B.8 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

14/15 Number Waiting < 31 days 262 250 252 246 1010

14/15 Total Number Waiting 263 256 256 250 1025

14/15 Baseline Performance % 99.6% 97.7% 98.4% 98.4% 98.5%

15/16 Number Waiting < 31 days 233 274 314 238 1059

15/16 Total Number Waiting 242 283 324 246 1095

15/16 Baseline Performance % 96.3% 96.8% 96.9% 96.7% 96.7%

16/17 Actual Waiting < 31 days 258 255 278 303 1094

16/17 Actual Total Waiting 265 263 286 308 1122

16/17 Actual Performance % 97.36% 96.96% 97.20% 98.38% 97.50%

N
H

SE

17/18 Plan Performance % 97.43% 97.53% 97.67% 95.50% 97.34%

17/18 Actual Waiting < 31 days 262 309 310 881

Constitution 2017/18 17/18 Actual Total Waiting 267 313 315 895

96.00% 17/18 Actual Performance % 98.13% 98.72% 98.41% - 98.44%

Cancer - Percentage 

of patients receiving 

first definitive 

treatment within 31 

days of a cancer 

diagnosis.

A
C

TU
A

L
B

A
SE

LI
N

ES
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Table 9 – Accident and Emergency Department (St Helens and Knowsley Teaching Hospital NHS 
Trust) type 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.B.12 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

14/15 Number Waiting < 62 days 99 88 98 93 378

14/15 Total Number Waiting 120 101 110 107 438

14/15 Baseline Performance % 82.5% 87.1% 89.1% 86.9% 86.3%

15/16 No Waiting < 62 days 93 101 116 114 424

15/16 Total Waiting 107 115 141 130 493

15/16 Performance % 86.9% 87.8% 82.3% 87.7% 86.0%

16/17 Actual Waiting < 62 days 112 114 104 120 450

16/17 Actual Total Waiting 133 139 119 141 532

16/17 Actual Performance % 84.2% 82.0% 87.4% 85.1% 84.6%

N
H

SE

17/18 Plan Performance % 81.40% 81.73% 82.70% 80.80% 81.83%

17/18 Actual Waiting < 62 days 106 113 137 356

Constitution 2017/18 17/18 Actual Total Waiting 131 140 155 426

85.00% 17/18 Actual Performance % 80.92% 80.71% 88.39% - 83.57%

B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

Cancer - All cancer 62 

day urgent referral to 

first treatment wait

A
C

TU
A

L

E.B.5 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

14/15 Total Seen within 4 hours 24701 24681 23415 22654 95451

14/15 Total Attendances 26236 25697 25512 25145 102590

14/15 Baseline 4hr % 94.15% 96.05% 91.78% 90.09% 93.04%

15/16 Total Seen within 4 hours 23942 23566 21645 19782 88935

15/16 Total Attendances 26087 25955 26104 26444 104590

15/16 Baseline 4hr % 91.78% 9.20% 82.92% 74.81% 85.03%

16/17 Total Seen within 4 hours 20378 20177 19276 14864 74695

16/17 Actual Total Attends 26119 26046 26003 20214 98382

16/17 Actual 4hr % 78.02% 77.47% 74.13% 74.81% 75.92%

17/18 Total Seen within 4 hours 21072 23530 22981 67583

17/18 Actual Total Attends 26689 28092 29012 83793

95% 17/18 Actual 4hr % 78.95% 83.76% 79.21% - 80.65%

A&E Waiting times - 

Total time in the A&E 

department

AED 4hr Performance (STHK Trust) Type 1 

B
A

SE
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N
ES

A
C

TU
A

L



     

 
 Page 33  

 
 

 

 
 
 
Table 10 - Dementia 

 
 
 

Internal assurance in relation to CCG performance related to the NHSE assurance 
process 

Oversight of performance falls within the remit of the Quality and Performance Committee 
(QPC).  The QPC oversees constitutional performance and IAF performance. The QPC 
receive regular reports relating to both constitutional and IAF performance. This includes, by 
exception, progress with the action plan for any off target indicators as well as more in depth 
reports relating to areas where there may be concerns or further assurance required. The QPC 
routinely reviews delivery against Operational Plan targets scrutinising a different area at each 
meeting on a cyclical basis. Governing Body receives a performance summary which includes 
key constitutional measures, IAF and quality premium performance as well as any “hot topics” 
in that month. The Governing Body discusses performance and reviews key performance 
indicators, by exception, at each meeting as well as maintaining oversight around CCG 
assurance. 
 
The CCG has continued to embed robust performance reporting during 2017/18. A wide range 
of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are reported and managed across several committees 
and groups. The purpose is that these will further direct and support effective decision making 
and provide a basis for evidencing delivery against strategic objectives and compliance with 
mandated requirements. As part of the development of the Local Care System the CCG is 
working in partnership with the wider system to develop an integrated performance dashboard 
which will be used to assess how well the overall system is achieving key shared outcomes 
and targets. 
 
The CCG has further developed practice level performance information which is scrutinised at 
the Primary Care Committee and as part of a wider admissions avoidance project has  
 

E.A.S.1 Qtr1 Qtr2 Qtr3 Qtr4 Total

2014-15 Register (DPCv3 Method) 1,523 1,576 1,731 1,793 1,793

2014-15 Estimated Prevalence 2,264 2,275 2,287 2,298 2,298

2014-15 Diagnosis Rate % 67.3% 69.3% 75.7% 78.0% 78.0%

2015-16 Register (CFASii Method) 1,851 1,889 1,898 1,895 1,895

2015-16 Estimated Prevalence 2,076 2,076 2,076 2,077 2,077

2015-16 Diagnosis Rate % PLAN 89.2% 91.0% 91.4% 91.2% 91.2%

2016-17 Register (CFASii Method) 1,925 1,942 1,934 1,906 1,906

2016-17 Estimated Prevalence 2,131 2,131 2,131 2,131 2,131

2016-17 Diagnosis Rate % Actual 90.33% 91.13% 90.76% 89.44% 89.44%

2017-18 Register (CFASii Method) 1,914 1,891 1,861 1,914

2017-18 Estimated Prevalence 2,315 2,315 2,315 2,315

77% 2017-18 Diagnosis Rate % Actual 82.68% 81.68% 80.39% - 82.68%

B
A

SE
LI

N
ES

Dementia - Estimated 

Diagnosis Rate %

National Target: 

A
C

TU
A

L

Dementia
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produced practice level information on the use of urgent care services. This information has 
been used to inform visits to those practices which may appear to be outliers. Following the  
 
visits, which were overall well received, a clear action plan has been agreed to drive 
improvements. 
 
A range of dashboards continue to be produced for specific subject areas such as Improving 
Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT),  Care Homes and Falls which helps to ensure that 
performance is closely monitored and that any issues are quickly identified and resolved. 
Through the Urgent Care Operational Group joint working with NHS Knowsley and NHS Halton 
CCGs has led to a performance pack being developed to inform local decision making around 
urgent care services on the patch. Other reports allow the success of new initiatives such as 
the RMS to be tracked and reviewed and for the borough population to be risk stratified. Other 
sources of useful data continue to be investigated and developed including data from GP 
practice systems. 
 
Aristotle* and the full Business Intelligence Service being delivered by Midlands and 
Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit (MLCSU) have been implemented fully.  Aristotle 
gives GPs the ability to identify patients at high risk of hospitalisation to enable them to 
intervene and support them to remain safely at home. This product is supporting the Risk 
Stratification work stream of St Helens Cares allowing practices to identify those patients who 
may benefit for example from social prescribing initiatives.  
 
The CCG has worked jointly with the Local Authority on the development of a dashboard 
relating to Special Educational Needs (SEN) to help support staff working in this area. 
 
A central Corporate Repository has been developed during 2017/18 with MLCSU. The 
repository gives the CCG a single place that holds all performance indicators that the CCG is 
monitored on including the IAF and Quality Premium. It acts as a central source of 
performance information to be held alongside action plans from commissioning and project 
leads. The repository also assists with NHSE requests for intelligence and in providing 
commentary to support performance reporting to CCG committees.  

 
Performance outlook: Quarter 4 2017/18 and into 2018/19 
In relation to constitutional targets for 2017/18 and the outlook for 2018/19 the key 
performance issues, by exception and as reflected in the tables above, are:  
 
Accident and Emergency Department (AED) waits – the constitutional target is that 95% of 
all patients, regardless of presenting condition, should be admitted, transferred or discharged 
from the AED within 4 hours of their arrival. Based on performance to February 2018 the CCG 
had failed this target achieving 90.7% performance.  AED access targets are a national system 
issue due to the level of demand on the system currently. This is recognised by NHSE in the 
planning guidance for 2018/19 which asks the NHS to target recovery against this measure by 
31 March 2019. The CCG continues to work very closely with key providers, mainly St Helens 
and Knowsley Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust, to ensure that plans to recover and achieve the 
target in 2018/19 are met. Nationally performance against this target has been below plan. 
There is an AED Board in place for the wider health economy and locally an Urgent Care 
Operational Group. Developments in year have included continuation of funding for the  
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provision of a GP working in the AED department to look after patients and help the Trust with 
the waiting time standard. Over winter the CCG also funded a GP to work in the Walk in 
Centre. The CCG also enhanced the ROTA Single Point of Access (SPA) to divert more  
 
patients away from AED to suitable alternatives and a Clinical Assessment Services operated 
in conjunction with NHS 111 resulted in increased deflections from AED. The Clinical Quality 
and Performance Group related to the Trust maintain oversight of all key performance targets 
and ensure that measures are taken to ensure that quality and safety is not compromised for 
patients when AED is under the extreme pressure that has been experienced this winter. 
 
Ambulance services performance - Ambulance services for St Helens are commissioned 
from North West Ambulance Service (NWAS). In August 2017 NWAS implemented the new 
national Ambulance Response Programme (ARP) which marked a fundamental change in the 
way in which 999 calls are handled and responded to. During the implementation performance 
reporting to CCGs was significantly disrupted and NWAS found the implementation of ARP 
very challenging in terms of response times against the new national standards.  
 
The new standards set a target mean response for the most urgent Category 1 calls of 7 
minutes and for Category 2 calls of 18 minutes.  For St Helens CCG based on performance to 
the end of December 2017 performance fell significantly short of these standards at 9.41 
minutes for Category 1 calls (NWAS Category 1 mean 10.09 minutes) and at 31.43  minutes 
for Category 2 calls (NWAS Category 2 mean 30.53). It should be noted that like many parts of 
the NHS NWAS experienced a significant rise in demand in December 2017 with call volumes 
12.1% above plan, NWAS are also reporting a higher level of patient acuity and increasing 
turnaround times at Acute hospital. 
 
The need for rapid improvement is apparent and North West commissioning CCGs, together 
with NHSE and NHSI have required NWAS to draw up a comprehensive recovery plan and 
performance improvement trajectory. This includes actions to improve call taking, dispatch of 
vehicles, operational response resources and a review of future demand and capacity 
planning. NWAS is also undertaking with commissioners a full review of all aspects of quality 
and safety, including serious incidents and complaints. This will form part of the agreed 
recovery plan going forward into 2018/19. 
 
Cancer waits 62 days – this standard requires that patients wait no longer than 62 days from 
urgent GP referral to first definitive treatment for cancer. The target is to achieve 85%. The 
CCG has not consistently achieved this target each month in 2017/18; based on cumulative 
performance to February 2018 the CCG had achieved 83.8 %. The CCG Clinical Lead (GP) 
reviews all breaches of the 62 day standard on a case by case basis with provider clinicians. 
The purpose is to identify and address any themes and to improve and speed up the patient 
pathway. During 2017/18 the CCG has escalated its head and neck cancer breaches to NHSE 
to seek a wider system solution, Patient Trackers have been recruited to the Acute Trust to 
manage patients on cancer pathways and work is being undertaken to identify patients for 
escalation at the diagnostic stage to speed the pathway. This remains a key target for 2018/19 
and the CCG, working through its Cancer Action Group (CAG) will continue to strive to 
consistently achieve the target 
 
Mixed Sex Accommodation Breaches – there is a requirement for CCGs to minimise 
breaches. During a sustained period of pressure over winter 2017/18 requiring exceptional  
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efforts at local Acute Trusts to maximise the bed base and including the use of escalation 
areas/beds NHSE did relax the MSA standard. The CCG recorded 9 MSA breaches to 
February 2018 which is 2 more than the previous year. The CCG will work with providers to 
review the exact nature of each breach and take action to try to avoid any repetition in 
2018/19. 
 
Improved Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) Access rate – The CCG has not 
consistently achieved the IAPT access rate each month in 2017/18 although it is currently 
achieving the IAPT recovery rate. NHSE has increased the access target from 15% to 16.8% 
for 2017/18 and the target will increase again in 2018/19 to 19%. During March 2018 the CCG 
invited the NHSE IAPT Intensive Support Team (IST) into the CCG to work with 
commissioners and the provider to improve performance. The final report is awaited however 
the CCG was assured from feedback received that the service offered to patients is a good 
service with much evidence of good practice. Following receipt of the report the CCG will work 
with the provider to address any recommended actions which will help to achieve the target in 
2018/19. 
 
The CCG will aim to continue to maintain current good performance in relation to the dementia 
diagnosis rate which was 80.39% for quarter 3 2017/18 against a national target of 77%. 
 
In 2017/18 the CCG managed to continue to achieve the NHS referral to treatment time 
constitution standard in that 92% of patients on non-emergency pathways wait no more than 
18 weeks from referral to treatment. Cumulatively to quarter 3 the CCG had achieved 93.31% 
against this standard. 
 
The CCG Operational Plan 
The CCG was required to submit a two year Operational Plan for 2017-19 to NHSE in 
December 2016. Following publication of the 5 Year Forward View (5YFV) reset document the 
CCG produced an addendum to its Operational Plan which was approved in June 2017 taking 
into account revised guidance from NHSE. As well as defining the performance targets for the 
CCG, noted above, the Operational Plan covers the nine ‘must dos’ outlined in the NHSE 
planning guidance which are underpinned by a range of performance metrics (including the 
IAF) and targets related to outcomes in key areas. In summary, the plan sets out an ambition 
to meet key constitutional targets and other objectives relating to:  
 

 Supporting Delivery of the Cheshire and Merseyside Health and Care Partnership  

 Delivery of key financial control totals to be agreed with NHSE 

 Implementation of the GP 5 Year Forward View 

 Delivery of access standards for AED and ambulance waits 

 Delivery of the NHS constitution standard for referral to treatment times 

 Delivery of cancer waiting standards and improving survival rates 

 Mental health access rates and dementia diagnosis rates 

 Transforming care for people with Learning Disabilities 

 Improving quality in commissioned services. 
  

NHSE has recently issued further planning guidance for 2018/19, the second year of the 
Operational Plan. The CCG has therefore reviewed its plan in relation to the following key 
priority areas for 2018/19; 
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 Mental Health 

 Cancer 

 Primary Care 

 Urgent and Emergency Care 

 Learning Disabilities 

 Maternity 
 

CCG officers have reviewed this latest planning guidance to provide assurance that CCG plans 
meet NHSE requirements and to produce a second addendum to the Operational Plan for 
2018/19 which will be approved by the Governing Body at its April 2018 meeting. This will 
ensure that the plans remain current and fit for purpose. The Quality and Performance 
Committee will continue to oversee performance against Operational Plan targets and 
outcomes. 
 
Key challenges in relation to CCG performance going into 2018/19 
The following areas of performance are likely to pose the most significant challenge for the 
CCG looking ahead to 2018/19.  
 

 Finance and the delivery of the CCG’s financial control total agreed with NHSE 

 Healthcare Acquired Infections/Antimicrobial resistance – there is a zero tolerance 
approach to MRSA infections this can be related to performance in relation to anti-
microbial resistance and prescribing of antibiotics 

 Accident and emergency four hour wait – this is a whole system issue. The CCG works 
closely to assist and support through the AED Delivery Board and other more local 
partnership arrangements 

 Ambulance response times – the introduction of revised response standards during 
2017/18 has proved challenging for the North West Ambulance Service to achieve and 
there is an action plan in place and underway to improve performance 

 Increasing Access to Psychological Therapies – there are increasingly challenging targets 
set nationally for CCGs in relation to access this may pose a financial as well as a 
performance issue going into 2018/19 

 Cancer targets – consistently achieving the 62 day target continues to be a key challenge 
for the CCG  

 Primary Care – dealing with workforce challenges and implementing the plans relating to 
extended access and the wider GP5YFV 

 Reducing reliance on urgent care attendances and admissions to secondary care 
services. 

 
St Helens Cares – Transforming Care through Integration 
St Helens faces significant challenges to improving outcomes for its residents and reducing the 

unsustainable levels of demand experienced by health care 
and community services in the borough. Expectations of 
public services and complex population health and social 
care needs, combined with constrained public funding, have 
resulted in an unprecedented affordability challenge for the 
borough, with a forecast health and care deficit of 
approximately £100m by 2020/21 if action is not taken. 
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In order to address the complexity and fragmentation of the current system, the navigation 
challenges this presents to its users, and the duplication (and associated costs), system 
leaders have made the decision to work in partnership to design a new, integrated model for St 
Helens, St Helens Cares.  
 
In the St Helens People’s Plan, the People’s Board agreed to bring together the work of the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Board and the Community Safety Partnership to create a Local 
Care System (LCS). The partnership has a shared vision of “improving the lives of people in St 
Helens together by tackling the challenge of cost and demand.” 
 
The St Helens LCS recognises that in order to achieve sustained improvement in population 
outcomes whilst achieving system financial balance, significant change is required in the 
relationship between system partners to create a place based health, care and community 
model, and between services and local people to foster a culture of independence, resilience 
and self-care. 
 
During 2017/18 significant work has been undertaken to progress the shared vision and to 
implement the Local Care System. A few significant milestones include; 
 

 The creation and recruitment to a Joint (CCG/LA) post of Strategic Executive Director 
People’s Services and Clinical Accountable Officer of the CCG 

 The initiation of work to develop a Lead Provider model for the borough 

 Approval of a business case to develop a Shared Care Record for the Borough 

 Significant progress on implementing the St Helens Cares Target Operating Model 
 
Looking forward to 2018/19 the CCG is developing a Clinical and Support Strategy to build on 
the positive progress made by partners in St Helens in integrating services through genuine 
collaboration. The vision is that clinical and other social, community and wellbeing services will 
operate across four St Helens Localities; 
 

 St Helens South 

 St Helens North 

 St Helens Central 

 Newton and Haydock 
 
Working in partnership agreed strategic outcomes have been developed for the borough 
 

 People in our community will independently improve and maintain their own health and 
wellbeing as much as possible living longer, healthier lives 

 Our community will have access to a health and care system that is financially 
sustainable 

 Our healthcare, community and voluntary services contribute to the increase in 
aspiration, education and reducing poverty 

 When support is needed people will have positive experiences of services 

 People who use health, care and community services will receive a good quality of care 
and support, and are safe from  harm 

 Our community is resilient and people are empowered to self-manage and to be as 
independent as possible 



     

 
 Page 39  

 
 

 

 Our communities feel safe in the knowledge 
that partners work together to improve safety in their communities 

  
All of these strategic outcomes have been written with the focus on one of the borough’s four 
key priorities – developing a sustainable health and social care system – and all are pertinent 
to the three remaining strategic objectives for the borough as a whole. These are; 
 

 Raising ambition and achieving aspirations 

 Growing the economy 

 Being connected 

 
The unique feature of the approach to health and wellbeing taken in St Helens is that as well 
as focussing on the traditional areas of health and social care, the St Helens Cares model 
incorporates a wide range of other partners.  In accordance with best practice and international 
research there is a very strong focus on housing and the involvement of a range of community 
partners.  All services are wrapped around the individual. 
 
Sustainable development in the context of health and care  
For health and care the precedent is even higher. Quite simply, social and environmental 
factors impact on a person’s health and wellbeing. By limiting negative impacts, or promoting 
positive ones, the need for the treatment of health conditions and care needs can be reduced. 
In turn, this can release pressure on the health service as a whole – leading to a more 
sustainable healthcare system.  
 
This approach is set out clearly in the National Sustainability Strategy for Health and Care1 

which defines the requirements on the health and care system to incorporate sustainable 
development into its ethos. It describes a sustainable health and care system being achieved 
by ‘delivering high quality care and improved public health without exhausting natural 
resources or causing severe ecological damage’. 
 
The vision of sustainable health and care: 
'A sustainable health and care system works within the available environmental and social 
resources protecting and improving health now and for future generations. This means working 
to reduce carbon emissions, minimising waste & pollution, making the best use of scarce 
resources, building resilience to a changing climate and nurturing community strengths and 
assets.' 
 

Transport Plan for Growth  
With the creation of the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority there was a need to bring 
together the existing Merseyside Local Transport Plans to support economical growth, 
regeneration and carbon reduction.  
 
 
 

                                                
1
 Sustainable, Resilient, Healthy People and Places – A Sustainable Development Strategy for the NHS, Public Health 

and Social Care System’  

 

http://www.sduhealth.org.uk/policy-strategy/engagement-resources.aspx
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The Transport Plan for Growth will support the Liverpool City Region Growth Plan and outlines 
a £1.7billion investment in transport and highways infrastructure improvements over the next 
six years.   
 
The plan will also support the City Region-wide work being undertaken including: 

 

 Freight and Logistics 

 Housing and Land-use Planning 

 Economic Development and Regeneration 

 Employment and Skills 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Carbon Reduction and Air Quality 

 Connecting Communities 

 Visitor Economy 
 
The CCG is committed to the objectives outlined in The Transport Plan for Growth, and have 
signed up to the Employers Network, coordinated by Merseytravel to support a range of 
initiatives. 
 

Sustainable Estates 
The CCG has developed its estates strategy throughout 2017/18 to ensure that estates can act 
as an enabler to the transformation of care across St Helens. The aim of St Helens Cares is to 
ensure that as many people as possible are treated outside of a hospital setting where this is 
appropriate. This means ensuring that health and care facilities across the borough are 
adequate to meet this demand and utilised as efficiently as possible.  
 
During 2017/18, the CCG has been able to dispose of 2 surplus properties that were not 
suitable for the ongoing needs of the borough, by better utilising the purpose built and modern 
facilities offered within premises such as Newton Clinic and Lowe House. 
 
This is expected to continue throughout 2018/19 and the CCG has developed its Strategic 
Estates Group to ensure that all health and care partners are represented. This group has 
developed a map of all properties that health and social care are delivered from across the 
borough. This map will allow the CCG to better plan for the estate required for not only current 
but future health and care delivery across St Helens. 

 
Improve quality  
 
Quality, Safety and Patient Experience 
 
The CCG is responsible for commissioning a wide range of services for local people in 
partnership with our local authority, St Helens Council.  We are accountable to our population 
for improving both health outcomes and the quality of primary care. We recognise that people 
use health care in times of need, when they may be at their most vulnerable; as such it is 
crucial that all care is delivered in a safe environment, by skilled and competent clinicians who 
treat people with compassion and respect.   
 
 

https://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery/Pages/Transport-Plan-for-Growth.aspx
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The delivery of high quality service provision is of paramount importance as care becomes 
increasingly complex.  As commissioners we understand and recognise that care is rarely the 
responsibility of the individual organisation, but of the health and social care system as a 
whole. In accepting system-wide responsibility we recognise that the patient care journey cuts  
 
 
across primary and secondary care, health and social care; that it links with public health 
services and involves multiple professional groups.   
 
At a strategic level, our commitment to quality permeates our work as a CCG and our key 
partnership with St Helens Peoples Board.  We are committed to working with our member 
general practices and partnership organisations to create the conditions and the environment 
which allows quality to prevail and ensures that the interests of patients always come first. 
 
How do we know services we commission are high quality? 
 
The CCG ensures it has robust systems in place to continuously monitor quality across 
commissioned services. As part of contractual processes with providers Clinical Quality and 
Performance Group (CQPG) are held with each acute, community and mental health provider 
organisation and are chaired by a senior CCG representative. The focus of CQPG and our 
internal quality and performance committee is on quality assurance and it provides an 
opportunity to review and monitor areas for improvement, highlighting and sharing good 
practice. It also allows for challenge and support if areas of concern arise.  
 
The Care Quality commission (CQC) monitor, inspect and regulate services to make sure they 
meet fundamental standards of quality and safety and they publish what they find, including 
performance ratings to help people choose care. The CCG, commission care from one Acute 
Hospitals, two Mental Health providers and two Community Services Healthcare Trust all of 
which have been inspected by the Regulator in 2016 and 2017. Any areas with amber ratings 
have a robust action plan in place that is monitore 
 
Table 11 Outlines the CQC rating of the providers we commission 

Provider Trust SAFE EFFECTIVE CARING RESPONSIVE WELL LED 

St Helens & Knowsley 
Hospitals Trust (2016) 

  
 

  

Bridgewater Community 
Hospitals Trust (2017) 

     

North West Boroughs 
Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust (2016) 

     

Lancashire Care NHS 
Foundation Trust (2016) 

     

NB  Outstanding 
 
Infection control 
The CCG has a responsibility to ensure that systems and processes are in place to support the 
management, prevention and control of Health Care Associated Infections (HCAI).  
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We continue to work in partnership with all of our providers and have made progress in 
improving the systems and processes of reporting and investigating the number of healthcare-
acquired infections. 
 
The CCG consistently meets access targets for both diagnostic tests and treatment targets. 
 
Table 12 – Infection control figures 2017/18 

Healthcare Associated Infections 
(HCAI) 

End of year figure % Reduction on previous 
year 

Clostridium Difficle (C. Diff) 61 19 

Methicillin-resistant 
Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) 

2 60 

Gran Negative Blood Stream 
Infections (GNBSI) 

193 4 

 
There have been a small number of MRSA cases, these are in-line with numbers seen in 
previous years and are isolated cases not linked to each other. The CCG chairs the CDiff 
review panel that reviews CDiff cases from across the Health economy to identify themes and 
trends that will help inform learning.   
 
The CCG led the GNBSI collaborative across mid Mersey that brought together local 
commissioners, local providers and public health. The outcome being a reduction in the figures 
for St Helens and sharing practice and innovation. 
 
Antimicrobial Resistance 
In the UK, 80% of antibiotic prescribing occurs in primary care. Antimicrobial resistance is the 
ability of microbes to resist the effects of drugs – that is, the germs are not killed, and their 
growth is not stopped. Infections with resistant organisms are difficult to treat, requiring costly 
and sometimes toxic alternatives. 
 
The inappropriate use of antibiotics is related to bacterial resistance. Primary care prescribers 
can tackle resistance, keep antibiotics effective and prevent healthcare acquired infections by: 

 Only prescribing antibiotics when necessary 

 Following antimicrobial prescribing guidelines 

 Prescribing antibiotics only in response to a symptomatic or microbiologically proven 
diagnosis and not patient expectation 

 Advising patients on the risks of inappropriate antibiotic use 

 Avoiding use of high-risk antibiotics where possible (especially in elderly high risk 
patients) 
 

The CCG has continued to work with Primary Care prescribers and other providers regarding 
effective Antimicrobial Stewardship and appropriate prescribing of antimicrobials. This has 
been in a number of ways during 2017/18: 
 

 Inclusion of antimicrobial prescribing within the 2017/18 Prescribing Incentive Scheme 
including 

 A reduction in the Trimethoprim: Nitrofurantoin prescribing ratio (CCG target is 10% 
reduction) 
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 A reduction in the number of Trimethoprim 
items prescribed to patients aged 70 years or greater (CCG target is a 10% reduction) 

 A reduction in overall antibacterial items per STAR-PU (CCG target is to reduce to the 
national mean or lower)  

  
We have embedded a local Antimicrobial Group which has GP representation that provides 
high level advice and decision making with regards to the overall approach to optimising 
antimicrobial use and specific strategies to improve prescribing across St Helens. 
Inclusion of antimicrobial prescribing in GP practice visits; 
 

 Update of the local antimicrobial prescribing guidelines as per pan Mersey guidance 

 Two facilitated Protected Learning Time (PLT) sessions 

 Improving the patient experience  
 
The Patient Experience & Involvement Group (PEIG) reports to the Quality Committee and has 
the responsibility of reviewing and scrutinising consultation, engagement and involvement work 
programmes across the CCG. They should act as a critical friend to the work providing 
practical advice and support were required.  
 
A Patient Story is heard at every Governing Body meeting to enable patients, their carers and 
families have an opportunity to discuss their experience and the Governing Body members 
have the opportunity to make recommendations for change as a result and to celebrate good 
experience stories. 
 
Continuing Healthcare (CHC) 
NHS continuing healthcare is awarded depending on whether a person's primary need is a 
health need. It can be provided in a range of settings, including residential or nursing care or 
someone's own home. 
 
In October 2007 the Department of Health produced new guidance that sets out a system for 
deciding eligibility for NHS continuing healthcare. This is called the National framework for 
NHS continuing healthcare and NHS-funded nursing care. The Framework sets out the factors 
that are considered to decide whether someone meets the criteria for NHS continuing 
healthcare. 
 
The CCG has a fully integrated CHC team with the local Authority. The team consists of both 
registered nurses and social workers. The Team is highly skilled with a focus on patient 
focussed assessment and care needs, ensuring a decision about eligibility is made in over 
89% of cases within 28 days against a national target of 80%.  
 
A full systematic review of the processes over the last 12 months have resulted in improved 
experiences for those receiving CHC and has resulted in very few disputes compared to local 
and national data. The disputes we have received have been resolved locally without the need 
for independent review. 
 
Care homes 
The CCG has recognised the importance of working with its Care Homes to ensure quality 
care for our patients. Over the past year, successes have included: 
 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-framework-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care
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 Using the Enhanced Health in Care Homes framework which is based on a suite of 
evidenced based interventions which are designed to be delivered within and around a 
care home in a coordinated manner in order to support and make a difference to the 
lives of residents 
 

 We have introduced the React to Red pressure ulcer prevention initiative 

 Introduction of the Red Bag scheme which supports the transfer of patient 
documentation on admission to hospital and supports early discharges from hospital 
using patient real time information 

 Medicines Optimisation initiative which ensures residents medication is reviewed 
regularly, safely and reduces waste. 

 
The CCG works closely with the local authority quality monitoring team and a key objective of 
the team’s remit is to work with managers and staff to raise awareness and ensure that care 
standards are safe and effective, driven by compassion and delivered with respect and dignity, 
with staff supported to build on their skills. All homes receive regular reviews of their standards 
of care.  The CCG recognises the hard work and dedication of local Nursing Homes and 
continues to support the maintenance and development of quality care by encouraging 
transparency and by maintaining good relationships. 
 
Safeguarding  
The organisation’s principle philosophy, for children and adult safeguarding, is: “safeguarding 
is everybody’s business”. All staff members have a responsibility to raise and act upon any 
concerns.  
 
The CCG includes safeguarding within all its commissioning intentions and specifications for 
NHS contracted providers. The organisation holds to account all provider organisations that 
hold contracts with the CCG regarding their safeguarding responsibilities and processes. The 
reporting of safeguarding issues is explicit within the Governance Framework and embedded 
into the quality reports to the Governing Body. This informs the Governing Body regularly and 
supports the continual improvement of quality and learning of lessons from incidents and 
individual experiences. 
 
The CCG underwent a comprehensive CQC inspection in relation the Children Looked After 
and Safeguarding children. The outcome of the inspection was positive and has highlighted 
some areas of improvement. 
 
Supporting quality improvement in primary medical care 
Work continues to centralise General Practices into localities supported by the GP Federation 
and integrated with, other primary, community and social care services. Health care will be 
responsive to the needs of local people and it will be accessible 7 days a week. Work is 
underway to support this through Extended Access of Primary Care medical Services 365 per 
year. Whole system re-design of Out of Hospital and Intermediate Care services is now 
established and through 2017/18 have demonstrated tangible improvements in care. We have 
also redesigned a new Frailty Service which also links into the model of locality working. 
 
 
 



     

 
 Page 45  

 
 

 

 
All CCGs have a responsibility to support the improvement of quality in primary medical care.  
The incident reporting system, has been initiated in 2017/2018 and a rollout programme 
continues across Primary Care. 
 
During 2017/2018, the Quality Team have worked with the Primary Care Team in developing a 
schedule of visits to practices to support a reduction in variation and embed quality.   
 
The Practise Nurse Forum has been a key partnership in improving; immunisations, flu 
vaccinations, infection control and developing the practice nurse workforce during 2017/18. 
The Primary Care Commissioning Committee has oversight of these reports and is able to 
identify areas that require further analysis, and can commission pieces of work to support this 
to which the Chief Nurse is a member. 

 
Engaging people and communities  
The CCG is committed to carrying out meaningful engagement and communicating effectively 
with the local community giving people, our patients, public and partners the opportunity to be 
involved in and to influence healthcare in their local area. This enables their voices to be heard 
and their thoughts and experiences to be taken into consideration as part of NHS decision 
making.  
 
Engagement, Involvement and Communication Strategy 
The CCG reviews and updates the Communications and Engagement Strategy on an annual 
basis and it is used as a reference for work throughout the year. This strategy feeds into an 
operational work planner, ensuring consistent working across the team and links to wider 
commissioning priorities. We use robust processes in line with NHSE guidance for both 
engagement and consultation. This has ensured that the organisation understands at what 
point the engagement process should begin as part of their work planning. 
 
Throughout 2017/18 there has been significant development of St Helens Cares, which has 
become part of our integrated strategy and day to day working. To support this a 
Communications & Engagement  team and network has been developed across providers 
including health, housing, local authority, Healthwatch and  Halton & St Helens Voluntary & 
Community Action to ensure all partners are aware of requirements and are not only informed 
but involved in developing methods, communications and key messages.  
 
For St Helens Cares to be successful and understood well by the community of St Helens 
meaningful engagement is key.  A large part of our strategy has been ongoing stakeholder 
mapping and outlining relevant ways to communicate with the right stakeholders at the right 
time. Engagement plans are aligned to the work stream areas and act as enablers for change.  
 
It is recognised that in order to continue to deliver comprehensive and meaningful work within 
the Communications & Engagement team the appropriate resources were required. With the 
departure of the communications manager in November 2017, this led the CCG to commission 
specialised communications and engagement support from NHS Midlands and Lancashire 
Commissioning Support Unit. This resource has worked with the CCG to develop a strategic 
plan in line the CCGs priorities. This plan has formed into the teams operational work plan, 
acting as a live tool to plan, monitor and deliver meaningful engagement and effective 
communications 
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Case Studies  
The following outlines some examples and case studies of the engagement and consultation 
work carried out in 2017/18 for the borough of St Helens.  
 

Area Outline of work carried out 

Stroke 
Redesign 

Following a review of stroke services across Warrington, Halton, St Helens and 
Knowsley by commissioners working closely with provider trusts (Warrington 
and Halton NHS Foundation Trust and St Helens and Knowsley Teaching 
Hospital Trust) and with the support of the Stroke Association, changes to 
stroke services were outlined. 
 
The overall vision for stroke services across the Mid Mersey footprint was to 
have a single hyper-acute unit based at Whiston Hospital for Warrington, 
Halton, St Helens and Knowsley patients.   
 
NHS St Helens CCG, NHS Warrington CCG and NHS Halton CCG undertook 
a 12 week engagement exercise on the above change.  The aim of the 
engagement was to gather people’s views on any impact of the changes, as 
the change being implemented was due to clinical effectiveness, safety and 
quality of outcomes for patients an engagement exercise was adequate.   
 
In summary, for St Helens specifically, the engagement activity consisted of 
attendance at two public events, including a specific event facilitated by the 
Stroke Association, presented at a number of Third Sector groups and 
presented at clinical or stakeholder meetings.  
 
Information was sent to key stakeholders including all GPs, MPs, all 
Councillors, Joint Health and Wellbeing Board and provider organisations, over 
1200 Third Sector organisations via Halton and St Helens VCA, the CCGs 
‘membership scheme’ approximately 500 members,  Healthwatch database 
(1200+) and Patient Participation Groups, totalling over 2500 members of the 
public and representatives of Third Sector Organisations.  
 
Information was sent and displayed at GP practices across the town, 
outpatients and health clinics, libraries and public buildings including 
community centres, Citizen Advice Bureau waiting area and through the Stroke 
Association networks. 
 
In regards to the media, there were two press releases that were issued to the 
local media, including the St Helens Star and the St Helens Reporter, and 
information was published on the CCG website.  
 
Through the engagement the public were in support of the changes, with some 
specific issues being highlighted, including capacity concerns at Whiston 
Hospital. All concerns regarding this were mitigated throughout the process, 
engaging with clinicians for responses and sharing with the public throughout.   
 
In addition, communications including patient briefings, an explanation of the 
changes and provision of relevant information through FAQs when the full 
changes are implemented in 2018.   
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Reviewing 
your local 
policies 
(Criteria 
Based 
Clinical 
Treatments)  
 

In 2017 the CCG worked with other local CCGs to carry out a review of local 
health policies. The review took place to give patients the right treatment, in the 
right place at the right time. The CCG engaged with the local community on the 
policies and attended a number of events to gain views and thoughts on more 
than a 100 policies, the policies were available in a number of different formats 
to ensure everyone within the local community can have their say.  
 
The outcomes of Phase 1 and 2 have been reported to Governing Bodies, 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC), Third sector and the community who 
got involved and available in an easy read format on our website.  
 

Primary 
Care 
Extended 
Hours  
 

The CCG will implement Improved Access to General Medical Practice 
ensuring routine appointments are available outside core hours 365 days per 
year. 
 
Engagement with both clinicians and the local community was carried out to 
better understand the needs of those using and working within primary care 
services. Tools used for this engagement included surveys (online and hard 
copy), drop in sessions, social media and local media promotion.  
 
Highlights of responses include; 

 Most people would prefer to go to the GP on a Saturday instead of 
Sunday 

 The most favourable time was between 9.30am-12pm on weekends and 
between 6pm-8pm on weekdays 

 Most people were willing to travel to other areas of the borough to 
access ‘out of hours’ primary care 
 

The full results from the engagement work was collated and shared with the 
primary care team to inform decision making about how the extended hours will 
be fulfilled.  
 

Cardiology 
and 
Respiratory  
 

As part of the cardiology and respiratory service review engagement took place 
with patients and carers who are currently accessing or have previously 
accessed the service. The engagement team engaged with patients, 
consultants and GPs to review the service in full. Mechanisms used include 
surveys, focus groups and attending existing meetings to discuss experiences.  
 
As a result of the commissioners review and feedback from the engagement 
work, the following changes are being made to the service; 
 
One combined service, co-located 

 Additional Nurse prescribers – reducing pressures on consultants 

 Extended hours of service – reducing the amount of time patients are 
having to take off from work 

 Clear and simple pathways – reducing both clinician and patient 
confusion 

 Robust clinical supervision – better linking consultants with GPs to 
support decision making 
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 Community consultant let outreach clinics wrapped around the 4 locality 
teams – making treatment more accessible and closer to home 

 
In addition, a comprehensive review and a workshop with stakeholders 
concluded that a redesign and procurement was needed to make the service 
improvements the CCG were looking for.  Using information gathered the 
specification went out to tender in September 2017 and St Helens and 
Knowsley Trust was successful in this process and the contract was awarded 
in December 2017.  
 
A mobilisation team has met every 2 weeks to oversee the service transfer and 
the service was safely taken over the Hospital on April 1st. Ongoing service 
operational meetings will take place. 
 
More information on further work and examples of summary reports can be 
found at https://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/consultation-and-
engagement-opportunities/ 
 

Talkfest – 
Winter 
 

In 2017 the CCG made a commitment to carry out a series of engagement 
events throughout 2017/18 called Talkfest. The aim is to continuously engage 
with the local community of St Helens, providing people with the opportunity to 
share experiences, thoughts and ideas with the CCG, as well as the providing 
the CCG with the opportunity to share key messages and gain insight into the 
public and patients to support the development of local healthcare and inform 
future plans. 

 

Talkfest was launched in September 2017 at the CCGs AGM and the first 
event was held in January 2018 focusing on the following: 
 

 Antibiotics – over use and explanation of antibiotic resistance 

 Urgent Care – what the options are for urgent care in the area  
 

Throughout the week the team engaged with just over 1000 people face to face 
and a further 1500 people via social media channels aged from 15-95 years. 
 
Events took place in a variety of settings throughout the week including, 
Workplaces, schools, colleges, bingo hall, St Helens Hospital, Walk in Centre. 
The week came to a close with a public debate with key senior leaders sitting 
on the panel answering questions from members of the public.  
 
The outcomes of this event can be found in a report on the public website. 
https://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/talkfest-winter-january-2018/  
 

.  
Closing the Feedback Loop and Channels of communication 
Engaging with the entire community of St Helens and ensuring that those who take part in 
activities are informed of outcomes is essential to successful engagement work. Therefore, we 
use the following mechanisms to make sure that we close the feedback loop.  
 

https://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/consultation-and-engagement-opportunities/
https://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/consultation-and-engagement-opportunities/
https://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/talkfest-winter-january-2018/
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 Partnerships and networks – Using our 
network and partnerships to share information, health messages and encourage 
feedback ensures a wider reach to the community.   

 Easy read reports – Using easy read style reports to feedback on outcomes from 
engagement and consultation work makes information accessible to all.  

 Newsletter – ENGAGE – Monthly communications to our membership network gives a 
regular opportunity for those registered to keep up to date with the latest opportunities to 
get involved.  

 CCG Public facing website  - In September 2017, the CCG launched a new public 
facing website, providing a more accessible and functional site. 

 Social media - Social Media has become a more prominent tool for the CCG to use to 
share information and monitor response and feedback. Using both Facebook and 
Twitter, we promote national campaigns, local health messages and give the public the 
opportunity to get involved and have their say.  

 Surveys – Using surveys can be a great way for us to collect a large amount of both 
qualitative and quantitative data and supports us in monitoring our commitment to 
engaging with a wide variety of groups.  

 Focus Groups, Meetings and Events - The CCG both organise and attend a number 
of groups, meetings and events across the borough to showcase the work we do and 
ensure people have an opportunity to get involved and have their say on our work 
areas.  

 Media - The CCG work closely with local and national media to keep them informed of 
our work as well as responding to enquiries regarding local services.  

 
Patient Experience and Involvement Group (PEIG) 
The PEIG is a working group, led by the CCG’s Lay Member, which works to the Quality and 
Performance Committee. The group supports and advises on borough wide engagement 
initiatives and their key work areas are reflective of and relevant to the delivery of the CCG 
Commissioning Strategy and St Helens Health and Wellbeing Strategy. The purpose of the 
group is to ensure that local people’s voices are heard and that patient experience shapes 
CCG priorities -this includes any integrated commissioning priorities that relate to health and 
wellbeing. The group also ensures that effective channels of communication are in place to 
enable engagement with local people on CCG key priorities and to listen to and capture 
intelligence from local groups and communities.  
  
The PEIG benefits from a broad membership including a wide range of representation from the 
CCG, engagement specialists and a range of key partners notably; Healthwatch, Community 
and Voluntary Sector , St Helens Council and a representative from our Patient Participation 
Group Forum.  
  
Patient Participation Group (PPG) Forum  
NHS St Helens PPG forum is made up from representatives from PPGs across St Helens. 
PPGs are a group of people registered with a surgery who have an interest in the practice at 
which they are patients. They offer support by providing feedback aimed at helping to improve 
their practice and the health services it provides. Each PPG is run independently from the CCG 
so they can operate slightly differently but they all share the same goal which is to act as a 
patient voice. Every two months the CCG host a forum to enable all PPG reps to come 
together to share best practice, provide updates on their activity and to hear what the CCG are  
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working on. PPG representatives each have a responsibility to link back to their practices and 
feedback any lessons learnt or updates from the CCG. 
 

Engaging with our Membership 
As well as working with our local population the CCG engage, involve and communicate with 
our membership in a variety of ways including: 
 

 GP forum 

 GP Members Council   

 Protected learning time 

 Practice Managers forum 

 Practice nurse forum 

 Primary Care Bulletin  

 Webinar  
 
The CCG also introduced practice visits. These visits are made up from representation from 
the CCG including: 
 

 Medicines management  

 Quality team  

 GP Governing Body Member  
 
The visits are used as two way communication for the CCG and practices.  
 
Throughout 2017/18, the CCG reviewed the way we engage and communicate with colleagues 
within primary care. Following this review, it was agreed to trial bi-weekly webinars with 
practices. These webinars provide the opportunity for people to ask questions live and receive 
answers instantaneously.  
 
Webinars are recorded and posted on the intranet for those who may not be able to attend. 
Alongside the webinars, the Primary Care bulletin continues to be sent out bi-weekly, 
alternating with the webinars, giving the CCG and practices frequent opportunities to engage.   
 

Reducing health inequality  
Promoting equality is at the heart of everything the CCG does. We want to ensure we 
commission services fairly and no individual, community or group is left behind in the changes 
that will be made to health services to meet the challenges the NHS face. 
 
The health of people in St. Helens is generally worse than the England average. St. Helens is 
one of the 20% most deprived districts/unitary authorities in England and about 25% (8,100) of 
children live in low income families. Life expectancy for both men and women is lower than the 
England average 
 
Health inequalities  
Life expectancy is 10.2 years lower for men and 9.3 years lower for women in the most 
deprived areas of St. Helens than in the least deprived areas.  
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Child health  
In Year 6, 24.4% (386) of children are classified as obese, worse than the average for 
England. The rate of alcohol-specific hospital stays among those under 18 is 82*, worse than 
the average for England. This represents 30 stays per year. Levels of teenage pregnancy, 
GCSE attainment, breastfeeding initiation and smoking at time of delivery are worse than the 
England average.  
 
Adult health  
The rate of alcohol-related harm hospital stays is 850*, worse than the average for England. 
This represents 1,481 stays per year. The rate of self-harm hospital stays is 387*, worse than 
the average for England. This represents 670 stays per year. The rate of smoking related 
deaths is 371*, worse than the average for England. This represents 381 deaths per year. 
Estimated levels of adult excess weight and physical activity are worse than the England 
average. The rate of hip fractures is worse than average. Rates of sexually transmitted 
infections and TB are better than average. 
 
Graph 1: Life expectancy for men Graph 2: Life expectancy for women 
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Graph 3: Early deaths from all causes: men Graph 4: Early deaths from all causes: 
women 
 

 
Graph 5: Early deaths from heart disease and stroke  Graph 6: Early deaths from 
cancer 

 
 
Personal Health Budgets/Integrated Personal Commissioning 
A Personal Health Budget (PHB) is an amount of money to support a person’s individual health 
and wellbeing needs, planned and agreed between the person and their local NHS team. 
Integrated Personal Commissioning (IPC) joins up health and social care (and education) for  
 
people with complex needs. Both PHBs and IPCs are tools to support personalisation. They 
aim to give people more choice and control over the money spent on meeting their health, 
social care (and education) needs. Throughout 2017/18 the CCG made steady progress with 
the introduction of Personal Health Budgets and Integrated Personal Commissioning and 
delivery of the St Helens CCGs Local Offer. Please visit the CCG website for more information. 
https://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/1219/personal-health-budgets.pdf 
 
The number of people in receipt of this in 2017/18 is 30. This is an increase from of 42% from 
21 in 2016/17.  
 
NHS Continuing Healthcare’ (CHC) 
NHS Continuing Healthcare’ (CHC) means a package of on-going care that is arranged and 
funded solely by the NHS where the individual has been found to have a ‘primary health need’ 
as set out in the National Framework for NHS Funded Continuing Healthcare and NHS-funded 
Nursing care (DOH 2012 revised).The purpose of the National Framework is to provide a  
 

https://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/1219/personal-health-budgets.pdf
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consistent foundation for assessing; commissioning and providing CHC this is to ensure that 
there is a consistent, equitable and appropriate application of the process.  
 
The CHC Team’s overarching mission is to provide a positive eligibility assessment experience 
for all clients referred to NHS Continuing Healthcare. 
 
Key target areas:  
 

 CHC Compliance: The CHC Team will work to ensure full compliance with the National 
Framework for NHS Continuing Healthcare and NHS-funded Nursing Care; significant 
progress achieved. 

 Service Delivery: To demonstrate that more clients experience high quality, and a 
positive customer experience through feedback and regular review with individuals and 
carers. 
 

 Quality Care & Support: Build productive relationships with care providers, to shape a 
safe and thriving market that drives quality and evidence based practice. 

 Team effectiveness and Innovation: Strengthen team identity and effectiveness by 
supporting each other through service initiatives, innovation & continual professional 
development 

 
What improved key outcomes do we hope to achieve: 

 Improve access to assessment and services to improve health outcomes and reduce 
inequalities; 28 day target for assessment. 

 Less than 5% of Continuing Healthcare assessments will take place in hospital 

 Increase in personal health budgets provided to an individual to help them design and 
pay for a package of care from clinicians, giving them more control over the care 
provided. 

 Improved partnership working with St Helens CCG’s Children’s Nurse and the 
Transitional team within children’s and Adult services in the Council to provide a 
seamless transitional pathway from Children’s to adult services. 

  
Health and wellbeing 
The CCG works in partnership to ensure that the community of St Helens receive high quality, 
modern, sustainable, needs-led and cost effective care within the financial budgets available. 
We ensure that our plans fully reflect the joint priorities in the borough, through the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and-diversity/ and St 
Helens People’s Plan (from 
2017) http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/documents/s63199/MASTER%20DRAFT%20St%20H
elens%20Peoples%20Plan%202016%20-%20updated%20on%2007-03-2017.pdf underpinned 
by the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). The CCG is a key contributor to the 
development and priority setting process in relation to these strategies.   
 
In 2017/18 the CCG have worked closely with Public Health in a number of areas: 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and-diversity/
http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/documents/s63199/MASTER%20DRAFT%20St%20Helens%20Peoples%20Plan%202016%20-%20updated%20on%2007-03-2017.pdf
http://moderngov.sthelens.gov.uk/documents/s63199/MASTER%20DRAFT%20St%20Helens%20Peoples%20Plan%202016%20-%20updated%20on%2007-03-2017.pdf
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Antimicrobial Resistance  
St Helens has one of the highest rates of antibiotic prescribing in England. Although there have 
been some improvements in the use of antibiotics the variation in prescribing between 
individual GPs in St Helens is high.  
 
A local St Helens Antimicrobial Stewardship Group was established just over a year ago by 
Public Health and the CCG with representatives from key agencies across St Helens including 
Medicines Management, Infection Prevention and Control and Microbiology to address this 
issue. An associated multi-agency action plan was developed. Progress against these actions 
is monitored on a quarterly basis by the Stewardship Group. 
 
Annual Flu Programme 
Each year a multiagency Flu Action Plan led and co-ordinated by Public Health with input from 
the CCG is put in place to ensure the flu vaccine is available to all eligible populations in  
 
particular at risk groups and that the flu vaccine is widely promoted across the borough. Last 
year’s local programme ‘Give it your Best Shot’ ran in the borough from September 2017 to 
March 2018. 
 
Specific work was completed with early years settings to increase uptake amongst 2-3 year 
olds as this was particularly low in the previous year and with care home staff to increase 
vaccination levels to reduce the number of flu outbreaks in care homes. 
 
Current uptake figures up until the end of February 2018, show that in general there has been 
an improvement in uptake or uptake has remained stable for the flu vaccine across the majority 
of eligible groups including over 65s, pregnant women and preschool children, dropping slightly 
in those under 65 at risk from the same time last year. 
 
Screening and Immunisation 
NHSE commission a number of screening and immunisation programmes from a range of 
providers. Monitoring the uptake of these programmes and having oversight on how successful 
these programmes are locally is a statutory function for Public Health. 
St Helens screening and immunisation steering group lead by Public Health provides local 
oversight of this agenda with input from CCG primary care management and medicines 
management along with Public Health England and Healthwatch. The action Plan (2017/18) 
has recently been reviewed and refreshed. A key focus of work this year is increasing the 
uptake of cervical screening as this has recently shown a decline. 
 
Suicide Prevention 
Suicide Prevention is recognised as a high priority for the St Helens Peoples Board and within 
CCG's operational plan. A multi-agency Suicide Prevention Partnership including partners from 
the council, CCG, NHS providers, police and voluntary sector is now in place. A partnership 
action plan has been developed in line with national guidance for suicide prevention and the 
priorities identified in the Cheshire and Merseyside "No More" Zero Suicide Strategy. The plan 
focusses action across 4 priority themes.  
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Figure 3 The following figure outlines the four areas and examples of work happening in 
each of them. 

Prevention 

 Raising awareness of risks, including 
delivery of specific campaigns 

 Working with communities and 
workplaces to develop resilience 

 Delivery of suicide prevention training  

Safer Care 

 Maximising Community and 
Emergency Crisis Care services 

 Supporting the mental health of 
offenders 

 Developing our response to Self Harm 

 Developing a Depression Care 
Pathway 

 Adoption of 'Safer Care' steps and 
standards within NHS services 

Support after Bereavement for Suicide 

 Ensuring adequate bereavement 
services are in place 

 Developing Community Response 
plans 

 Working with the media to ensure 
sensitive and appropriate reporting 
standards around suicides 

 A memorial service for local people 
affected by suicide 

Intelligence 

 Developing a monitoring system to 
demonstrate impact of local suicide 
prevention work 

 Improving local suicide reporting and 
audit, including 'real time' reporting to 
inform local needs, risks and action 

 
We are planning to hold a joint Suicide Prevention Partnership Conference in the autumn of 
2018. 
 
Falls 
The CCG have been working closely with Public Health on the Falls agenda in a number of 
different ways: 

 Osteoporosis screening - in 2017/18 the CCG took the Falls Strategies aim of 
increasing screening for osteoporosis risk and included this within their GP Quality 
Contract. This gave General Practice guidance on osteoporosis screening as well as a 
collective screening target of 3912. In 16/17 less than 400 people received an 
osteoporosis screening. In 2017/18, 4915 people received a screening which will help 
these individuals to be aware of their risk and take steps to improve their bone health 
within the medium to long term (18 months onwards) with reductions in fractures the 
expected outcome. 

 Balance 4 Life Assessments use a specific criteria to identify and assess high risk 
people (dementia, polypharmacy, no reported falls, living at home, >50 years) using a 
multi-agency input (General Practice, Medicines Management, Contact Cares, Falls 
Prevention Team). After assessment appropriate interventions followed.  

 Frequent Faller data processes where put in place so that anyone whom presented 
more than once for a fall at hospital was captured on a data set and their general 
practitioner notified. 

 Secondary Care Engagement - The CCG has been a catalyst to consultants at 
Whiston Hospital engaging in the falls agenda and as a result of this a number of 
projects are currently being tested or are soon to be tested, such as the Falls  
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 Emergency Department Proforma (which will now be an A&E Falls Liaison Pilot); and 
the PJ Paralysis / Fit to Sit Campaign. 

 Medicine Management project to reduce or change the usage of medicines known to 
increase risk of falls. This means that medicine, such as Pregabalin, aren't used / 
prescribed as frequently. 

 The Falls Prevention Service is commissioned by both Public Health and the CCG. In 
the summer of 2017 the CCG played a significant role in reviewing this service which 
involved service and patient engagement and subsequently a number of changes to 
processes and a new approach to the Falls Prevention service being mobilised. 

o Data Dashboards - The CCG produce a comprehensive data dashboard on a 
regular basis for the falls strategy group. This details a range of things from 
hospital admissions to hip fractures and care home falls to NWAS conveyances 
to the Walk in Centre. This dashboard offers intelligence that is used to target 
interventions and to assess impact. The CCG, where requested, have also 
provided 'deep dive' data to help further provide clarity on issues and opportunity 
to improve. 

o Hospital Avoidance Car - the CCG accepted a business case to pilot a Falls 
Car. The CCG funded the pilot and supported the pilot with data analysis, advice 
and following review have subsequently commissioned a 2 year service 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Professor Sarah O’Brien 
Clinical Accountable Officer 
25th May 2018 
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT  
 
The Accountability Report outlines the CCG’s requirements and how it has met them. 
 
The Accountability Report is required to have three sections:  
 

 a Corporate Governance Report  

 a Remuneration and Staff Report  

 a Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Professor Sarah O’Brien 
Clinical Accountable Officer 
25th May 2018
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Corporate Governance Report 
Members Report 
The purpose of the Corporate Governance Report is to explain the composition and 
organisation of the CCG’s governance structures and how they support the CCG to 
achieve its objectives. This consists of: 

 A Members Report 

 Statement of Accountable Officer responsibilities 

 The Governance Statement 
 
Member practices 
At 31st March 2018, the CCG is made up of 34 GP practices within the borough:  
 
Table 13 GP Practices  

Practice Name Address 

Berrymead Medical Centre 140 Berry’s Lane, Parr, St Helens, WA9 3RP 

Bethany Medical Centre 151 Grafton St, St Helens, WA10 4GW 

Bowery Medical Centre Elephant Lane, Thatto Heath, WA9 5PR 

Central Surgery Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, Crab St, 
WA10 2DJ 

Cornerstone Surgery Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas St, WA9 1LN 

Crossroads Surgery 449 Warrington Road, Rainhill, L35 4LL 

Eccleston Medical Centre Christ Church Hall Grounds, Chapel Lane, 
Eccleston, WA10 5DA 

Four Acre Health Centre Burnage Ave, Clock Face, St Helens, WA9 4QB 

Garswood Surgery Billinge Road, Garswood, St Helens, WN4 0XD 

Hall Street Medical Centre 28-30 Hall Street, St Helens, WA10 1DW 

Haydock Medical Centre Woodside Medical Centre, St Helens, WA11 0NA 

Hollybank Surgery Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas St, WA9 1LN 

Kenneth MacRae Medical 
Centre 

32 Church Road, Rainford, St Helens, WA11 8HJ 

Lime Grove Surgery Woodside Medical Centre, St Helens, WA11 0NA 

Lingholme Health Centre Atherton Street, St Helens, WA10 2HT 

Longton Medical Centre 451 Warrington Road, Rainhill, St Helens, L35 4LL 

Mill Street Medical Centre Mill Street, St Helens, WA10 2BD 

Marshalls Cross Medical 
Centre 
(Previously known as 
Sherdley Medical Centre) 

2nd Floor, St Helens Hospital, Marshalls Cross 
Road, St Helens, WA9 3DA 

Newholme Surgery Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, Crab St, 
WA10 2DJ 

Newton Community Hospital 
Practice 

Newton Community Hospital, Bradlegh Road, 
Newton-Le-Willows, St Helens, WA12 8RB 

Newton Medical Centre 1 Belvedere Road, Newton-le-Willows WA12 0JJ 

Ormskirk House Surgery Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, Crab St, 
WA10 2DJ 

Park House Surgery Fingerpost Park Health Centre, Atlas Street, WA9 
1LN 
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Parkfield Surgery Lowe House Health Care Resource Centre, Crab St, 
WA10 2DJ 

Patterdale Lodge Medical 
Centre 

Leigh Street, Newton-Le-Willows, St Helens, WA12 
9NA 

Phoenix Medical Centre 28 Duke Street, St Helens, WA10 2JP 

Dr Rahil's Surgery 21a Old Whint Road, Haydock, WA11 0DN 

Rainbow Medical Centre 333 Robins Lane, Sutton, St Helens, WA9 3PN 

Rainford Health Centre 17 Higher Lane, Rainford, St Helens, WA11 8AZ 

Rainhill Village Surgery 529 Warrington Road, Rainhill, St Helens, L35 4LP 

Recreation Drive Surgery Recreation Drive, Billinge Near Wigan, WN5 7LY 

Sandfield Medical Centre 81 Liverpool Road, St Helens, WA10 1PN 

Spinney Medical Centre 23 Whittle Street, Toll Bar, St Helens, WA10 3EB 

Vista Road Surgery 
(Previously known as Market 
Street) 

102 Market Street, Newton-Le-Willows, WA12 9BP 

 
Please note: 

 Sherdley Medical Centre was renamed Marshalls Cross Medical Centre in 
September 2017 

 Market Street was renamed Vista Road Surgery in August 2017 

 Eldercare Practice closed on 31st August 2017 
 
Composition of Governing Body 
The CCG’s Governing Body meets monthly throughout the year; and consists of 9 
clinical members consisting of five GPs (elected members), a Secondary Care 
Consultant, external Executive Nurse, Clinical Accountable Officer and Chief Nurse.  
The Governing Body is further supported by 2 Lay Members (in addition to the Lay 
Chair), a Chief Finance Officer, Director of Commissioning/Deputy Chief Executive, 
Director of Public Health (St Helens Local Authority), and the Strategic Director 
People’s Services (St Helens Local Authority) – also acting in the capacity of CCG 
Recovery Director. 
 
Table 14 Composition of the Governing Body 

Name Role 

Geoffrey Appleton CCG Lay Chair 

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse CCG Deputy Chair/ CCG GP Representative 

Dr Hilary Flett CCG GP Representative 

Dr Paul Rose CCG GP Representative 

Dr Joseph Banat CCG GP Representative 
Retired 31st March 2018 

Dr Omar Shaikh CCG GP Representative 
Appointed 1st October 2017 

Dr James Catania Secondary Care Consultant 
Appointed 1st June 2017 

Elaine Inglesby Executive Nurse 

Tony Foy Lay Member – Audit & Governance 

Rachel Jones Lay Member – Patient & Public Engagement 
Resigned 1st August 2017 
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Ruth Austen – Vincent Interim Lay Member – Patient & Public Engagement (PPI) 
Appointed 1st October 2017 – 31st March 2018 

Mark Weights Lay Member – Patient & Public Engagement (PPI) 
Appointed 1st February 2018 

Professor Sarah O’Brien Clinical Accountable Officer 

Julie Abbott Director of Commissioning/ Deputy Chief Executive 

Iain Stoddart Chief Finance Officer 
Appointed 01.04.17 – 31.01.18 in duel CFO role with 
NHS Knowsley CCG 
From 01.02.18 solely appointed as CFO for the CCG 

Lisa Ellis Interim Chief Nurse 

Mike Wyatt CCG Recovery Director/ Strategic Director People’s 
Services (LA) 

Susan Forster Director of Public Health (LA) 

 
Notes 

 The CCG Lay Chair’s contract was renewed for a further two years from 1st 
September 2017 

 GP Representative Dr Hilary Flett’s contract was renewed for a further 3 years 
from 1st September 2017 

 Governing Body Lay Member for Patient & Public Involvement (PPI), Rachel 
Jones resigned 1st August 2017 due to relocating to another area.  Interim 
arrangements were agreed with NHS Halton CCG’s PPI Lay Member, Ruth 
Austen-Vincent to provide support to 31st March 2018.  Mark Weights was 
appointed as PPI Lay Member in February 2018. 
 

Please visit http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/our-governing-body/ for 
biographies of our current Governing Body members.  A list of Governing Body 
attendance at committees is available in Table 15. 
 
The Governing Body may invite other people to attend all or any of its meetings or 
parts of a meeting in order to assist it in its decision making and discharge of 
functions as it sees fit. In 2017/18, the CCG continue to have a non-executive 
observer from St Helens and Knowley NHS Hospital Trust. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/our-governing-body/
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Table 15 – Governing Body Attendance at Committees  

 
* Omar Shaikh joined the CCG in October 2017 
* James Catania joined the CCG in June 2017 
* Rachel Jones left the CCG in August 2017 
* Ruth Austen-Vincent joined the CCG on an interim basis in October 2017 
* Mark Weights joined the CCG in February 2018 
* Elaine Inglesby - not expected or required 
 

Committee(s), including Audit Committee 
The CCG’s Governing Body is supported by eight distinct committees, as follows: 
1. GP Members Council - represents all of the member practices of the CCG and 

reflects their opinion. 
2. Primary Care Committee - carries out the functions relating to the commissioning 

of primary medical services under section 83 of the NHS Act 2006.  This 
Committee is also supported by a sub-Committee, Primary Care Quality & 
Operations Group 

3. Executive Leadership Team –  a Committee with responsibility for strategic and 
operational management issues within the CCG 

4. Finance, Governance & Risk Committee - principal purpose is the monitoring of 
the groups finances and governance 

5. Quality & Performance Committee - principal purpose is the monitoring of the 
quality and performance of commissioned services/ Providers 

6. Human Resources & Organisational Development (HR&OD) Committee – 
provides assurance to the Governing Body that all corporate duties in relation to 
the HR agenda are compliant, and that the group is focused on organisational 
development.  Was known as HR & Remuneration Committee up until 
September 2017. 
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7. Remuneration Committee - has delegated functions to make determinations 
about pay, remuneration, and terms & conditions for any CCG officers and 
employees and people providing services to the CCG.  Separated out from HR 
Committee in September 2017. 

8. Audit Committee - This is the Committee of the CCG that provides the Governing 
Body with independent assurance through the approval and delivery of annual 
audit plans, review of internal audit reports and monitoring of actions advised.   

 
Further information on all Committees, including their supporting sub groups can be 
found in the Annual Governance Statement (pages 66-76); and full Terms of 
Reference for each Committee can be found on the CCG’s Corporate website: 
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/committee-terms-of-reference/  
 
Audit Committee 
The names of individuals forming the Audit Committee throughout the year and up to 
the signing of the Annual Report & Accounts are: 

 Tony Foy: Lay Member Governance & Audit Chair 

 Rachel Jones: Lay Member Patient & Public Involvement (resigned 01.08.17) 

 Dr Joseph Banat: GP Governing Body Member (retires 31.03.18) 

 Dr Michael Ejuoneatse: GP Governing Body Member 

 Alan Whittle: Independent Member (appointed 24.05.17) 

 Mark Weights: Lay Member Patient & Public Involvement (Committee 
member from 14.03.18) 
 

Others in attendance 

 Iain Stoddart: Chief Finance Officer 

 Julie Ashurst: Deputy Chief Finance Officer 

 Lisa Roberts: Principal Accountant 

 Angela Delea: Associate Director, Corporate Governance 

 Louise Cobain: MIAA Internal Audit 

 Virginia Martin: MIAA Counter Fraud Service (attendance dependent on 
Agenda Item) 

 Grant Thornton External Audit representation 
 

The CCG Chair is also invited to attend one meeting each year in order to form a 
view on, and understanding of, the committee’s operations. 
 
Register of Interests 
The Declarations of Interest of Governing Body and all Committee Members is 
published on the CCG Corporate website: http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/public-
information/register-of-interests/  
 
Personal data related incidents 
There was one Incident relating to a data security breach which was reported to the 
Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO).  A root cause analysis was undertaken 
and an investigation carried out by the ICO; whose findings were no further action to 
be taken. 
 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/committee-terms-of-reference/
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/public-information/register-of-interests/
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/public-information/register-of-interests/
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Modern Slavery Act  
NHS St Helens Clinical Commissioning Group fully supports the Government’s 
objectives to eradicate modern slavery and human trafficking but does not meet the 
requirements for producing an annual Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement as 
set out in the Modern Slavery Act 2015.  
 
Statement of Disclosure to Auditors 
Each individual who is a member of the CCG at the time the Members’ Report was 
approved confirms:  

 so far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information1 of which 
the CCG’s auditor is unaware that would be relevant for the purposes of their 
audit report 

 the member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to 
make him or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the CCG’s auditor is aware of it.  

The auditors (Grant Thornton) have confirmed they have made a referral under 
section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 on 8th March 2018 as 
explained in the section on Going Concern. 

 
The Annual Report was approved in line with the CCG Constitution by the 
Audit Committee on 24/05/2018. 
1 relevant audit information means information needed by the clinical commissioning 
group’s auditor in connection with preparing their report. 
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Statement of Accountable Officer’s 
Responsibilities  
 

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical 
Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be 
appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHSE).  NHSE has appointed the 
Clinical Accountable Officer to be the Accountable Officer of NHS St Helens Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG). 
 
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health 
Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in the Clinical 
Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.  They include 
responsibilities for:  
 

 The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable 
Officer is answerable 

 For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning 
Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the 
requirements of the Accounts Direction) 

 For safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for 
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities) 

 The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public 
Money 

 Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and 
economically (in accordance with Section 14Q of the National Health Service 
Act 2006 (as amended) and with a view to securing continuous improvement 
in the quality of services (in accordance with Section14R of the National 
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) 

 Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H 
to 223J of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) 
 

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHSE has directed each 
Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year financial statements 
in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The financial 
statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net expenditure, 
changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply 
with the requirements of the Group Accounting Manual issued by the Department of 
Health and in particular to: 
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 Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHSE, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting 
policies on a consistent basis 

 Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis 

 State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Group 
Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health have been 
followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial 
statements and 

 Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 
 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, and subject to the disclosures set out below, 
I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out under the National Health 
Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in my Clinical 
Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter: 
 

 Within the CCG’s financial plan we did not set an expenditure budget that was 
within the funds allocated and that in itself meant that the CCG did not 
discharge it’s in year break even duty. However, the CCG did comply with the 
control total set by NHSE of a £4.8m deficit 

 

 The result of that is that the auditors (Grant Thornton) made a referral to the 
Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 on 8th March 2018. The CCG will receive a qualified Regularity Opinion 
with regard to its financial statements. However in view of the fact that the 
CCG did meet it’s in year control total, the VFM opinion will be unqualified.  

 
I also confirm that:  
 

 as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 
CCG’s auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have 
taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the CCG’s auditors are 
aware of that information.  

 that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 
understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the annual 
report and accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is 
fair, balanced and understandable  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Professor Sarah O’Brien 
Clinical Accountable Officer 
25th May 2018 
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Governance Statement 
Introduction and context 
NHS St Helens Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is a body corporate 
established by NHSE on 1 April 2013 under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended). 
 
The clinical commissioning group’s statutory functions are set out under the National 
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).  The CCG’s general function is arranging the 
provision of services for persons for the purposes of the health service in England.  
The CCG is, in particular, required to arrange for the provision of certain health 
services to such extent as it considers necessary to meet the reasonable 
requirements of its local population.   
 
As at 1 April 2017, the clinical commissioning group is subject to directions from 
NHSE issued under Section 14Z21 of the National Health Service Act 2006; 
following an inadequate rating under the NHS Assurance Process on 1st September 
2016.  These directions and will remain in place until they are varied or revoked by 
NHSE.  More information is available via the link 
https://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wp-
content/uploads/sites/12/2016/09/ccg-directions-st-helens.pdf  
 
On 19th July 2017 the CCG was rated as ‘Requires Improvement’. 

 
Scope of responsibility 
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of 
internal control that supports the achievement of the clinical commissioning group’s 
policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for 
which I am personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned 
to me in Managing Public Money.  I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out 
under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and in my Clinical 
Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 
 
I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical commissioning group is administered 
prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, 
safeguarding financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for 
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control within the clinical 
commissioning group as set out in this governance statement. 
 

Governance arrangements and effectiveness 
The main function of the Governing Body is to ensure that the group has made 
appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it exercises its functions effectively, 
efficiently and economically and complies with such generally accepted principles of 
good governance as are relevant to it. 
 
In accordance with the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) the CCG 
Constitution states that in conducting its business it will, at all times, observe the 
following: 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2016/09/ccg-directions-st-helens.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/commissioning/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2016/09/ccg-directions-st-helens.pdf
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 the highest standards of propriety involving impartiality, integrity and 
objectivity in relation to the stewardship of public funds, the management of 
the organisation and the conduct of its business 

 the Good Governance Standard for Public Services 

 the standards of behaviour published by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life (1995) known as the ‘Nolan Principles’ 

 the seven key principles  of the NHS Constitution 

 the Equality Act 2010 

 Standards for Members of NHS Boards and Governing Bodies in England 
 
Governing Body  
The Governing Body comprises a diverse range of skills from Executive, Clinical and 
Lay members and there is a clear division of responsibility between running the 
Governing Body and running the CCG’s everyday business.  The CCG Scheme of 
Delegation details how the key CCG functions have been discharged through the 
organisation as agreed by its member practices in the CCG constitution (Constitution 
refreshed in January 2018).  The CCG Lay Chair is responsible for the leadership of 
the Governing Body and ensures that executives have had access to relevant 
information to assist them in the delivery of their duties.  
 
The lay members have actively provided scrutiny and challenge at Governing Body 
and sub-committee level and provide lay scrutiny support to officers in their day to 
day work. Each CCG sub-committee comprises membership and representation 
from appropriate officers, clinicians and lay members with sufficient experience and 
knowledge to support the committees in discharging their duties. 
 
During 2017/18 Governing Body refreshed the strategic objectives for the CCG in 
line with St Helens Cares. Beginning with a robust self-assessment of the skills and 
attributes in the Governing Body after new members had joined throughout 2017, the 
CCG invested in a programme of Governing Body development.    
 
In addition to this, the CCG focused on strengthening its relationships with 
neighbouring CCGs and local Provider trusts which included a programme of regular 
executive to executive and board to board meetings.  
  
As per the CCG Constitution, the CCG GP Membership (page 58) is required to elect 
its GP members to the Governing Body through a clear election process to lead the 
CCG and represent member practices and public in delivering the CCG statutory 
functions. The GP Members Council is the key forum through which the CCG seeks 
clinical engagement in delivery of its statutory functions and enables the membership 
to engage and influence further the work of the CCG. During 2017/18 the terms of 
reference of our Members Council have been reviewed and refreshed for inclusion in 
our constitution.   
 
We are clinically-led by GPs and other healthcare professionals, including a Chief 
Nurse, one registered nurse and a secondary care doctor. The reasoning behind a 
clinically-led organisation is that clinicians will be closer to and understand the health 
requirements of the local community and how to drive improvements. In 2017/18 we 
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have started to form a locality approach to the commissioning and provision of 
services with our GP practices aligned to four localities across the borough. 
 
Governance Structure 
The membership determines the composition of the Governing Body and delegates 
responsibility for the delivery of statutory outcomes to the Governing Body. The 
Governing Body determines the supporting governing structure to meet these 
requirements. 
 
As mentioned in the Member’s Report (page 58) the CCG’s Governing Body is 
supported by eight distinct committees: -  

1. GP Members Council 
2. Audit Committee 
3. Finance, Governance & Risk Committee 
4. Quality & Performance Committee  
5. Human Resources & Organisational Development (HR&OD) Committee 
6. Remuneration Committee 
7. Primary Care Committee 
8. Executive Leadership Team 
 

Full Terms of Reference for each Committee can be found on the CCG’s corporate 
website: http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/committee-terms-of-reference/  
 
 

 
Figure 4: CCG Committee Framework (as at 31st March 2018) 
 
The summaries below outline the key functions of each Governing Body Committee, 
including Primary Care Committee and GP Members Council; and the key 
highlights/items of business from each. 
 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/committee-terms-of-reference/
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GP Members Council 
As mentioned above, the GP Members Council is the key forum through which the 
CCG seeks clinical engagement in delivery of its statutory functions and enables the 
membership to engage and influence further the work of the CCG.  It represents all 
of the 34 member practices of the group and reflects their opinion.  The current 
structure was put into place in April 2017, with the Terms of Reference being signed 
off by all members in June 2017.  Please refer to the Terms of Reference for details 
of membership and key responsibilities.  There have been 6 Member Council 
meetings held between April 2017 and March 2018 all have been quorate. 74% of 
practices have had 50% of more attendance. 13 practices (38%) have had 100% 
attendance. 
 
During 2017/18 GP Members Council have been involved in clinical commissioning 
discussions and decisions, providing clinical expertise around proposed new 
services, and revisions to existing services, including Community Nursing, 
Cardiology, Respiratory, Out of Hospital and Frailty Services; RMS Triaging 
Pathways, a Transgender Pathway, Out of Hours Service Provision and Extended 
Access scheme, Urgent Care Plans, primary care alignment to care homes and the 
decommissioning of two GP practices; plus involvement in 2017 Winter Planning and 
the development of the 2017-2020 Cancer Strategy. 
 
In September 2017 the Members Council also agreed the revised constitution, 
composition of the CCG Governing Body and election of a fifth GP Governing Body 
member, who joined the Governing Body in October 2017; the committee also 
approved the reappointment of the CCG Lay Chair for a further two year period, the 
publication of the CCG Annual Report 2016/17 and the Commissioning Intentions & 
Plan for 2018/19. 
 
During Quarter 4 Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) conducted a Committee 
Effectiveness Review with the Member’s Council.  It was acknowledged that the 
Member’s Council is still in a development phase, as it had only had four meetings 
(at the time of the review); and that engagement during these meetings had varied 
depending on the agenda for discussion. The outcome of the review will be used to 
inform improvements to future meetings. 
 
Audit Committee 
The CCG’s Audit Committee provides the Governing Body with independent 
assurance through the approval and delivery of annual audit plans, review of internal 
audit reports and monitoring of actions advised.  For further information on the Audit 
Committee (including membership) see Members Report (page 58).  A new, 
external, independent Lay Member was appointed in May 2017 to provide the non-
clinical, lay member, independent representation to the committee. 
 
Key highlights/Items of business during 2017/18 included over seeing delivery of 
2017/18 internal audit programme and performance monitored actions from audits 
undertaken during the year; approval of the 2016/17 annual report and end of year 
accounts.  The Committee reviewed the arrangements of the Management of 
Conflicts of Interest and Gifts and Hospitality based on new guidance issued by 
NHSE in June 2017 and approved the updated Risk Management Strategy  to 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/about-us/committee-terms-of-reference/
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incorporate the CCG’s revised Strategic Objectives and review of the GBAF 
reporting arrangements in December 2017. 
 
Throughout 2017/18 Audit Committee have engaged with management in gathering 
assurance on the CCG’s actions to achieve financial sustainability; and supported 
the procurement of the external auditor for the 2017/18 period.  In February 2018 the 
Audit Committee Chair, supported by Patient Group representatives undertook an 
independent Complaints review around the CCG Complaints service and the service 
provided by a number of the CCG’s providers. 
 
Finance, Governance & Risk Committee 
The Finance, Governance & Risk (FGR) Committee is chaired by the GP Governing 
Body Member with a Lead on Finance and Performance, Dr Hilary Flett.  The Vice 
Chair is Dr Paul Rose.  The Committee provides assurance to the Governing Body in 
relation to the discharge of statutory functions in line with the CCG Constitution and 
its prime financial policies. 
 
Additional responsibilities include: 

 overseeing delivery of corporate objectives including the management of the 
corporate risk register and Governing Body Assurance Framework 

 providing assurance to the CCG Governing Body on all financial matters in 
relation to the discharge of its Statutory Functions in line with the Constitutions 
prime financial policies 

 ensuring that financial and activity performance of commissioned services is 
monitored 

 takes responsibility for taking appropriate action within contract terms and in 
support of the NHS Constitution, on behalf of the Governing Body, to remedy 
any finance and performance variations, for example to those outlined in the 
CCG Assurance Framework and the Clinical Commissioning Plan 

 approving service developments brought forward from the other Committees and 
allocate resources according to annual financial plans 
 

The key focus of the Committee in 2017/18 has remained, as the previous year in 
providing oversight and scrutiny of the Recovery and Improvement Plan, monitoring 
financial performance, assessing risk and recommending mitigation actions and 
control; and monitoring delivery of the CCGs QIPP Programme.  During 2017/18 the 
Committee has continued to ensure compliance with key statutory governance 
requirements ensuring effective review of the CCG’s emergency planning and 
business continuity /major incident arrangements, undertaking a self-assessment 
against statutory duties providing assurance to NHSE on local compliance.  The 
Committee has continued to oversee the organisation’s risk management via on-
going review of the Corporate Risk Register and Governing Body Assurance 
Framework, ensuring that significant risks are reported directly to the Governing 
Body for review following Committee scrutiny. 
 
Throughout 2017/18 FGR Committee has received updates and requests for 
approvals in relation to the following key policies and processes: 

 Information Governance Policy and Handbook; IG Toolkit compliance 
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 GBAF & CRR 

 Health & Safety (policy updated and audits undertaken) 

 Standards of Business Conduct and Conflicts of Interest  
 

The Committee received the findings of a CCG self-assessment with regards to its 
compliance against its statutory duties in relation to Emergency Planning, Resilience 
and Response (EPRR), and assessed itself as fully compliant in this area against the 
national standards required as part of the Civil Contingencies Act. 
 
In relation to financial activities the Committee oversaw the management of the joint 
Better Care Fund (with the Local Authority); and provided financial approval of key 
business decisions following the recommendations of the Quality & Performance 
Committee and Primary Care Committee; the Committee also oversaw all 
amendments made to the Section 75 Agreement schedules; and reviewed/ 
responded to recommendations from Internal Audit (MIAA). 
 
A Committee Effectiveness Review was undertaken in October 2017; the findings 
reported to Governing Body. 
 
Quality & Performance Committee 
The Quality and Performance Committee is responsible for assurance on the quality 
(safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience) of all CCG commissioned 
services.  On behalf of the Governing Body, it is responsible for taking appropriate 
action within contract terms and in support of the NHS Constitution, to remedy any 
performance variations. The Committee has authority to approve or reject new 
service specifications. 
 
The Committee oversees the following sub-groups: 
 

 Medicines Management Committee 

 Patient Safety Group 

 Patient Experience & Involvement Group 

 Map of Medicine Taskforce Group 
 
In line with national guidance NHSE (Cheshire & Merseyside) holds a Quality 
Surveillance Group (QSG) to bring key agencies together to oversee and assure 
regarding quality across NHS providers.  The CCG is a member of this group and 
submits an overview of all the providers it commissions at each meeting and the 
Chief Nurse feeds back from QSG formally at the Quality & Performance 
Committee. For each of our NHS providers, the CCGs hold Clinical Quality 
Performance Groups (CQPGs) to monitor quality performance and a summary on 
each of these meetings is provided at Quality and Performance Committee each 
month. 
 
The CCG has statutory functions in relation to safeguarding and fulfils these through 
the role of the Chief Nurse (Designated professionals and named GP).  
Safeguarding is a key agenda item at Committee and through the Quality Contract 
the CCG rigorously monitors commissioned NHS services. In addition, the Chief 
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Nurse sits on both the Adults and Children’s Safeguarding Boards in St Helens as a 
statutory partner and chairs sub committees of both boards and in the last 12 
months the CCG has significantly contributed to key areas of work. 
 
During 2017/18 the Committee approved a number of key policies and documents 
relating to patient safety and service quality including; the Quality & Patient Safety 
five year strategy, the updated PLCP (Procedures of Low Clinical Priority) Policy, 
Covert Administration of Medicines Policy and Serious Incident Management Policy.  
They approved a safeguarding monitoring template for service providers, and the 
revised Safeguarding Adult & Children Strategy. 
 
In addition the Committee had responsibility for reviewing and approving fifteen Map 
of Medicines pathways, Pan Mersey APC recommendations throughout the year; 
revised Medicine Management Committee Terms of Reference and a number of 
service specifications including the Community Cardiac and Heart Failure Service, 
Musculoskeletal Service, Neurodevelopmental Pathway Coordination, Tissue 
Viability and a THRIVE Service. 
 
The Committee undertook a Committee Effectiveness Review in November 2017 to 
look at how effective it was in working towards the Terms of Reference; and 
exploring what it does well/ could do better as a Committee. 
 
Human Resources & Organisational Development (HR&OD) Committee 
Originally the HR & Remuneration Committee, this was separated out into two 
separate committees (HR & OD Committee and Remuneration Committee) in 
September 2017, and a full review of the Remuneration Committee functions 
undertaken following the publication of the NHSE Report on NHS Liverpool CCG 
Remuneration Review. 
 
The HR & OD Committee ensures compliance with statutory requirements and has 
responsibility for Organisational Development, Human Resources & Equality and 
Diversity. 
 
Key highlights/ Items of business during 2017/18 include approval of the updated OD 
Strategy and Plan (specifically including reference to staff and membership 
engagement), approval of a suite of core CCG HR policies and protocols as part of 
an agreed work plan. The Committee received the outcomes of the Staff Survey 
2017/18, which showed improvement in all areas and significant improvement in 
internal communications, and did not highlight any areas of great concern. An OD 
Task Force and Health & Wellbeing Groups provided regular reporting against the 
key objectives of the OD Plan. 
 
The Committee received a Workforce Equality Standard update providing assurance 
that the CCG is in line with statutory requirements and agreed the content of the 
Equality & Diversity Annual Report (presented to Governing Body for approval).  
During the year the Committee also agreed revision of the CCG Executive 
Leadership Team to provide increased capacity and capability. 
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Remuneration Committee 
As above, originally this was part of the HR & Remuneration Committee, and was 
separated out in September 2017, and a full review of the Remuneration Committee 
functions undertaken. 
 
The Remuneration Committee make decisions on behalf of the Governing Body on 
determinations about pay, remuneration, and terms & conditions for any officers and 
employees (outside of Agenda for Change) of the Clinical Commissioning Group and 
people who provide services to the Clinical Commissioning Group.  This includes 
allowances under any pension scheme it might establish as an alternative to the 
NHS pension scheme.  The Committee will make decisions on any severance 
payments and address any pay and conditions of service related issues 
 
During 2017/18 there have been six Remuneration meetings (three as HR & 
Remuneration Committee and three as the separated Remuneration Committee), all 
six of which were quorate. 
 
Key highlights/ Items of business during 2017/18: 
 

 Agreement of GP Governing Body Member’s contractual status as ‘Contract 
for Services’ and the continuation of the existing rate of £300 per session for 
2017/18 

 Approval of new terms of reference separating HR & OD and Remuneration 
into two separate committees 

 The Committee approved the revised Off Payroll Policy in line with legislative 
changes to the use of contractors. 

 Approved the Terms & Conditions of posts in the newly established Integrated 
Management structure, including the Very Senior Manager (VSM) 
remuneration for the Chief Nurse 

 Approval of the arrangements for the appointment of the Strategic Director of 
People’s Services/Clinical Accountable Officer and involvement in the 
appointment process. 

 
Primary Care Committee 
The Primary Care Committee has been established on approval by NHSE as the 
decision making committee having oversight of delegated commissioning of primary 
care (General Practice).  Primary Care Committee meetings are held in public bi-
monthly.  Support was provided from MIAA around how the Committee monitors its 
risks. 
 
This Committee is supported by the Primary Care Quality & Operational Group 
(PCQOG).  The work plan of this Group is agreed by the Primary Care Committee, 
and includes delegated responsibility for managing the Primary Care corporate risk 
register. 
 
During 2017/18 the Committee have been involved (through PCQOG) in reviewing 
the IM&T infrastructure within Primary Care and discussing what is required and 
what is being done to improve and transform care; approved the development of the 
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Primary Care dashboard – enabling better reporting and drilling down of information 
– later in the year the Committee agreed to refocus the Primary Care Dashboard on 
Locality working, in line with the revised locality working model for Primary Care.  
The Committee have continued to undertake performance management of GP 
contracts including supporting quality within primary care. 
 
The Committee also approved recommendations to Post Payment Verification 
Checks, following on from an MIAA audit, oversaw the transfer of patients from 
Eldercare and approved the closure of the practice, along with approval of a 
relocation request from Phoenix Medical Centre. Eldercare was set up as “virtual” 
Practice providing home visits to patients who were housebound and chose to 
register with them. Aspect Health Ltd, with whom the current contract is held, served 
6 months’ notice on the Eldercare contract to end date of 31 August 2017. The 
Committee approved a safe and effective transition plan to new Practices ensuring 
successful allocation of patients to local Practices. This involved full engagement 
with Members Council. 
 
The committee also approved plans for the new build of Eccleston Medical Centre. 
Eccleston Medical Centre has been in temporary accommodation since 2006, work 
will commence towards the end of March 2018 to build a single story purpose built 
premises. This redevelopment presents a significant opportunity to transform 
healthcare provision in Eccleston whilst offering a number of significant benefits.  
 
Other key business during 2017/18 involved the Committee welcoming the GP 
Federation to a meeting to discuss their evolving constitution; oversight of the 
practice engagement visits programme undertaken by senior CCG staff, which aims 
to re-engage the membership and provide more direct support to practices and 
provision of oversight and scrutiny of practice list issues including temporary 
closures and requests for boundary changes.  During the year Primary Care 
Committee also supported the development of a funding bid for a ‘Clinical Pharmacy 
Scheme’; and agreed to support a BMJ St Helens branding campaign to encourage 
more GPs to come and work in St Helens. 
 
Executive Leadership Team (ELT) Committee 
All management functions of the CCG (with the exception of those delegated to 
individuals or to another committee of the Governing Body or reserved to the 
Governing Body as detailed in the Scheme of Reservation and Delegation) are 
delegated to the ELT for day to day management and delivery. The Executive 
Leadership Team makes recommendations on delivery of strategy and 
commissioning plans and take day to day decisions on performance management 
and risk management to provide robust assurance to the Governing Body. 
 
The ELT has authority from the Governing Body to make decisions in respect of any 
QIPP or financial recovery related actions to ensure that there is no delay in 
progress.  The Committee’s formal Terms of Reference were ratified at Governing 
Body in September 2017. 
 
During 2017/18 ELT approved a number of Individual Variation Agreements (IVAs) 
including Neuro developmental pathway, Walk in Centre ECG service, Frailty 
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Service redesign, GP extended access, District Nurse Liaison Service, Intermediate 
Care and Assessment Team, Looked After Children’s Service and redesign of 
Carers Support Workers Service.  The Committee reviewed its membership and 
updated its Terms of Reference; approved a CHC Joint Operational Policy (with the 
Local Authority), agreed to an extension of the existing Pilot Falls Car scheme, and 
recommended to Governing Body the proposal for continued provision of 
spirometers within practices.   
 
During 2017/18 HR&OD Committee also delegated authority for ELT to review and 
approve HR policies which had undergone a review by HR but had no significant 
changes e.g. minor updates.  ELT approved a number of updated policies including 
Attendance Management Policy, Harassment & Bullying, Travel Expenses and 
Management of Organisational Change. 
 
Joint Committees 
During 2017/18 the CCG led the development of a Joint Committee, in response to 
‘The Five Year Forward View’ which required every health and care system to come 
together to create their own ambitious local blueprint for accelerating implementation 
of the NHS Five Year Forward View.  In Cheshire and Merseyside it was agreed that 
within the overall footprint there would be three Local Delivery Systems (LDS) - 
Alliance, Cheshire & Wirral, and North Mersey.  The Alliance LDS includes the 4 
CCGs of NHS Halton CCG, NHS Knowsley CCG, NHS St. Helens CCG and NHS 
Warrington CCG. Together these CCGs have formed the Mid Mersey Joint 
Committee, as follows: 
 
Mid Mersey Joint Committee 
The Mid Mersey Joint Committee consists of representatives from the above four 
CCGs.  A set Terms of Reference were agreed by all parties and signed off in 
September 2017. 
 
The overarching role of the Joint Committee is to take commissioning decisions for 
the footprint, that are appropriate and in accordance with delegated authority from 
each CCG Member.  Decisions will support the aims and objectives of the Cheshire 
& Mersey STP (now known as the Cheshire & Mersey Health & Care Partnership), 
Cheshire & Mersey STP Plan whilst contributing to the sustainability of the local 
health and social care systems.  The Joint Committee is responsible for the delivery 
of a programme of transformation / service redesign across a defined range of 
services commissioned by its members. 
 
Cheshire & Merseyside Health & Care Partnership 
During 2017/18 the former STP evolved into the Cheshire and Merseyside Health 
and Care Partnership under new leadership.  The Partnership has organised into a 
number of strategic programmes including but not exclusively; Whole System 
Integration, Acute Sustainability, Mental Health and LD Sustainability, Prevention, 
Place Based Care Systems, enabling work streams (estates, workforce, digitalisation 
and finance) and is underpinned by at scale delivery boards. 
 
The CCG is committed to supporting and proactively participating in the work of the 
Partnership. The Clinical Accountable Officer is a member of the System 
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Management Board representing C&M Commissioners and is also Senior 
Responsible Officer for the Diabetes programme and Place Based Care and Model 
facilitation and support.  The CCG has identified a CCG lead for each strategic 
programme, enabling work stream and programme board to ensure that full 
engagement in the work of the Partnership.   
 
Other Committees & Groups 
Representatives of the CCG have been an active member on a number of key 
committees and groups, and have also led on the establishment of strategic groups 
across the wider health care system. These committees and groups deliver a mix of 
advisory, scrutiny, partnership and development functions. The CCG’s clinical 
engagement and managerial / leadership presence has ensured and supported the 
delivery of a range of statutory and other functions. 
 
In 2017/18 the CCG has undertaken a system leadership role in supporting:  

 Health and Care Partnership in Cheshire & Merseyside 

 St Helen’s People’s Board 

 St Helen’s Cares Executive Board 

 St Helen’s Cares Early Intervention & Prevention Programme 

 St Helen’s Cares – Front Door Programme 

 St Helen’s Cares Primary Care Management & Coordination Programme 

 St Helen’s Cares – Enablers (Finance, IT, IG & Business) 

 Mid Mersey A&E Delivery Board 

 Urgent Care Operations Group 
 

UK Corporate Governance Code 
NHS Bodies are not required to comply with the UK Code of Corporate Governance.  
However, we have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing 
upon best practice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate 
Governance Code we consider to be relevant to the CCG and best practice. 
 

Discharge of Statutory Functions 
In light of recommendations of the 1983 Harris Review, the clinical commissioning 
group has reviewed all of the statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the 
National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and other associated legislative and 
regulations.  As a result, I can confirm that the clinical commissioning group is clear 
about the legislative requirements associated with each of the statutory functions for 
which it is responsible, including any restrictions on delegation of those functions. 
Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead Director.  
Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide the necessary capability 
and capacity to undertake all of the clinical commissioning group’s statutory duties. 

 
Risk management arrangements and effectiveness  
A review of the CCG’s Strategic Objectives was undertaken, with a structured risk 
management development session facilitated by Mersey Internal Audit Agency 
(MIAA) in May 2017 where the Governing Body: 
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 Determined the CCG Risk Appetite – and assessed their understanding of this 
appetite 

 Agreed to implement risk target setting 

 Defined the strategic risks for 2017/18 
 
The strategic objectives agreed for 2017/18 are as follows: 
1. To deliver financial sustainability 
2. To deliver improvements through system redesign and in priority areas 
3. To deliver improved outcomes for patients 
4. To develop capacity and capability as system leaders 
5. To stabilise, support and sustain primary care 
 
The CCG determined its risk appetite to be as follows; 
 
“The CCG recognises that the long term sustainability of services in St Helens 
depend upon the delivery of the Improvement Plan, strategic objectives and its 
relationships with partners and the public.  Therefore, whilst the CCG will not accept 
risks that materially impact on the safety or constitutional requirements of patient 
care, it has a greater appetite to take considered risks in terms of their impact on 
organisational issues, within our required frameworks.  The CCG’s highest risk 
appetite relates to its transformational objectives”. 
 
The CCG’s Risk Management Strategy was updated in September 2017 to reflect 
the review and subsequent amendments, and a further review was carried out in 
March 2018 as per the Audit Committee work plan and can be found on the CCG’s 
Corporate website at http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/2008/risk-management-
strategy-v3-march-2018.pdf  
 
Audit Committee continues to have delegated responsibility from the Governing 
Body to ensure that there is an appropriate governing body assurance framework in 
place and operational responsibility resides with the Finance, Governance and Risk 
Committee.  This committee tests the assessment of risk and the associated ratings 
as well as examining in more detail the robustness of the controls and mitigations.  
All risk registers use the same risk scoring matrices to ensure consistency in 
describing risks across the organisation; these matrices are based on the NPSA 
matrices but have been customised for local use to reflect the CCG’s tolerance to 
risk. The CCG has established a number of mechanisms for identifying and 
managing risks including risk profiling methodology, incident reporting, complaints 
and litigation data, and staff concerns/whistle-blowing.  
 
Risk management training is facilitated by the governance team, which includes; 

 One to one training for risk owners 

 Focused discussion at senior management team meetings and 

 Specific training with committees facilitated this year by MIAA for Primary 
Care Committee and GP Members Council. 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/2008/risk-management-strategy-v3-march-2018.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/2008/risk-management-strategy-v3-march-2018.pdf
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Incident reporting 
The CCG reports incidents to appropriate committees, depending on the context and 
nature of the incident. Within this reporting structure, a review is carried out where 
learnings are identified and potential improvements in process or environment may 
be made as a result. Any proposed changes would be reviewed and actioned 
through the senior management team at the CCG.  

 
Internal Control Framework  
A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the 
clinical commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives.  It 
is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks 
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them 
efficiently, effectively and economically.  The system of internal control allows risk to 
be managed to a reasonable level rather than eliminating all risk; it can therefore 
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 
 
The CCG identifies and prioritises risk at a strategic level through the CCG 
Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF). The GBAF details the key strategic 
objectives for the CCG and the risks against these objectives. The Governing Body 
and Executive Leadership Team have actively assessed the potential risks to the 
delivery of its objectives and the key controls in place to ensure effective delivery.  
Any gaps in control and assurance have been identified with action plans developed 
to ensure they are addressed. 
 
The GBAF feeds down into the Corporate Risk Register as risks become realised 
and require active management by the appropriate sub-Committee and lead officer.  
Project Level risks are managed within the CCG’s robust PMO process, escalating 
up to the Corporate Risk Register as required – once they cannot be managed at 
project level alone.  The GBAF is presented for assurance and review to the 
Governing Body on a quarterly basis and is currently overseen centrally by the 
Finance, Governance & Risk Committee; the Corporate Risk Register is presented 
monthly to its relevant Committee, and the PMO risks are presented to Finance, 
Governance & Risk Committee on a quarterly basis. 
 
In Quarter 4, MIAA assessed the approach to which the CCG maintains and uses 
the Assurance Framework to support the overall assessment of governance, risk 
management and internal control. The findings concluded that: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The risks identified in 2017/18 within both the GBAF and Corporate Risk Register fall 
across all five strategic objectives as shown in Table 4 below.  As at 31st March 2018 
there were 19 strategic risks, as follows 

“The organisation’s GBAF is structured to meet NHS 

requirements, is visibly used by the Governing Body and 

clearly reflects the risks discussed by the Governing Body”. 
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Table 16 Strategic Objectives 

Strategic Objective 
 

High (15-25) Medium (9-14) Low (4-8) 

To deliver financial sustainability 3 0 0 

To deliver improvements through 
system redesign and in priority areas 

1 
 

2 
 

1 
 

To deliver improved outcomes for 
patients 

0 
 

4 
 

0 
 

To develop capacity and capability as 
system leaders  

0 
 

2 
 

2 
 

To stabilise, support and sustain 
primary care 

3 
 

0 
 

1 
 

 
The key risk areas for the CCG in this year have been: 

 Failure to deliver financial sustainability 

 Failure deliver improvements and improved outcomes through system 
redesign and in priority areas (specifically in the areas of Mental Health, 
Urgent Care and Care of the Elderly) 

 Demand not staying within contracted levels leading to pressures on CCG 
budget 

 Failure to develop capacity and capability as system leaders - Misalignment of 
strategies and priorities across health and social care economy 

 Failure to protect IT systems from threats emerging from cyber security 

 Failure to attract and retain a workforce across the St Helens footprint to 
deliver future models of care 
 

The potential risks for the CCG in the coming year relate to: 
 

 Stabilising, supporting and sustaining primary care 

 Managing demand for services whilst maintaining and improving the quality of 
services for patients 

 Delivery of the Commissioning Plan including QIPP targets 

 Attracting and retaining a workforce across the St Helens footprint to deliver 
future models of care 

 
During 2017/18 the CCG has invested in making improvements to the way it records 
and reports on risks, through the implementation of the Insights ‘Datix’ software 
system; which centrally records both strategic (GBAF) and operational (CRR) risks.  
This allows for clearer recording and reporting of progress against risks, and 
identifying patterns and themes within risk groups. 
 
In March 2018 the CCG participated in an NHSE QIPP Planning Review; although 
the review related to planning for 2018/19 a significant component of the work 
carried out was to review the governance framework in place within the CCG to 
support the delivery of QIPP schemes. This looked at a range of key lines of enquiry 
relating to; planning cycle, documentation, stakeholder and provider engagement, 
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programme management capacity and monitoring and reporting. The CCG was RAG 
rated green in each of these 5 domains by NHSE. 
 
Annual audit of conflicts of interest management  
The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest for CCGs 
(published June 2016) requires CCGs to undertake an annual internal audit of 
conflicts of interest management.  To support CCGs to undertake this task, NHSE 
has published a template audit framework. 
 
Management of conflicts of interest is taken very seriously by the CCG and we work 
within a robust Conflict of Interest Management Policy and Framework in 
undertaking our CCG Business.  Assurance on this is provided quarterly to NHSE 
and the CCG undertakes training and development with staff and the Governing 
Body and this has been a key focus for the CCG during 2017/18.  The CCG’s 
Corporate Policy regarding the Management of Conflicts of Interest, based on NHSE 
guidance issued in March 2017 has been updated in June 2017 in line with further 
NHSE Guidance specifically around Gifts, Hospitality and Sponsorship.   
 
The appointed role of Conflicts of Interest Guardian has continued to provide support 
throughout 2017/18, with direct involvement in the Conflicts of Interest Audit 
undertaken by the Associate Director: Corporate Governance with all Governing 
Body members between July – October 2017. 
 
The CCG had one breach of conflict of interest in 2017/18.  A potential breach 
concerning a failure to disclose information was investigated in January 2018 by the 
Associate Director Corporate Governance and the Conflicts of Interest Guardian.  
This breach was recorded on the CCG Breaches register, which can be found at 
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/2006/coi-breach-log-mar-2018.pdf.  
 
The CCG recognises that failure to manage Conflicts of Interest effectively can and 
will result in a loss of public and partner confidence in the CCG.  The CCG currently 
publishes three registers on its main corporate website: 

 Conflicts of Interest Register 

 Gifts, Hospitality and Sponsorship Register and a 

 Register of Procurement Decisions 
 

These can be accessed by clicking on the above links. The audit committee 
undertook a detailed review of all registers with the Associate Director of Corporate 
Governance, noting robust systems in place.  
 
MIAA undertook a full audit of the CCG’s Conflict of Interest Management policy and 
processes in November 2017 against the new guidance. The overall objective of the 
audit was to evaluate the operating effectiveness of the arrangements that the CCG 
has in place to manage conflicts of interest and gifts and hospitality, including 
compliance with NHSE statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest for 
CCGs.  
 
 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/2006/coi-breach-log-mar-2018.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/1972/datix-report-feb-2018.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/1972/datix-report-feb-2018.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/1927/hospitality-register-2017-2018-updated-jan-2018.pdf
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/media/1570/2016-17-register-of-procurement-decisions.pdf
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This incorporated the following areas: 
 

 Governance arrangements: Partially compliant 

 Declarations of interests and gifts and hospitality: Fully Complaint  

 Register of interests, gifts and hospitality and procurement decisions: 
Partially Complaint  

 Decision making processes and contract monitoring: Fully Complaint 

 Reporting concerns and identifying and managing breaches / non-
compliance: Fully Complaint 

 
The audit also considered:  

 Coverage of any previous internal audit work undertaken.  

 Any additional areas of risk to be included.  

 The culture of the organisation to ensure it supports and proactively 
encourages the management of potential and actual conflicts of interest. 

 
There has been significant investment in training around Conflicts of Interest during 
2017/18, including: 

 A tailored training session to administrative staff in Feb 2017 – supporting the 
identification and correct recording of Conflicts before and during Committee 
meetings, with a bespoke Committee Handbook  drawn up to support staff in 
line with NHSE guidance and best practice. 

 On 24th February 2017 the Governing Body received face to face Conflicts of 
Interest training – main aims: 
 To give those who chair meetings guidelines on best practice in 

preparation, planning and structure of meetings to ensure successful 
outcomes.  

 To enable participants to learn and practice the effective skills/facilitation 
of chairing and participating in more productive meetings 

 To discuss the dynamics and behaviours of members at meetings 
 Through skills practice look at how the chair can manage some of these 

dynamics 

 This was followed up with Governing Body members on 13th September 2017 
with a focused discussion on Conflicts of Interest management, facilitated by 
Hill Dickinson Solicitors.  This discussion was the forum for feeding back the 
outcome of the recent Conflicts of Interest Audit undertaken by the Conflicts 
of Interest Guardian and Associate Director: Corporate Governance. 

 
Data Quality 
The data about quality performance is provided through Midland & Lancashire 
Commissioning Support Unit.  This is analysed internally by the Performance Team 
who provide Committee reports.  Any issues identified relating to the quality of data 
is risk assessed and discussed at the relevant Committee and/or Governing Body.   
Having assessed the quality of data submitted and reviewed I am assured that the 
data is of sufficient quality that the Governing Body can carry out its duties. 
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Quality Impact Assessments (QIA) and Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) 
QIAs and EIAs are integrated into the core business as part of the PMO process 
(see page 83) and reported to Quality & Performance Committee for scrutiny. 
Governing Body have assurance that the EIAs and QIAs have been reviewed 
through this committee. 
 
The PEIG, which has representation from local voluntary, third sector and community 
groups, as well as the Local Authority and Public Health, input into the development 
of EIAs and review them at stages to ensure all communities have been considered 
in the planning of engagement and involvement work. This group is also able to 
highlight where there could be opportunity to manage any risks which might impact 
their stakeholder groups as a result of commissioning decisions. In addition to this, 
the Governing Body Lay Member for patient and public involvement has oversight of 
the engagement plans for a CCG business and decisions. This mitigates the risk that 
involvement omits key communities and stakeholders.  
 
QIAs are used to mitigate against the risk of reduction in quality to a service or 
patient experience as a result of a commissioning decision. The QIAs are taken to 
the Quality committee for both input and scrutiny and form part of reporting to the 
Governing Body.  
 
Information Governance 
The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by 
which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular 
personal identifiable information.  The NHS Information Governance Framework is 
supported by an information governance toolkit and the annual submission process 
provides assurances to the clinical commissioning group, other organisations and to 
individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and 
effectively.  As mentioned above, there was one incident relating to a data security 
breach which was reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO).  A root 
cause analysis was undertaken and an investigation carried out by the ICO; whose 
findings were no further action to be taken. 
 
The CCG place high importance on ensuring there are robust information 
governance systems and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate 
information.  There is an established information governance management 
framework in place and information governance processes and procedures 
developed in line with the information governance toolkit.  We have ensured all staff 
undertake annual information governance training and have implemented a staff 
information governance handbook to ensure staff are aware of their information 
governance roles and responsibilities. 
 
There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of serious 
incidents. We are developing information risk assessment and management 
procedures and a programme will be established to fully embed an information risk 
culture throughout the organisation against identified risks. 
 
The CCG has in place policies, procedures, guidance and support mechanisms to 
ensure that personal and corporate information is handled legally, securely, 
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efficiently and effectively, in order to deliver high quality services.  Performance is 
monitored through the completion of the annual Information Governance (IG) Toolkit 
return and reports to the Finance, Governance & Risk Committee. 
 
The CCG is working closely with Midlands & Lancashire CSU to prepare for the 
implementation of the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR), which are due 
to come into force from 25th May 2018, replacing the existing Data Protection Act.  
The CCG has submitted a satisfactory level of compliance with the information 
governance toolkit assessment, achieving 91% compliance.  This submission has 
been reviewed by the internal audit team MIAA and received a Significant Assurance 
assessment. 
 
Business Critical Models 
The CCG maintains an organisational Information Asset Register (using U-Assure 
software) which identifies business critical assets within the CCG, including the 
shared finance service and hosted services.  Information Asset Owners and 
Information Asset Administrators have been assigned and all assets are regularly 
reviewed.  The SIRO is responsible for identifying and managing the information 
risks and the Caldicott Guardian oversees risk relating to patient data. 
 
Data flow mapping has been completed which enables an understanding of the flows 
of information related to all information assets on the Information Asset Register.  
Information Asset Owners are responsible for providing updates and highlighting any 
risks to the SIRO.  The CCG is further supported through a contract arrangement 
with Midlands & Lancashire CSU. 
 
The CCG is one of six local NHS organisations that receive its IT services from St 
Helens & Knowsley Health Informatics Service.  There is a joint Service Level 
Agreement between the parties who have agreed to share their health informatics 
service with the intention of pooling their collective resources and expertise in order 
to ensure that they have capacity, capability and flexibility required for a modern 
health informatics service.  The partner organisations are committed to ensuring their 
shared informatics service provides value for money for their respective 
organisations.  The CCG is represented on the Partnership Board that is responsible 
for the oversight of the service, and has both clinical and managerial representation 
on the sub-group of the Board. 
 
Project Management Office (PMO) 
A Project Management Office (PMO) approach was embedded across the CCG 
throughout 2017. The purpose of the PMO approach is: 
 

 To ensure there is a governance process in place for the standardised, 
effective management and delivery of Commissioning Intentions through a 
project management approach 

 To ensure all projects are compliant with the project management process 
through the development and use of standardised project management 
tools and on-going provision of staff support/ training from the PMO team.  
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 To ensure robust accountability and reporting on the delivery and impact 
of the projects, including delivery of project milestones to timescales, and 
delivery of identified benefits measures that demonstrate a tangible 
improvement in services and patient care 

 To ensure a robust process for decision making, approval, appropriate 
resource allocation and prioritisation of commissioning intention projects 

 To provide additional direct transformational Project Management and 
Project Support to identified priority commissioning projects 

 
All commissioning intentions projects have a project lead. The project lead is 
responsible for updating the project milestones, outcome measures, risk registers, 
communication and engagement plan and other project documents. The project 
team is comprised of staff from commissioning, performance, finance and quality and 
may also include colleagues from other teams within the CCG in order to ensure a 
co-ordinated service approach. A system is in place whereby each month project 
leads submit to the PMO their updated highlight reports which enable the CCG and 
partners to be assured of the progress of work and delivery of its Operational Plan 
and commissioning intentions. 
 
Through the latter part of 2017 the PMO team also supported the PMO approach 
across the St Helens Cares local care system. Through ongoing work the 
transformation and operational programmes and projects have been brought 
together across the CCG, Local Authority and St Helens Cares to ensure a 
collaborative, integrated approach. The PMO will continue to support this work along 
with the implementation of the St Helens Cares Clinical and Support Strategy 
through 2018/19. 
 
Third party assurances 
The CCG receives a level of commissioning support through Midlands & Lancashire 
Commissioning Support Unit and a Health Informatics Service and Payroll Service 
hosted by a local NHS Trust.  The services provided are delivered in line with a clear 
service specification and performance is monitored and managed through a lead 
manager and local managerial links and reported to the Finance, Governance & Risk 
Committee. Regular performance reviews and communication meetings enable the 
CCG to ensure the effectiveness of provision; there are no identified issues at this 
time. 
 

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of 
resources 
 
The CCG applies a number of key processes to review its effectiveness in ensuring 
that resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively. The assurance 
system provides regular reporting through to the Governing Body. 
  
To support the delivery of the improvement plan a robust PMO function was been 
established in 2017. This governance framework is outlined under Project 
management Office (PMO) as above.   
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The CCG has a detailed internal audit plan which includes regular reviews on 
internal controls. There is an annual financial and budgetary control review which 
gave the CCG significant assurance and a review of payroll controls also tool place 
in 2017/18 which also gave significant assurance.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit Opinion (Page 86) gives the CCG substantial assurance 
which demonstrates that there is a good system of internal control designed to meet 
the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are generally being applied 
consistently. 
 
These are reviewed by the Audit Committee and reported to the Governing Body. 
The Governing Body Assurance framework reported to the Finance, governance and 
Risk committee for initial scrutiny before being reviewed by Governing Body. The 
Audit Committee also review the arrangements in place for risk reporting and 
assurance. The Governing Body have reviewed their risk appetite in year and have 
amended risk reporting to include a target risk score. 
 
The CCG remained within its running cost targets set by NHSE, with a planned 
deficit of £4.8m. The CCG has been able to deliver a number of mitigations required 
(see page 25) to meet this control total. These key actions and mitigations are 
monitored and managed by the Finance, Governance and Risk Committee, which is 
the lead committee for reporting the in year financial performance of both 
programme and running costs. Each month a detailed report highlights the financial 
position and associated risks which is scrutinised by committee members. 
 
In addition, where the CCG has been assessed again the Leadership Domain as 
part of the IAF framework, NHSE wrote to the CCG & recognised the “efforts to 
establish stronger leadership, more rapid decision making and greater grip on 
finance, activity and performance”. 
 
Delegation of functions 
The CCG uses service organisations to carry out certain business functions on its 
behalf, for example, payroll and NHS Midlands and Lancashire Commissioning 
Support Unit. Assurance over the internal controls and procedures operated by these 
services is provided through a Service Auditor Report (prepared in accordance with 
International Standards on Assurance Engagements). 
 
Counter fraud arrangements 
The CCG receives its counter fraud advice and support through Mersey Internal 
Audit Agency (MIAA).  The support is provided through a team of Accredited Counter 
Fraud specialists with a lead attached to the CCG.  The CCG has received via the 
Audit Committee a report outlining an assessment of performance against the NHS 
Protect Standards for Commissioners: Fraud, Bribery and Corruption and an action 
plan to ensure on-going compliance.  The CCG has appointed the Chief Finance 
Officer as executive lead for this area and in this role acts as link internally to 
facilitate and enable delivery of actions.  
 
The Audit committee has received a number of reports in the year, one with initial 
assessment and action plan and a second outlining activity delivered against action 

http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/4883.aspx
http://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/4883.aspx
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plan.  The delivery against actions to enable compliance with standards is monitored 
closely by the executive lead and audit committee.  The CCG ensures that CCG 
employees and those working with the CCG are fully cognisant of and understand 
clearly the processes to ensure compliance with standards and are aware of how to 
access advice and support if required. 
 
MIAA reviewed and updated the CCG Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Policy in 
March 2018 – ratified at Audit Committee (14th March); which reflected the change 
from NHS Protect to NHS Counter Fraud Agency (NHSCFA). 
 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the clinical 
commissioning group, the Head of Internal Audit (MIAA) issued an independent and 
objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the clinical commissioning 
group’s system of risk management, governance and internal control.  The review of 
the CCG’s internal controls for the period covering 1st April 2017 – 31st March 2018, 
is below.  The Head of Internal Audit concluded that: 
 
Substantial Assurance can be given that that there is a good system of internal 
control designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are 
generally being applied consistently 
 
During the year, Internal Audit issued the following audit reports:  
 

Area of Audit Level of Assurance Given  

Assurance Framework Fully meets requirements 

Financial Plan: Budget Management & 
Performance 

Significant Assurance 

Conflicts of Interest Partial/ Full Compliance 

Information Governance Significant Assurance 

ESR HR/Payroll Interface Controls Significant Assurance 

 
For the Conflicts of Interest Annual Audit, which received ‘Partial Compliance’ under 
the Governance Arrangement section and Register of Interest section; the following 
actions have been completed: 
 

 Mandatory online training has been made available to all required staff (as per 
NHSE guidance), after it became available in February 2018.  Prior to this 
becoming available efforts to raise the profile of Conflicts of Interest 
throughout the CCG have continued in 2017/18, with particular emphasis on 
assisting General Practitioners.  Training of Governing Body members has 
also been conducted by a third party during 2017/18 and the profile of 
Conflicts of Interest has been raised through regular updates and staff 
briefings such as ’News Round Up’ 

 The updated CCG Constitution, approved by NHSE in January 2018 has been 
uploaded to the corporate website 
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 The published register of interests has been fully updated addressing all the 
gaps raised in the report i.e. present in alphabetical order; all sections 
complete or marked as intentionally blank; official names used 

 

Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and internal control 
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the 
work of the internal auditors, executive managers and clinical leads within the clinical 
commissioning group who have responsibility for the development and maintenance 
of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information available 
to me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in 
their annual audit letter and other reports.  
 
Our assurance framework provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of 
controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group achieving its 
principles objectives have been reviewed.  
 
I have been advised on the implications of the result of this review by:  
 

 The Governing Body 

 Audit committee 

 Finance, Governance & Risk Committee 

 Internal audit 

 Other explicit review/assurance mechanisms.  
 
The role and conclusions of each have been considered in the Governance Report 
above. 
 
 
Conclusion 
No significant internal control issues have been identified or make specific reference 
to those significant internal control issues which have been identified in the body of 
the Governance Statement above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Professor Sarah O’Brien 
Clinical Accountable Officer 
25th May 2018  
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Remuneration and Staff Report  
As a commissioner of health services, we believe health and wellbeing applies as 
much to our employees as it does to our local population.  Wellbeing can be 
described as the creation of an environment which allows employees to achieve their 
full potential.  During 2017/18 we have continued to remain fully committed to the 
health and positive wellbeing of our employees and understand that the health and 
wellbeing of the workforce is crucial to the delivery of the improvements in patient 
care to the people of St Helens. We have a health and wellbeing sub group providing 
regular reporting to the HR and Organisational Development committee. 
 
We continue to be committed to the health and positive wellbeing of our staff and we 
want to do as much as we can to enable staff to be at their best, energised, healthy 
and motivated.  The CCG undertake an annual, national staff survey, which has 
been designed to help provide an indication as to how staff feel the CCG is working, 
whether we are working within our values and principles, how their roles are 
contributing to the success of the CCG and where there could be areas for 
improvement.   
 
Key highlights include; 

 There has been a real improvement in how staff rate the effectiveness of 
communications from Senior Management Team from 64% (2016) to 85% 
(2017).  National average is 58%. 

 90% believe the CCG acts fairly with regard to progression regardless of 
ethnicity, gender, religion, sexual orientation, disability or age (↑11%) 

 In 2016 29% felt there are not enough staff in the organisation – this has 
reduced to 18% (compared to national average of 32%).  

 96% (↑ 5%) agreed that the organisation takes positive action on health and 
wellbeing. 

 
Elements of the Remuneration Report are subject to audit, namely; the Single total 
figure of remuneration for each Governing Body member, the CETV disclosures for 
each Governing Body member, the "Fair pay" (pay multiples) disclosures and the 
Analysis of staff costs and numbers. 
 
Disabled Employees  
The CCG have exacting duties to meet under the Equality Act 2010 in relation to 
workforce and organisational development.  The CCG have therefore taken positive 
steps to ensure that policies across the CCG deal with equality implications around 
recruitment and selection, pay and benefits, flexible working hours, training and 
development, policies around managing employees and protecting employees from 
harassment, victimisation and discrimination. 
 
Through our recruitment processes the CCG promotes the ‘Two Ticks’ symbol on all 
vacancies, to promote the CCGs commitment to employing disabled people. 
The CCG approved an Equality Objective plan in line with their specific duties and 
requirements under the Equality Act 2010 and supported the development of the 
objectives.    
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The Equality Objective plan lays out clear work streams that will support the 
organisation to meet and pay due regard across its key functions to meet their 
exacting Public Sector Equality Duty to:  

 Eliminated discrimination  

 Advance Equality of opportunity  

 Foster good community relations  
 
Employee consultation 
Excellent partnership arrangements with external organisations and Trade Unions 
ensure that we openly discuss, challenge and agree initiatives that have a positive 
impact on both our staff and our organisation.  The CCG and Staff Side 
organisations have a common objective of ensuring the efficient operation and 
success of the organisation for the benefit of all, through working in partnership to 
secure these aims and objectives. 
 
The CCG is an active participant in the Staff Partnership Forum facilitated by NHS 
Midlands and Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit.  The CCG utilises this forum 
as a vehicle and mechanism to support proactive staff engagement, consultation 
and, where appropriate, negotiation.  The CCG does not employ anyone who 
undertakes relevant union official duties as outlined in the Trade Union (Facility Time 
Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 and therefore no time is released from 
this employer in relation to official duties.  The CCG liaises and works with CSU TU 
representatives and area/regional representatives from those recognised unions 
whose time will be recorded with their employing authority 
 
Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Responsibilities 
We will continue to work internally, and in partnership with our Providers, community 
and voluntary sector and other key organisations to ensure that we advance equality 
of opportunity and meet our exacting requirements of the Equality Act 2010.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



     

 
 Page 90  

 
 

 

Remuneration Report   
Remuneration Committee 
Please go to page 73 of this document. 
 
Policy on the remuneration of senior managers 
The Remuneration Committee determine the salaries and contract terms of the 
following senior positions: Clinical Chief Executive, Chair, GP Governing Body 
Members, Lay Members, Chief Finance Officer, Deputy Chief Executive and Chief 
Nurse.   
 
The remuneration packages for these senior posts comprises of base salary in the 
light of the requirements of the national Very Senior Managers policy and Hay Group 
recommendations.  Senior Managers are not subject to performance related pay. 
 

Remuneration of Very Senior Managers 
The Remuneration Committee determine the salaries and contract terms of the 
following senior positions: Clinical Accountable Officer, Chair, GP Governing Body 
Members, Lay Members, Chief Finance Officer, Deputy Chief Executive and Chief 
Nurse.  
 
The remuneration packages for these senior posts comprise of base salary in the 
light of the requirements of the national Very Senior Managers policy and Hay Group 
recommendations. Senior Managers are not subject to performance related pay. 
CCG’s are required to disclose where one or more senior managers of a CCG are 
paid more than £150,000 per annum. No very senior manager of the CCG earned a 
full time equivalent remuneration package of £150,000 or more. 
 
Senior manager remuneration (including salary and pension entitlements) 
Elements of the Remuneration Report are subject to audit, namely; the Single total 
figure of remuneration for each Governing Body member, the CETV disclosures for 
each Governing Body member, the "Fair pay" (pay multiples) disclosures and the 
Analysis of staff numbers
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Table 17: Salaries and allowances 2017/18 (Subject to audit) 
 

 

Name Title Note Salary Expense Performance Long term All pension- Total

(bands of payments pay and performance related benefits

£5,000) (taxable) to bonuses pay and bonuses

the nearest (bands of (bands of (bands of (bands of

£100 £5,000) £5,000) £2,500) £5,000)

£'000 £ £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Geoffrey Appleton Chair 25-30 0 0 0 0 25-30

Dr Stephen Cox Clinical Accountable Officer 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sarah O'Brien Clinical Chief Executive 125-130 0 0 0 142.5-145 270-275

Julie Abbott Deputy Chief Executive 105-110 0 0 0 5-7.5 115-120

Dr Joseph Banat GP Board Member 2 60-65 0 0 0 0 60-65

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse GP Board Member 65-70 0 0 0 0 65-70

Dr Julie Whittaker GP Board Member 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dr Omar Shaikh GP Board Member 4 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Dr Paul Rose GP Board Member 45-50 0 0 0 0 45-50

Dr Hilary Flett GP Board Member 60-65 0 0 0 0 60-65

Paul Brickwood Chief Finance Officer 5 0-5 0 0 0 0 0-5

Iain Stoddart Chief Finance Officer 6 65-70 0 0 0 25-27.5 90-95

Lisa Ellis Interim Chief Nurse 80-85 100 0 0 62.5-65 140-145

Dr James Catania Secondary Care Doctor 7 5-10 0 0 0 0 5-10

Elaine Inglesby Executive Nurse 8 0 0 0 0 0 0

Tony Foy Lay Member 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Rachel Jones Lay Member 9 5-10 0 0 0 0 5-10

Mark Weights Lay Member 10 0-5 0 0 0 0 0-5

Ruth Austin-Vincent Interim Lay Member 11 0-5 0 0 0 0 0-5

Chrissie Cooke Interim Director of Commissioning 12 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sheila Lynch Recovery Director 13 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mike Wyatt Interim Recovery Director 14 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sue Forster Director of Public Health 15 0 0 0 0 0 0

2017-18

Ruth Austen - Vincent 
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The figures included as pension related benefits were not salary figures paid to any staff member. They represent the potential value of their 
pension, which is contributed to by the CCG, less the employees own contributions. The total figures also include this value and do not in any 
way reflect the actual salary over the course of the year paid to the employees. 

Expense payments are in respect of lease vehicles and mileage and are show in £, rounded to the nearest hundred and not to the nearest 
thousand. 

 
 

Notes:

1. Dr Stephen Cox was the Clinical Accountable Officer until 30th September 2016.

2. Dr Joe Banat was a GP Board Member until 31st March 2018.

3. Julie Whittaker was a GP Board Member until 30th September 2016.

4. Dr Omar Shaikh was a GP Board Member from 1st October 2017.

CCG %

St Helens 40

Knowsley 33

Halton 27

7. Dr James Catania was a Secondary Care Doctor from 1st June 2017.

8. Elaine Inglesby was the Executive Nurse until 30th November 2016.  

9. Rachel Jones was a Lay Member until 1st August 2017.

10. Mark Weights was a Lay Member from 1st February 2018.

12. Chrissie Cooke was the Interim Director of Commissioning until 30th June 2016.

13. Sheila Lynch was the Recovery Director until 30th November 2016. 

14. Mike Wyatt became the Interim Recovery Director from 20th October 2016.  He is employed by St Helens Council and there is no recharge of his salary.

15. Sue Forster is employed by St Helens Council and there is no recharge of her salary.

5. Paul Brickwood was the Chief Finance Officer until 4th April 2017.  His remuneration was split across NHS St Helens CCG, NHS Knowsley CCG and NHS Halton CCG.  The 

remuneration costs shown represent NHS St Helens CCG's share of the total remuneration paid by the three CCG's.  The total remuneration paid was within the band £0 to 

£5,000 and the allocation of cost to the CCG is based on the size of each CCG's constrained population, as follows:

6. Iain Stoddart was the Chief Finance Officer of NHS Knowsley CCG and NHS St Helens CCG until 30th January 2018.  His remuneration was split across NHS St Helens CCG and 

NHS Knowsley CCG.  The remuneration costs shown include NHS St Helens CCGs share of the total remuneration paid by the two CCG's up until 31st January 2018.  The total 

remuneration up until this point was within the band £90,000 to £95,000 and the allocation of cost to the CCG was a 50% share of the total remuneration.  He became the Chief 

Finance Officer of St Helens CCG from the 1st February 2018 and the remaining remuneration represents 100% of these costs.

11. Ruth Austin-Vincent was a temporary Lay Member from 1st October 2017 until 31st March 2018.  She was not on the CCG payroll and was therefore an off-payroll 

engagement (see table 3). All payments were made directly to her employer NHS Halton CCG.
Ruth Austen - Vincent 
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Table 18: Salaries and allowances 2016/17 

 
 

Name Title Note Salary Expense Performance Long term All pension- Total

(bands of payments pay and performance related benefits

£5,000) (taxable) to bonuses pay and bonuses

the nearest (bands of (bands of (bands of (bands of

£100 £5,000) £5,000) £2,500) £5,000)

£'000 £ £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Geoffrey Appleton Chair 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Dr Stephen Cox Clinical Accountable Officer 1 160-165 0 0 0 0 160-165

Sarah O'Brien Clinical Chief Executive 105-110 0 0 0 117.5-120.0 220-225

Julie Abbott Deputy Chief Executive 105-110 0 0 0 82.5-85.0 190-195

Dr Joseph Banat GP Board Member 2 60-65 0 0 0 0 60-65

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse GP Board Member 65-70 0 0 0 0 65-70

Dr Julie Whittaker GP Board Member 3 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Dr Omar Shaikh GP Board Member 4 0 0 0 0 0 0

Dr Paul Rose GP Board Member 45-50 0 0 0 30.0-32.5 75-80

Dr Hilary Flett GP Board Member 60-65 0 0 0 0 60-65

Paul Brickwood Chief Finance Officer 5 45-50 1900 0 0 0 45-50

Iain Stoddart Chief Finance Officer 6 15-20 0 0 0 77.5 - 80.0 95-100

Lisa Ellis Interim Chief Nurse 35-40 0 0 0 137.5-140.0 175-180

Dr James Catania Secondary Care Doctor 7 0 0 0 0 0 0

Elaine Inglesby Executive Nurse 8 5-10 0 0 0 0 5-10

Tony Foy Lay Member 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Rachel Jones Lay Member 9 15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20

Mark Weights Lay Member 10 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ruth Austin-Vincent Interim Lay Member 11 0 0 0 0 0 0

Chrissie Cooke Interim Director of Commissioning 12 10-15 0 0 0 0 10-15

Sheila Lynch Recovery Director 13 20-25 0 0 0 0 20-25

Mike Wyatt Interim Recovery Director 14 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sue Forster Director of Public Health 15 0 0 0 0 0 0

2016-17

Ruth Austen - Vincent 
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Table 19: Pension benefits as at 31 March 2018 (Subject to audit) 
 
Name Title Real increase Real increase Total accrued Lump sum at Cash Real increase Cash Employer's

in pension in pension pension at pension age Equivalent in Cash Equivalent contribution

at pension age lump sum at pension age at related to Transfer Equivalent Transfer to

(bands of pension age 31 March 2018 accrued Value at Transfer Value at 31 stakeholder

£2,500) (bands of (bands of pension at 31 1 April 2017 Value March 2018 pension

£2,500) £5,000) March 2018

(bands of 

£5,000)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Geoffrey Appleton (1) Chair -                            -                         -                             -                       -                          -                          -                          -                 

Sarah O'Brien Clinical Chief Executive 2.5-5.0 12.5-15 25-30 85-90 371                          108                          483                         -                 

Sarah O'Brien (2015 Scheme) Clinical Chief Executive 0-2.5 N/A 5-10 N/A 33                            24                            57                            -                 

Julie Abbott Deputy Chief Executive 0-2.5 2.5-5 40-45 125-130 779                          64                            851                         -                 

Iain Stoddart Chief Finance Officer -                            -                         40-45 120-125 748                          21                            776                         -                 

Iain Stoddart (2015 Scheme) Chief Finance Officer 0-2.5 N/A 5-10 N/A 35                            25                            61                            -                 

Lisa Ellis Interim Chief Nurse 0-2.5 5-7.5 20-25 65-70 307                          39                            349                         -                 

Lisa Ellis (2015 Scheme) Interim Chief Nurse 0-2.5 N/A 0-5 N/A 22                            15                            37                            -                 

1. Geoffrey Appleton opted out of the NHS Pension Scheme as at 1st June 2015.

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive members.

The pension entitlement above is the total pension entitlement for each Director, is not split across other organisations and may have been partly accrued in a non senior manager capacity.

Under the 2015 section of the NHS Pension Scheme, no lump sum benefit is accrued.  

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

Real Increase in CETV

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s 

accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. CETVs are calculated in accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer 

Values) Regulations 2008.

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any 

benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the Superannuation Contributions Adjusted for Past Experience (SCAPE) discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects the 

calculation of CETV figures in this report.
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Compensation on early retirement of for loss of office 
The CCG has made no payments in relation to compensation on early retirement for 
loss of office. 
 
Payments to past members 
The CCG has made no payments to past members. 
 
Pay multiples (Subject to audit) 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration 
of the highest-paid director/Member in their organisation and the median 
remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.       
            
The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Governing Body in the 
CCG in the financial year 2017/18 was £125,000-£130,000 (2016/17: £110,000 - 
£115,000).  This was 3.58 times (2016/17: 3.19) the median remuneration of the 
workforce, which was £35,577 (2016/17: £35,225).     
      
In 2017/18 no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid 
member of the Governing Body (2016/17: one).      
     
In 2017/18, remuneration ranged from £0-£5,000 to £125,000-£130,000 (2016/17: 
£0-£5,000 to £120,000-£125,000).       
       
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, 
benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension 
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.   
   
The calculation of the ratio between the remuneration of the highest paid director 
and the median remuneration of the workforce is based on full time equivalent 
employees in post at 31st March 2018 on an annualised basis, including staff who 
are paid through the payroll system and agency workers. As the CCG is not party to 
the actual amount earned by agency workers an estimate of their salary, based upon 
the charge out rate from the agency on an annualized basis using 220 working days, 
has been included for this calculation. The median remuneration is the total 
remuneration of the staff member lying in the middle of the linear distribution of the 
total staff, excluding the highest paid director. A median will not be significantly 
affected by large or small salaries  that may skew an average (mean) – hence it is 
more transparent in highlighting whether a director is being paid significantly more 
than the middle staff in the organisation.   
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Staff Report  
Number of Senior Managers 
The CCG has the following number of Senior Managers in post as at 31st March 
2018  
 
Table 20 – Number of Senior Managers as of 31st March 2018 
 

Pay Band HC FTE 

AfC Band 8a 13 12.00 

AfC Band 8b 9 9.00 

AfC Band 8c 2 2.00 

AfC Band 8d 6 6.00 

AfC Band 9 1 1.00 

Medical (Non-AfC) 8 1.99 

Other (Non-AfC) 0 0.00 

VSM (Non-AfC) 6 3.81 

Total 45 35.81 
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Table 21: Staff Costs 2017/18 (Subject to audit) 
 

 
 
The staff costs above exclude the costs of the Chair, Lay Members, Non-Executive Members and clinical leads as, in accordance 
with the Group Accounting Manual, these costs are not classified as staff costs. They include staff on secondment or employed on 
an agency basis. 
 
 
 
 
 

Employee benefits 2017-18

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 3,329 3,221 108 2,005 1,897 108 1,324 1,324 0

Social security costs 353 352 1 211 210 1 142 142 0

Employer contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme 449 442 7 258 251 7 191 191 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Apprenticeship Levy 3 3 0 3 3 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 4,134 4,018 116 2,477 2,361 116 1,657 1,657 0

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (649) (649) 0 (14) (14) 0 (635) (635) 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including 

capitalised costs 3,485 3,369 116 2,463 2,347 116 1,022 1,022 0

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,485 3,369 116 2,463 2,347 116 1,022 1,022 0

Total Admin Programme
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As a comparator, the 2016/17 staff costs incurred were as follows in the table below: 
 
Table 22: Staff costs 2016/17 

 
Employee benefits 2016-17

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 3,111 2,832 279 2,078 1,799 279 1,033 1,033 0

Social security costs 313 313 0 203 203 0 110 110 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 361 361 0 213 213 0 148 148 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 7 7 0 0 0 0 7 7 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 3,792 3,513 279 2,495 2,216 279 1,297 1,297 0

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (186) (186) 0 0 0 0 (186) (186) 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised 

costs 3,606 3,328 279 2,495 2,216 279 1,112 1,112 0

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,606 3,328 279 2,495 2,216 279 1,112 1,112 0

Total Admin Programme
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Average Numbers of People Employed 
The CCG have employed the following number of people throughout 2017-18. This 
is calculated as an average of the Whole Time Equivalent employed each month 
throughout the year and as per staff costs above exclude the costs of the Chair, Lay 
Members, Non-Executive Members and clinical leads as, in accordance with the 
Group Accounting Manual, these costs are not classified as staff costs, but include 
staff on secondment or employed on an agency basis. 
 
Table 23: Average number of people employed (Subject to audit) 
 

  2017-18 2016-17 

  Total 
Permanently 
employed Other Total 

  Number Number Number Number 

Total 79 72 7 68 

Of the above:         

Number of whole time equivalent people 
engaged on capital projects 0 0 0 0 

 

Staff composition  
 

The CCG had the following numbers of staff in post as at 31st March 2018. 
These are based on head count of numbers in post at that date. 

Staff 
Female 
HC 

Female FTE 
Male 
HC 

Male 
FTE 

Total 
HC 

GBM 4 3.40 8 2.58 12 

Other members of 
staff 

65 60.09 18 17.45 83 

VSM 1 1.00 1 0.18 2 

Grand Total 70 64.49 27 20.21 97 

 
     

 
     St Helens CCG Gender Analysis 

Female 70 

Full Time 
Female 

50 51.55% 

72.16% 
Part Time 
Female 

20 20.62% 

Male 27 

Full Time Male 18 18.56% 

27.84% Part Time 
Male 

9 9.28% 

Totals 97 
 

97 
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Exit Packages 
The CCG did not agree any exit packages in 2017/18. 
For comparator purposes, two exit packages were agreed in 2016/17.  
 
There were no departures where special payments have been made. 
Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at 
the latest in full in the year of departure.    
    
No early retirement costs were agreed by St Helens CCG in 2017/18.  
Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pensions Scheme and are not 
included in the table.  
 
Other Agreed Departures 
There were no other agreed departures in 2017/18 (two in 2016/17 for comparator 
purposes. 
 
No non-contractual payments were made to individuals where the payment value 
was more than 12 months’ of their annual salary.  
 

Sickness absence data 
The below sickness absence data is taken from NHS Digital statistics published and 
related to the year ended 31 December 2017.  
 
NHS Sickness Absence Figures for NHS 2017/18 Financial Accounts  
 
Source: NHS Digital - Sickness Absence Publication - based on data from the ESR 
Data Warehouse 
Period covered: January to December 2017 
 
ESR does not hold details of normal number of days worked by each employee.  Data 
on days available and days recorded sick are based on a 365-day year. 

 Average Annual Sick Days per FTE has been estimated by dividing the estimated 
number of FTE-days sick by the average FTE, and multiplying by 225 (the typical 
number of working days per year). 

 There may be inconsistencies between these data and the statutory basis for 
accounts, in terms of the organisation against which staff are reported for a particular 
month. 
 

NHS Digital Statistics 

Copyright © 2016 and 2017, NHS Digital.  All rights reserved. 
This work remains the sole and exclusive property of the Health and Social 
Information Centre and may only be reproduced where there is explicit reference to 
the ownership of NHS Digital. 
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Name 

Figures Converted by DHSC to Best 
Estimates of Required Data Items 

Statistics Published by 
NHS Digital from ESR Data 

Warehouse 

Average FTE 
2017 

Adjusted 
FTE days 

lost to 
Cabinet 
Office 

definitions 

Average 
Sick Day per 

FTE 

FTE-Days 
Available 

FTE-Days 
Lost to 

Sickness 
Absence 

NHS St 
Helens CCG 

                         
76.4  

                          
653  8.5 

                     
27,889  

                       
1,059  

 
 
Staff policies 
The CCG is committed to equality of opportunity for all employees and is committed 
to employment practices, policies and procedures which ensure that no employee, or 
potential employee, receives less favourable treatment on the grounds of gender, 
race, colour, ethnic or national origin, sexual orientation, marital status, religion or 
belief, age, trade union membership, disability, offending background, domestic 
circumstances, social and employment status, HIV status, gender reassignment, 
political affiliation or any other personal characteristic as outlined in the Equality Act 
(2010) and any other status covered by the Human Rights Act 
(1998). Diversity is to be viewed positively and, in recognising that everyone is 
different, the unique contribution that each individual’s experience, knowledge and 
skills can make is valued equally. 

 
Expenditure on consultancy 
 
The CCG aimed to reduce the use of consultancy in year due to its financial deficit. 
The CCG spent £47,000 on consultancy in 2017/18, which reduced from £89,000 in 
2016/17. This was spent on interim project work in areas such as: 
  

 Primary Care 

 Commissioning 
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Off-payroll engagements  
 

Table 26 Off-payroll engagements longer than 6 
months 
 

 Off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2018, for 
more than £245 per day and that last longer than six 
months 

Number 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2018 0 

Of which, the number that have existed:   

for less than one year at the time of reporting 0 

for between one and two years at the time of reporting 0 

for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 0 

for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0 

for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0 

 
Table 27 New off-payroll engagements  
 

New off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2017 
and 31 March 2018 for more than £245 per day and 
that last longer than six months 

Number 

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six 
months in duration, between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 
2018 

1 

Of which:   

Number assessed as caught by IR35 0 

Number assessed as not caught by IR35 1 

    

Number engaged directly (via PSC contracted to 
department) and are on the departmental payroll 

0 

Number of engagements reassessed for 
consistency/assurance purposes during the year 

0 

Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 
status following the consistency review 

0 
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Table 28 Off-payroll engagements / senior official engagements 
For any off-payroll engagements of Board members and / or senior officials with 
significant financial responsibility, between 01 April 2017 and 31 March 2018.  
 

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, 
and/or senior officers with significant financial 
responsibility, during the year 

3* 

Number of individuals that have been deemed “board 
members, and/or senior officers with significant financial 
responsibility” during the financial year. This figure 
includes both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements 

16* 

 
*The 3 off-payroll engagements are recharged by other NHS organisations.  



     

 
 Page 104  

 
 

 

Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 
 

St Helens CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability and Audit 
Report. Disclosures on remote contingent liabilities, gifts, and fees and charges are 
included as notes in the Financial Statements of this report at pages 19-28. An audit 
certificate and report is also included in this Annual Report at page 62. 
 
The CCG has had no losses or special payments in 2017/18. 
 
The CCG’s Gifts and Hospitality Register can be found via the link 
http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/public-information/register-of-interests/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Professor Sarah O’Brien 
Clinical Accountable Officer 
25th May 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sthelensccg.nhs.uk/public-information/register-of-interests/
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Independent auditor's report to the members of the Governing Body of NHS St Helens Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of NHS St Helens Clinical Commissioning Group (the ‘CCG’) for 
the year ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the 
Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity, the Statement of Cash 
Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 
Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2017-18 and the requirements of the 
Health and Social Care Act 2012. 
 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of  the CCG as at 31 March 2018 and of its expenditure and 
income for the year then ended; and 

 have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as 
adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care 
Group Accounting Manual 2017-18; and  

 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Health and Social Care Act 2012. 

 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
CCG in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 
the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Who we are reporting to 
This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of the CCG, as a body, in accordance with 
Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the members of the Governing Body of the CCG those matters we are required to state to them in 
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the CCG and the members of the Governing Body of the CCG, 
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to 
report to you were: 

 the Accountable Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is not appropriate; or 

 the Accountable Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt about the CCG’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised 
for issue. 

 

Other information 
The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report set out on pages 3 to 104, other than the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.  
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our 

 
knowledge obtained in the course of our work including that gained through work in relation to the CCG’s 
arrangements for securing value for money through economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its 
resource or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in 
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact.  
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice 
Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and 
Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Governance 
Statement

2
 does not comply with the guidance issued by the NHS Commissioning Board or is misleading or 

inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider 
whether the Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed 
by internal controls.  
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice  
In our opinion:  

 the parts of the Remuneration Report and Staff  Report to be audited have been properly prepared in 
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the Department 
of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2017-18 and the requirements of the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012;  and 

 based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge of 
the CCG gained through our work in relation to the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with the financial 
statements in the annual report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is 
consistent with the financial statements. 
 
Qualified opinion on regularity required by the Code of Audit Practice  
In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion on regularity 
section of our report, in all material respects the expenditure and income recorded in the financial 
statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions in the 
financial statements conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Basis for qualified opinion on regularity 

The CCG reported a deficit of £4.8 million against its total in year revenue resource limit in its financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, thereby breaching its duty under the National Health Service 
Act 2006, as amended by paragraph 223I of Section 27 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012, to ensure 
that its revenue resource use in a financial year does not exceed the amount specified by direction of the 
NHS Commissioning Board.  
 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if: 

 we have reported a matter in the public interest under  Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 
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 we have referred a matter to the Secretary of State under Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 because we had reason to believe that the CCG,  or an officer of the CCG, was about to make, or 
had made, a decision which involved or would involve the body incurring unlawful expenditure, or was about 
to take, or had begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and 
likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or 

 we have made a written recommendation to the CCG under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit. 
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters except on 8 March 2018 we referred a matter to 
the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in relation to NHS St 
Helens CCG's planned breach of its revenue resource limit for the year ended 31 March 2018. 

Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer's responsibilities set out on pages 64 to 65, 
the Accountable Officer, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in the form and on the 
basis set out in the Accounts Directions, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such 
internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing the CCG’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the CCG lacks funding for its continued existence or when policy 
decisions have been made that affect the services provided by the CCG. 
 
The Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income in the financial 
statements. 
 
The Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance. 
 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 
auditor’s report. 
 
We are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in the financial 
statements in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. 

 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Conclusion on the CCG’s arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

Matter on which we are required to report by exception - CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if, in our opinion we have not been able to 
satisfy ourselves that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2018.   
 
We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter. 
 
 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities
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Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer 
 
As explained in the Governance Statement, the Accountable Officer is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the CCG's resources. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources 
 
We are required under Section 21(3)(c) and Schedule 13 paragraph 10(a) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and to report where we have not been able to satisfy 
ourselves that it has done so. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects 
of the CCG's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 
operating effectively. 
 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to 
whether in all significant respects, the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider 
under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 
2018, and to report by exception where we are not satisfied. 

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we 
undertook such work as we considered necessary to be satisfied that the CCG has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Certificate 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of NHS St Helens Clinical 
Commissioning Group in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
and the Code of Audit Practice. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
Mark Heap 
Director for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP 
 
4 Hardman Square 
Spinningfields 
Manchester 
M3 3EB 
 
25th May 2018
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2018

2017-18 2016-17

Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 (2,661) (1,561)

Other operating income 2 (1,136) (672)

Total operating income (3,797) (2,233)

Staff costs 4 4,134 3,792

Purchase of goods and services 5 332,386 323,165

Depreciation and impairment charges 5 2 2

Provision expense 5 0 0

Other Operating Expenditure 5 1,247 1,524

Total operating expenditure 337,769 328,483

Net Operating Expenditure 333,972 326,250

Finance income

Finance expense 10 0 0

Net expenditure for the year 333,972 326,250

Net Gain/(Loss) on Transfer by Absorption 0 0

Total Net Expenditure for the year 333,972 326,250

Other Comprehensive Expenditure

Items which will not be reclassified to net operating costs

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of PPE 0 0

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of Intangibles 0 0

Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of Financial Assets 0 0

Actuarial (gain)/loss in pension schemes 0 0

Impairments and reversals taken to Revaluation Reserve 0 0

Items that may be reclassified to Net Operating Costs 0 0

Net gain/loss on revaluation of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Sub total 0 0

Comprehensive Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2018 333,972 326,250

Note 1 to note 42 form part of this statement.
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18

Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2018

2017-18 2016-17

Note £'000 £'000

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 13 7 9

Intangible assets 14 205 0

Investment property 15 0 0

Trade and other receivables 17 0 0

Other financial assets 18 0 0

Total non-current assets 212 9

Current assets:

Inventories 16 0 0

Trade and other receivables 17 5,562 4,912

Other financial assets 18 0 0

Other current assets 19 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents 20 11 42

Total current assets 5,573 4,954

Non-current assets held for sale 21 0 0

Total current assets 5,573 4,954

Total assets 5,785 4,963

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 (14,339) (13,448)

Other financial liabilities 24 0 0

Other liabilities 25 0 0

Borrowings 26 0 0

Provisions 30 0 0

Total current liabilities (14,339) (13,448)

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (8,554) (8,485)

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 0 0

Other financial liabilities 24 0 0

Other liabilities 25 0 0

Borrowings 26 0 0

Provisions 30 0 0

Total non-current liabilities 0 0

Assets less Liabilities (8,554) (8,485)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity

General fund (8,554) (8,485)

Revaluation reserve 0 0

Other reserves 0 0

Charitable Reserves 0 0

Total taxpayers' equity: (8,554) (8,485)

Note 1 to note 42 form part of this statement.

The financial statements including notes 1 to 42 were approved by the Audit Committee on 24th May 2018 and signed on

Professor Sarah O’Brien

Clinical Accountable Officer

25th May 2018

its behalf by:
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers' Equity for the year ended

31 March 2018

General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2017-18

Balance at 01 April 2017 (8,485) 0 0 (8,485)

Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS 

bodies 0 0 0 0

Adjusted CCG balance at 31 March 2018 (8,485) 0 0 (8,485)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2017-18

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (333,972) 0 0 (333,972)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 0 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0

Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0

Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year (333,972) 0 0 (333,972)

Net funding 333,903 0 0 333,903

Balance at 31 March 2018 (8,554) 0 0 (8,554)

General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17

Balance at 01 April 2016 (7,448) 0 0 (7,448)

Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1 

April 2013 transition 0 0 0 0

Adjusted CCG balance at 31 March 2017 (7,448) 0 0 (7,448)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17

Net operating costs for the financial year (326,250) 0 0 (326,250)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 0 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0 0 0

Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0

Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year (326,250) 0 0 (326,250)

Net funding 325,213 0 0 325,213

Balance at 31 March 2017 (8,485) 0 0 (8,485)

Note 1 to note 42 form part of this statement.
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 March 2018

2017-18 2016-17

Note £'000 £'000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (333,972) (326,250)

Depreciation and amortisation 5 2 2

Impairments and reversals 5 0 0

Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption 0 0

Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange 0 0

Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Interest paid 0 0

Release of PFI deferred credit 0 0

Other Gains & Losses 9 0 0

Finance Costs 10 0 0

Unwinding of Discounts 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 17 (651) 1,423

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 23 892 (386)

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 0 0

Provisions utilised 30 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 30 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (333,729) (325,212)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest received 0 0

(Payments) for property, plant and equipment 0 0

(Payments) for intangible assets (205) 0

(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health 0 0

(Payments) for other financial assets 0 0

(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT) 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT) 0 0

Loans made in respect of LIFT 0 0

Loans repaid in respect of LIFT 0 0

Rental revenue 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities (205) 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (333,934) (325,212)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Grant in Aid Funding Received 333,903 325,213

Other loans received 0 0

Other loans repaid 0 0

Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT 0 0

Capital grants and other capital receipts 0 0

Capital receipts surrendered 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 333,903 325,213

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 20 (31) 2

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 42 40

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies 0 0

Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 11 42

Note 1 to note 42 form part of this statement.
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18 
    
Notes to the financial statements 
    
1 Accounting Policies 
  NHSE has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups 

(CCGs) shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group Accounting Manual 
(GAM) issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. Consequently, the 
following financial statements of NHS St Helens CCG (the CCG) have been 
prepared in accordance with the GAM 2017-18 issued by the Department of Health 
and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM follow International 
Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and 
appropriate to CCGs, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the 
Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the GAM permits a choice of 
accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to 
the particular circumstances of the CCG for the purpose of giving a true and fair 
view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the CCG are described 
below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered 
material in relation to the accounts. 

1.1 Going Concern 
  The CCG's financial accounts have been prepared under a direction issued by the 

NHS Commissioning Board under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended).  In light of the 2017/18 planned deficit and referral to the Secretary of 
State under Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, made on the 
8th March 2018, the CCG has undertaken an assessment of its status as a going 
concern.  The CCG's financial plan for 2018/19 is to break even in year and the 
CCG will be submitting an improvement plan to NHSE by 30th June 2018 that will 
demonstrate how it will get back in to cumulative financial balance.  This recovery 
and improvement plan will supplement the annual plan of 30th April which will be 
subject to NHSE assurance processes. 

  Regardless, for non-trading entities in the public sector, the anticipated continuation 
of the provision of a service in the future, as evidenced by inclusion of financial 
provision for that service in published documents, is normally sufficient evidence of 
going concern.  

  Therefore based on the above, the accounts have been prepared on a going 
concern basis on the basis that: 
• Health care services will continue to be provided for residents of St Helens; 
• The CCG has a financial plan in place for 2018/19 which is for a break even 
position and will be developing a long term plan for cumulative recovery to specified 
statutory and financial control metrics on an ongoing basis. 

1.2  Accounting Convention 

  These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 
1.3 Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations 
  Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the 

public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease 
entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public 
sector body to another. 

1.4 Movement of Assets within the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
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  Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption 
accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting Manual, issued by HM 
Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require 
retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for 
under merger accounting) have not been restated. Absorption accounting requires 
that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with 
no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public 
sector.  Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed separately 
from operating costs. 

  Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health and Social 
Care Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income 
and expenditure entries. 

1.5 Charitable Funds 

  The CCG did not operate any charitable funds in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-
17: nil). 

1.6 Pooled Budgets 

  Where the CCG has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of 
the National Health Service Act 2006 the CCG accounts for its share of the assets, 
liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, 
identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement. 

  If the CCG is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the CCG recognises: 
  ·                The assets the CCG controls; 
  ·                The liabilities the CCG incurs; 
  ·                The expenses the CCG incurs; and, 
  ·                The CCG’s share of the income from the pooled budget activities. 
  If the CCG is involved in a “jointly controlled assets” arrangement, in addition to the 

above, the CCG recognises: 
  ·                The CCG’s share of the jointly controlled assets (classified according to 

the nature of the assets); 
  ·                The CCG’s share of any liabilities incurred jointly; and, 
  ·                The CCG’s share of the expenses jointly incurred. 
1.7 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
  In the application of the CCG’s accounting policies, management is required to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that 
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and 
the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

1.7.1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
  Apart from those involving estimations (see below), the CCG has made no critical 

judgements in applying accounting policies. 
1.7.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
  The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of 

applying the CCG’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements: 

  Payables estimates 
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  Due to the time lag around availability of data, the prescribing payable is estimated 
as the difference between the prescribing expenditure profile to 31 March 2018 (as 
determined by the NHS Business Services Authority) and the actual confirmed 
amount of expenditure recorded.  The key risk is that the actual data is different to 
the estimates made, resulting in the prescribing payable being either over or 
understated.  As at 31 March 2018 the prescribing payable was £5.56 million (31 
March 2017: £5.95 million).  The payable is lower at 31 March 2018 compared to 
the prior year as it accounts for the impact of GP practices modifying their repeat 
prescriptions within the final two months of the year.  The majority of GP practices 
are not expected to dispense repeat prescriptions within the final two months of the 
financial year that are intended for use by the patient after 31 March 2018. 

1.8 Revenue 

  Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, 
performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
receivable. 

  Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the 
following year, that income is deferred. 

1.9 Employee Benefits 
1.9.1 Short-term Employee Benefits 
  Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in 

which the service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet 
taken. 

  The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is not 
recognised in the financial statements as it is deemed that the impact is immaterial. 

1.9.2 Retirement Benefit Costs 
  Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions 

Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS 
employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the 
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in 
a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying 
scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a 
defined contribution scheme: the cost to the CCG of participating in the scheme is 
taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. 

  For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension 
liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the 
additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the CCG commits itself to the 
retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 

1.10 Other Expenses 
  Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or 

services have been received. They are measured at the fair value of the 
consideration payable. 

  Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the CCG has a 
present legal or constructive obligation, which occurs when all of the conditions 
attached to the payment have been met. 

1.11 Property, Plant & Equipment 
1.11.1 Recognition 
  Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if: 
  ·                It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes; 
  ·                It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service 

potential will be supplied to the CCG; 
  ·                It is expected to be used for more than one financial year; 
  ·                The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and, 
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  ·                The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or, 
  ·                Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and 

individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are functionally 
interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to 
have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control; or, 

  ·                Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new 
building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost. 

  Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with 
significantly different asset lives, the components are treated as separate assets 
and depreciated over their own useful economic lives. 

1.11.2 Valuation 
  All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the 

cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management. All assets are measured subsequently at valuation. 

  Land and buildings used for the CCG’s services or for administrative purposes are 
stated in the statement of financial position at their re-valued amounts, being the fair 
value at the date of revaluation less any impairment. 

  Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying 
amounts are not materially different from those that would be determined at the end 
of the reporting period. Fair values are determined as follows: 

  ·                Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use; and, 
  ·                Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost. 
  HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost 

valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it would meet the 
location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be 
valued. 

  Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are 
carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not 
borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 
23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are re-valued and depreciation commences 
when they are brought into use. 

  Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not 
considered to be materially different from current value in existing use. 

  An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it 
reverses an impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in 
which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously 
charged there. A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic 
value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation 
reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, 
thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of 
economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the 
revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Net Expenditure. 

  The CCG had no property as at 31 March 2018 therefore there has not been any 
property revaluation in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil). 

1.11.3 Subsequent Expenditure 
  Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, 

the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure restores 
the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing 
carrying value of the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating 
expenses. 
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1.12 Intangible Assets 
1.12.1 Recognition 

  Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are 
capable of sale separately from the rest of the CCG’s business or which arise from 
contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only: 

  ·                When it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service 
potential be provided to, the CCG; 

  ·                Where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably; and, 
  ·                Where the cost is at least £5,000. 
  Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Software 

that is integral to the operating of hardware, for example an operating system, is 
capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software 
that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for example application software, is 
capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not capitalised but is 
recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-
generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been 
demonstrated: 

  ·                The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will 
be available for use; 

  ·                The intention to complete the intangible asset and use it; 
  ·                The ability to sell or use the intangible asset; 
  ·                How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits 

or service potential; 
  ·                The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to 

complete the intangible asset and sell or use it; and, 
  ·                The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the 

intangible asset during its development. 
1.12.2 Measurement 
  The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum 

of the expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria above are initially met. 
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure 
is recognised in the period in which it is incurred. 

  Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at current value in existing 
use by reference to an active market, or, where no active market exists, at the lower 
of depreciated replacement cost or the value in use where the asset is income 
generating . Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the 
opposing effects of increases in development costs and technological advances. 

1.13 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments 
  Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not 

depreciated. 
  Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or 

valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less 
any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the 
consumption of economic benefits or service potential of the assets. The estimated 
useful life of an asset is the period over which the CCG expects to obtain economic 
benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the CCG and may be 
shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual 
values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a 
prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives. 
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  At each reporting period end, the CCG checks whether there is any indication that 
any of its tangible or intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset 
is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. 
Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually. 

  A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service 
potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve to the 
extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to 
expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic 
benefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, 
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the 
recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined 
had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is 
credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and 
thereafter to the revaluation reserve. 

1.14 Donated Assets 
  The CCG had no donated assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil). 
1.15  Government Grants 
  The value of assets received by means of a government grant are credited directly 

to income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the 
grant preclude immediate recognition of the gain. 

1.16 Non-current Assets Held For Sale 
  The CCG had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 

2017: nil). 
1.17 Leases 
  Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards 

of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases. 

1.17.1 The CCG as Lessee 
  Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at 

the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the 
minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the 
lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of 
the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining 
balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the CCG’s 
surplus/deficit. 

  Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and 
subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

  Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

  Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are 
separated and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance 
leases. 

1.17.2 The CCG as Lessor 
  Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the 

amount of the CCG’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is 
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on 
the CCG’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases. 

  Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an 
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
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recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

1.18 Private Finance Initiative Transactions 
  The CCG is not party to any Private Finance Initiative (PFI) schemes as at 31 March 

2018 (31 March 2017: nil). 
1.19 Inventories 
  The CCG did not hold any inventories as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil). 
1.20 Cash & Cash Equivalents 

  Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that 
mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 

  In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the CCG’s 
cash management. 

1.21   Provisions 

  Provisions are recognised when the CCG has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the CCG will be required to 
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking 
into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the 
cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value 
of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows: 

  ·                Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 2.420% (previously: 
minus 2.70%) 

  ·                Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.85% (previously: 
minus 1.95%) 

  ·                Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Minus 1.56% (previously: minus 
0.80%) 

  When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are 
expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an 
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of 
the receivable can be measured reliably. 

  A restructuring provision is recognised when the CCG has developed a detailed 
formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected 
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing 
its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring 
provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which 
are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not 
associated with on-going activities of the entity. 

1.22   Clinical Negligence Costs 
  The NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the CCG pays an 

annual contribution to the NHS Resolution which in return settles all clinical 
negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS 
Resolution is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal 
liability remains with the CCG. 

1.23   Non-clinical Risk Pooling 
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  The CCG participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third 
Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the CCG pays an 
annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives assistance with 
the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses 
payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and 
when they become due. 

1.24 Continuing healthcare risk pooling 

  In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was introduced by NHSE for continuing healthcare 
claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.  Under the scheme the CCG 
contributed annually to a pooled fund, which was used to settle the claims.  In 2017-
18 there was no requirement for CCGs to contribute in to the pool (2016-17: 
£224,000) 

1.25 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme 
  Carbon Reduction Commitment and similar allowances are accounted for as 

government grant funded intangible assets if they are not expected to be realised 
within twelve months, and otherwise as other current assets. They are valued at 
open market value. As the CCG makes emissions, a provision is recognised with an 
offsetting transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled on surrender of the 
allowances. The asset, provision and deferred income amounts are valued at fair 
value at the end of the reporting period.   The CCG considers this to be immaterial 
therefore no provision was recognised as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil). 

1.26 Contingencies 
  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CCG, or a present 
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be 
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a 
payment is remote. 

  A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the CCG. A contingent asset 
is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

  Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their 
present value. 

  The CCG had no contingent assets or liabilities as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 
2017: nil). 

1.27 Financial Assets 
  Financial assets are recognised when the CCG becomes party to the financial 

instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services 
have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights 
have expired or the asset has been transferred. 

  Financial assets are classified into the following categories: 
  ·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss; 
  ·                Held to maturity investments; 
  ·                Available for sale financial assets; and, 
  ·                Loans and receivables. 
  The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is 

determined at the time of initial recognition. 
1.27.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 
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  Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host 
contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot 
be ascertained, are treated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. 
They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating 
the CCG’s surplus or deficit for the year. The net gain or loss incorporates any 
interest earned on the financial asset. 

1.27.2 Held to Maturity Assets 

  Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturity, and there is a positive intention and 
ability to hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised 
using the effective interest method. 

1.27.3 Available For Sale Financial Assets 
  Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are 

designated as available for sale or that do not fall within any of the other three 
financial asset classifications. They are measured at fair value with changes in value 
taken to the revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. 
Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to surplus/deficit on de-recognition. 

1.27.4 Loans & Receivables 
  Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments which are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, they are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 
impairment.  Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

  Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, 
otherwise by valuation techniques. 

  The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, to the initial fair value of the 
financial asset. 

  At the end of the reporting period, the CCG assesses whether any financial assets, 
other than those held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial 
assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence 
of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows 
of the asset. 

  For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present 
value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The loss is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables. 

  If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the 
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was 
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through 
expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of 
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have 
been had the impairment not been recognised. 

1.28  Financial Liabilities 
  Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the 

CCG becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in 
the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, 
the liability has been paid or has expired. 

1.28.1 Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities 
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  Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of: 
  ·                The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less 

cumulative amortisation; and, 
  ·                The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in 

accordance with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

1.28.2  Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 
  Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host 

contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot 
be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. 
They are held at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the CCG’s 
surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest payable on the 
financial liability. 

1.28.3 Other Financial Liabilities 

  After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, except for loans from Department of Health and 
Social Care, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the life of the asset, 
to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the 
effective interest method. 

1.29  Value Added Tax 
  Most of the activities of the CCG are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, 

output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. 
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the 
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT 
is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 

1.3 Foreign Currencies 
  The CCG’s functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions 

denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rate 
ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary 
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate 
on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are 
recognised in the CCG’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise. 

1.31 Third Party Assets 
  Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not 

recognised in the accounts since the CCG has no beneficial interest in them. 
1.32  Losses & Special Payments 
  Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have 

contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By 
their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject 
to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are 
divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are 
handled. 

  Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in 
expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made 
good through insurance cover had the CCG group not been bearing its own risks 
(with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure). 

  The CCG made no losses or special payments in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-
17: nil). 

1.33 Subsidiaries 
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  Material entities over which the CCG has the power to exercise control so as to 
obtain economic or other benefits are classified as subsidiaries and are 
consolidated. Their income and expenses; gains and losses; assets, liabilities and 
reserves; and cash flows are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial 
statement lines. Appropriate adjustments are made on consolidation where the 
subsidiary’s accounting policies are not aligned with the CCG or where the 
subsidiary’s accounting date is not co-terminus. 

  Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’. 

1.34    Associates 
  Material entities over which the CCG has the power to exercise significant influence 

so as to obtain economic or other benefits are classified as associates and are 
recognised in the CCG’s accounts using the equity method. The investment is 
recognised initially at cost and is adjusted subsequently to reflect the CCG’s share 
of the entity’s profit/loss and other gains/losses. It is also reduced when any 
distribution is received by the CCG from the entity. 

  Joint ventures that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’. 

1.35   Joint Ventures 
  Material entities over which the CCG has joint control with one or more other parties 

so as to obtain economic or other benefits are classified as joint ventures. Joint 
ventures are accounted for using the equity method. 

  Joint ventures that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount or ‘fair value less costs to sell’. 

1.36  Joint Operations 

  Joint operations are activities undertaken by the CCG in conjunction with one or 
more other parties but which are not performed through a separate entity. The CCG 
records its share of the income and expenditure; gains and losses; assets and 
liabilities; and cash flows. 

1.37 Research & Development 

  Research and development expenditure is charged in the year in which it is 
incurred, except insofar as development expenditure relates to a clearly defined 
project and the benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure 
so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits expected and is amortised 
through the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure on a systematic basis 
over the period expected to benefit from the project. It should be re-valued on the 
basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as 
depreciation. 

1.38 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been 
Adopted 

  The DHSC Group accounting manual does not require the following Standards and 
Interpretations to be applied in 2017-18.  These standards are still subject to FREM 
adoption and early adoption is not therefore permitted. 

  ·                IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (application from 1 January 2018) 
  ·                IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts (not applicable to DH groups 

bodies) 
  ·                IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers (application from 1 

January 2018) 
  ·                IFRS 16: Leases (application from 1 January 2019) 
  ·                IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts (application from 1 January 2021) 
  ·                IFRIC 22: Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 

(application from 1 January 2018) 
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  ·                IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (application from 1 
January 2019) 

  The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the 
accounts for 2017-18, were they applied in that year. 
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18

2. Other Operating Revenue

2017-18 2016-17

Total Total

£'000 £'000

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 649 186

Patient transport services 0 0

Prescription fees and charges 0 0

Dental fees and charges 0 0

Education, training and research 15 25

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: NHS 0 0

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: non-NHS 0 0

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions: NHS Charity 0 0

Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions 0 0

Non-patient care services to other bodies 2,646 1,536

Continuing Health Care risk pool contributions 0 0

Income generation 0 0

Rental revenue from finance leases 0 0

Rental revenue from operating leases 0 0

Non cash apprenticeship training grants revenue 2 0

Other revenue 485 486

Total other operating revenue 3,797 2,233

Admin revenue is revenue received that is not directly atributable to the provision of healthcare or

healthcare related services.

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down 

directly into the bank account of the CCG and credited to the general reserve.

3. Revenue

All revenue is from the supply of services.  The CCG receives no revenue from the sale of goods.
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4. Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1.1 Employee benefits 2017-18

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 3,329 3,221 108

Social security costs 353 352 1

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 449 442 7

Other pension costs 0 0 0

Apprenticeship Levy 3 3 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 4,134 4,018 116

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) (649) (649) 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 3,485 3,369 116

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,485 3,369 116

4.1.1 Employee benefits 2016-17

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 3,111 2,832 279

Social security costs 313 313 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 361 361 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0

Apprenticeship Levy 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0

Termination benefits 7 7 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 3,792 3,513 279

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) (186) (186) 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 3,606 3,327 279

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 3,606 3,327 279

4.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 2017-18 2016-17

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits - Revenue

Salaries and wages (485) (485) 0 (150)

Social security costs (91) (91) 0 (15)

Employer contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme (73) (73) 0 (21)

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0 0

Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits (649) (649) 0 (186)

Total

Total
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4.2 Average number of people employed

2016-17

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number

Total 79 72 7 68

Of the above:

Number of whole time equivalent people 

engaged on capital projects 0 0 0 0

4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements

2017-18 2016-17

Number Number

Total Days Lost 653 564

Total Staff Years 76 64

Average working Days Lost 9 9

2017-18 2016-17

Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 0 0

£'000 £'000

Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year 0 0

4.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

2017-18 2017-18 2017-18

Number £ Number £ Number £

Less than £10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£100,001 to £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Over £200,001 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

Number £ Number £ Number £

Less than £10,000 0 0 1 7,170 1 7,170

£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 1 99,105 1 99,105

£100,001 to £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Over £200,001 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 2 106,275 2 106,275

Number £ Number £

Less than £10,000 0 0 0 0

£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0

£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 0 0

£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 0 0

£100,001 to £150,000 0 0 0 0

£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0

Over £200,001 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

Analysis of Other Agreed Departures

Number £ Number £

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs 0 0 1 7,170

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs 0 0 0 0

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs 0 0 0 0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice 0 0 1 99,105

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders 0 0 0 0

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval* 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 2 106,275

Where the CCG has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the CCG and not by the NHS Pension Scheme, and are included in the 

tables. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme and are not included in the tables.

2016-17

Compulsory redundancies Other agreed departures Total

2017-18 2016-17

The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

2017-18

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure.

Other agreed departures

These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year, of which there were none in 2017-18. The expense associated 

with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.

Compulsory redundancies Other agreed departures Total

Departures where special 

payments have been made

2016-17 2016-17

Departures where special 

payments have been made

2017-18 2016-17

Other agreed departures



 

 
 Page 129 

 
 

 

 

NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18 
 
4.5 Pension costs 
 
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension 
Schemes.  Details of the benefits payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the 
NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. 
 
Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and 
other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. 
They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their 
share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 
 
Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the 
cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions 
payable to that scheme for the accounting period. 
 
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not 
differ materially from those that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal 
actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be 
four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows: 
 
4.5.1 Accounting valuation 
 
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the 
Government Actuary’s Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an 
actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated 
membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing 
suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability 
as at 31 March 2018, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2017, updated to 31 March 
2018 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial 
assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the 
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used. 
 
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the 
scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These 
accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies 
can also be obtained from The Stationery Office. 
 
4.5.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation 
 
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due 
under the schemes (taking into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend 
contribution rates payable by employees and employers.  
 
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was 
completed for the year ending 31 March 2012. The Scheme Regulations allow for the level 
of contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of 
HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and employee and 
employer representatives as deemed appropriate.  
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The next actuarial valuation is to be carried out as at 31 March 2016 and is currently being 
prepared. The direction assumptions are published by HM Treasury which are used to 
complete the valuation calculations, from which the final valuation report can be signed off 
by the scheme actuary.  This will set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 
and will consider the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap. There are 
provisions in the Public Service Pension Act 2013 to adjust member benefits or contribution 
rates if the cost of the Scheme changes by more than 2% of pay. Subject to this ‘employer 
cost cap’ assessment, any required revisions to member benefits or contribution rates will be 
determined by the Secretary of State for Health after consultation with the relevant 
stakeholders. 
 
For 2017-18, employers’ contributions of £449,560 were payable to the NHS Pensions 
Scheme (2016-17: £388,327) were payable to the NHS Pension Scheme at the rate of 
14.38% of pensionable pay.  The scheme’s actuary reviews employer contributions, usually 
every four years and now based on HMT Valuation Directions, following a full scheme 
valuation.  The latest review used data from 31 March 2012 and was published on the 
Government website on 9 June 2012. These costs are included in the NHS pension line of 
note 4.1.1.  
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18

5. Operating expenses

2017-18 2016-17

Total Total

£'000 £'000

Gross employee benefits

Employee benefits excluding governing body members 3,743 3,360

Executive governing body members 391 432

Total gross employee benefits 4,134 3,792

Other costs

Services from other CCGs and NHS England 2,051 3,940

Services from foundation trusts 59,188 72,566

Services from other NHS trusts 150,964 130,099

Sustainability Transformation Fund 0 0

Services from other WGA bodies 0 49

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 38,027 33,021

Purchase of social care 12,402 12,483

Chair and Non Executive Members 257 246

Supplies and services – clinical 157 161

Supplies and services – general 93 141

Consultancy services 47 89

Establishment 503 441

Transport 3 2

Premises 1,499 1,122

Impairments and reversals of receivables 0 0

Inventories written down and consumed 0 0

Depreciation 2 2

Amortisation 0 0

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 0 0

Impairments and reversals of intangible assets 0 0

Impairments and reversals of financial assets

·          Assets carried at amortised cost 0 0

·          Assets carried at cost 0 0

·          Available for sale financial assets 0 0

Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale 0 0

Impairments and reversals of investment properties 0 0

Audit fees 50 59

Other non statutory audit expenditure

·          Internal audit services 0 0

·          Other services 0 0

General dental services and personal dental services 0 0

Prescribing costs 38,266 40,162

Pharmaceutical services 0 0

General ophthalmic services 0 0

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 28,892 28,344

Other professional fees excl. audit 150 173

Legal fees 21 35

Grants to Other bodies 888 1,173

Clinical negligence 0 0

Research and development (excluding staff costs) 0 0

Education and training 71 54

Change in discount rate 0 0

Provisions 0 0

Funding to group bodies 0 0

CHC Risk Pool contributions 0 224

Non cash apprenticeship training grants 2 0

Other expenditure 102 105

Total other costs 333,635 324,691

Total operating expenses 337,769 328,483

Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

In accordance with SI 2008 no.489, The Companies (Disclosure of Auditor Remuneration and Liability Limitation Agreements) 

Regulations 2008, where a CCG contract with its auditors provides for a limitation of the auditor’s liability, the principal terms of this 

limitation must be disclosed. The CCG's contract with it's external auditor does contain a limitation of liability clause with the 

absolute liability of both parties being capped at £2 million. This is in line with the standard Consultancy One approach and the 

external auditor's standard terms and conditions. 

The CCG's internal audit services, including local counter fraud services, were provided by The Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen 

University Hospitals NHS Trust as hosts of Mersey Internal Audit Agency, and this expenditure maps to Purchase Of Other Goods & 

Services - Miscellaneous Expenditure.  The total for 2017-18 was £41,920 (2016-17: £41,920).

To enable meaningful comparison with 2017-18, Other professional fees excl. audit have been reallocated for the year 2016-17.  £35k 

has been moved to Legal Fees.                                                                                          
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NHS St Helens CCG - Annual Accounts 2017-18

6.1 Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2017-18 2017-18 2016-17 2016-17

Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 5,886 81,965 5,982 77,208

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 5,750 80,799 5,771 75,627

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 97.69% 98.58% 96.47% 97.95%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 2,333 212,765 2,281 208,781

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 2,297 212,179 2,219 208,357

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 98.46% 99.72% 97.28% 99.80%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the CCG to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a

valid invoice, whichever is later, with a target performance of 95%.

The CCG met the 95% target in all areas for 2017-18.

6.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

The CCG did not make any payments under the provisions of the Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 in the 

financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

7. Income Generation Activities

8. Investment revenue

The CCG had no investment revenue in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

9. Other gains and losses

The CCG had no other gains and losses in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

10. Finance costs

The CCG had no finance costs in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

11. Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption

The CCG had no net gains and losses on transfer by absorption in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

The CCG had no income generation activities in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).
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12. Operating Leases

12.1 As lessee

12.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2017-18 2016-17

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 0 620 5 625 0 387 4 391

Contingent rents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-lease payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 620 5 625 0 387 4 391

12.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2017-18 2016-17

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:

No later than one year 0 60 2 62 0 121 0 121

Between one and five years 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0

After five years 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 60 4 64 0 121 0 121

The CCG has one operating lease agreement in place with St Helens Chamber for the lease of the CCG's HQ accommodation.  

The lease term is from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2018 and therefore has a maximum of 6 months remaining with a 

minimum lease payment of £60,095.  

The CCG also pays for void space and subsidies for properties owned and managed by Community Health Partnerships 

Limited (CHP) and NHS Property Services Limited (NHSPS).

Whilst the CCG's arrangements with CHP and NHSPS fall within the definition of operating leases, the rental charge for future 

years, including any charge for void space, has not yet been agreed.  Consequently, note 12.1.2 does not include future 

minimum lease payments for these arrangements.

The "Other" category in tables 12.1.1 and 12.1.2 relates to photocopier leases.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

2017-18

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation at 01 April 2017 16 167 183

Addition of assets under construction and payments on account 0

Additions purchased 0 0 0

Additions donated 0 0 0

Additions government granted 0 0 0

Additions leased 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0

Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2018 16 0 16

Depreciation 01 April 2017 7 167 174

Reclassifications 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0

Charged during the year 2 0 2

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0

Depreciation at 31 March 2018 9 0 9

Net Book Value at 31 March 2018 7 0 7

Purchased 7 0 7

Donated 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2018 7 0 7

Asset financing:

Owned 7 0 7

Held on finance lease 0 0 0

On-SOFP Lift contracts 0 0 0

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2018 7 0 7

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2017 0 0 0

Revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0

Release to general fund 0 0 0

Other movements 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2018 0 0 0
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13. Property, plant and equipment

2016-17

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Cost or valuation at 01 April 2016 16 167 183

Addition of assets under construction and payments on account 0

Additions purchased 0 0 0

Additions donated 0 0 0

Additions government granted 0 0 0

Additions leased 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0

Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2017 16 0 16

Depreciation 01 April 2016 5 167 172

Reclassifications 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 (167) (167)

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0

Charged during the year 2 0 2

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0

Depreciation at 31 March 2017 7 0 7

Net Book Value at 31 March 2017 9 0 9

Purchased 9 0 9

Donated 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2017 9 0 9

Asset financing:

Owned 9 0 9

Held on finance lease 0 0 0

On-SOFP Lift contracts 0 0 0

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2017 9 0 9

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Plant & 

machinery

Information 

technology Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2016 0 0 0

Revaluation gains 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0

Release to general fund 0 0 0

Other movements 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2017 0 0 0
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13 Property, plant and equipment cont'd

13.1 Additions to assets under construction

The CCG had no additions to assets under construction in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

13.2 Donated assets

The CCG had no donated assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil)

13.3 Government granted assets

The CCG had no Government granted assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil)

13.4 Property revaluation

The CCG had no property as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil) and therefore there has not been 

any property revaluation in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

13.5 Compensation from third parties

There has been no compensation received from third parties for assets impaired, lost or given up in 

the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

13.6 Write downs to recoverable amount

There have been no assets written down to recoverable amounts and no reversals of previous 

write-downs in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

13.7 Temporarily idle assets

The CCG had no temporarily idle assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

13.8 Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets

The CCG had no fully depreciated assets still in use as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

13.9 Economic lives

Buildings excluding dwellings 0 0

Dwellings 0 0

Plant & machinery 5 5

Transport equipment 0 0

Information technology 0 0

Furniture & fittings 0 0

Minimum 

Life (years)

Maximum 

Life (Years)
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14. Intangible non-current assets

2017-18

Computer 

Software: 

Purchased Total 

£'000 £'000

Cost or valuation at 01 April 2017 0 0

Additions purchased 205 205

Additions internally generated 0 0

Additions donated 0 0

Additions government granted 0 0

Additions leased 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0

Upward revaluation gains 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0

Cumulative amortisation adjustment following revaluation 0 0

Cost / Valuation At 31 March 2018 205 205

Amortisation 01 April 2017 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0

Upward revaluation gains 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0

Charged during the year 0 0

Transfer (to) from other public sector body 0 0

Cumulative amortisation adjustment following revaluation 0 0

Amortisation At 31 March 2018 0 0

Net Book Value at 31 March 2018 205 205

Purchased 205 205

Donated 0 0

Government Granted 0 0

Total at 31 March 2018 205 205

Revaluation Reserve Balance for intangible assets

Computer 

Software: 

Purchased Total 

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2017 0 0

Revaluation gains 0 0

Impairments 0 0

Release to general fund 0 0

Other movements 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2018 0 0
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14. Intangible non-current assets cont'd

14.1 Donated assets

The CCG had no donated intangible assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

14.2 Government granted assets

The CCG had no donated government granted intangible assets as at 31 March 2018 

(31 March 2017: nil).

14.3 Revaluation

There has been no any revaluation of intangible non-current assets in the financial year 2017-18 

(2016-17: nil).

14.4 Compensation from third parties

There has been no compensation received from third parties for intangible assets impaired, lost or 

given up in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

14.5 Write downs to recoverable amount

There have been no intangible assets written down to recoverable amounts and no reversals of 

previous write-downs in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

14.6 Non-capitalised assets

14.7 Temporarily idle assets

The CCG had no temporarily idle intangible assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

14.8 Cost or valuation of fully amortised assets

The CCG had no fully amortised intangible assets still in use as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

14.9 Economic lives

Computer software: purchased 5 5

Computer software: internally generated 0 0

Licences & trademarks 0 0

Patents 0 0

Development expenditure (internally generated) 0 0

15. Investment property

The CCG had no investment property as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

16. Inventories

The CCG had no inventories as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

Minimum 

Life (years)

Maximum 

Life (Years)

There have been no non-capitalised intangible assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).
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17.  Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current

2017-18 2017-18 2016-17 2016-17

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NHS receivables: Revenue 426 0 230 0

NHS receivables: Capital 0 0 0 0

NHS prepayments 0 0 0 0

NHS accrued income 2,699 0 2,472 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue 392 0 506 0

Non-NHS  and Other WGA receivables: Capital 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments 125 0 51 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income 364 0 120 0

Provision for the impairment of receivables 0 0 0 0

VAT 8 0 15 0

Private finance initiative and other public private partnership 

arrangement prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Interest receivables 0 0 0 0

Finance lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Operating lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Other receivables and accruals 1,548 0 1,518 0

Total Trade & other receivables 5,562 0 4,912 0

Total current and non current 5,562 4,912

Included above:

Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0

The majority of trade is with NHS England.  As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to CCGs to 

commission services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

17.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 2017-18 2017-18 2016-17

£'000 £'000 £'000

DH Group 

Bodies

Non DH 

Group Bodies

All receivables 

prior years

By up to three months 364 383 358

By three to six months 1 1 10

By more than six months 7 5 9

Total 372 389 377

£501,408.39 of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.

The CCG did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

17.2  Provision for impairment of receivables

The CCG conducted an impairment review of all receivables as at 31 March 2018.

The CCG does not have any provision for impairment of receivables as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil) as it believes 

the credit quality of all receivables to be sufficient that no provision for impairment is required.

18. Other financial assets

The CCG had no other financial assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

19. Other current assets

The CCG had no other current assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).
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20. Cash and cash equivalents

2017-18 2016-17

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2017 42 40

Net change in year (31) 2

Balance at 31 March 2018 11 42

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 11 42

Cash with Commercial banks 0 0

Cash in hand 0 0

Current investments 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 11 42

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft: Commercial banks 0 0

Total bank overdrafts 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2018 11 42

Patients’ money held by the CCG, not included above 0 0

21. Non-current assets held for sale

The CCG had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

22. Analysis of impairments and reversals

The CCG had no impairments or reversals of impairments recognised in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

Current Non-current Current Non-current

2017-18 2017-18 2016-17 2016-17

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Interest payable 0 0 0 0

NHS payables: revenue 806 0 1,518 0

NHS payables: capital 0 0 0 0

NHS accruals 1,765 0 477 0

NHS deferred income 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue 169 0 1,049 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Capital 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 3,295 0 9,956 0

Non-NHS and Other WGA deferred income 0 0 0 0

Social security costs 59 0 45 0

VAT 0 0 0 0

Tax 49 0 38 0

Payments received on account 0 0 0 0

Other payables and accruals 8,196 0 365 0

Total Trade & Other Payables 14,339 0 13,448 0

Total current and non-current 14,339 13,448

Other payables include £68,755 outstanding staff pension contributions as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: £54,582) and £230,484 

outstanding GP pension contributions as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: £199,898).

In 2017-18 NHS England amended the coding guidance and mapping of the payables subjective codes.  The accruals for prescribing

and delegated co-commissioning now map to 'Other payables and accruals', however in 2016-17 these accruals mapped to 'Non-NHS

The CCG had no other financial liaibilities as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

25. Other liabilities

The CCG had not other liaibilities as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

26. Borrowings

The CCG had no borrowings as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

27. Private finance initiative, LIFT and other service concession arrangements

The CCG had no private finance initiatives, LIFT or other service concession arrangements as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

28. Finance lease obligations

The CCG had no finance lease obligations as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

29. Finance lease receivables

The CCG had no finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

30. Provisions

Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is responsible for accounting for liabilities

in relation to CHC Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before the establishment of the CCG. However, the legal

liability remains with the CCG. The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on 

behalf of the CCG as at 31 March 2018 was £0.1 million (31 March 2017: £0.2 million).

24. Other financial liabilities

23. Trade and other payables

and Other WGA accruals'.
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31. Contingencies

The CCG had no contingencies as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

32. Commitments

The CCG had no capital or other financial commitments as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

33. Financial instruments

33.1 Financial risk management

33.1.1 Currency risk

33.1.2 Interest rate risk

33.1.3 Credit risk

33.1.3 Liquidity risk

The CCG is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted annually 

by Parliament. The CCG draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The CCG is not, therefore, exposed to 

significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in 

creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

Because the CCG is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by 

business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be 

typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The CCG has limited powers to borrow 

or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than 

being held to change the risks facing the CCG in undertaking its activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the 

CCG standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the 

CCG and internal auditors.

The CCG is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK 

and sterling based. The CCG has no overseas operations. The CCG therefore has low exposure to currency rate 

fluctuations.

The CCG borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England. The 

borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans 

Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The CCG therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the CCG's revenue comes parliamentary funding, the CCG has low exposure to credit risk. The 

maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and 

other receivables note.
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33. Financial instruments cont'd

33.2 Financial assets

At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’

Loans and 

Receivables

Available for 

Sale Total

2017-18 2017-18 2017-18 2017-18

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables:

·          NHS 0 3,125 0 3,125

·          Non-NHS 0 756 0 756

Cash at bank and in hand 0 11 0 11

Other financial assets 0 1,548 0 1,548

Total at 31 March 2018 0 5,440 0 5,440

At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’

Loans and 

Receivables

Available for 

Sale Total

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables:

·          NHS 0 2,702 0 2,702

·          Non-NHS 0 626 0 626

Cash at bank and in hand 0 42 0 42

Other financial assets 0 1,518 0 1,518

Total at 31 March 2017 0 4,888 0 4,888

33.3 Financial liabilities

At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’ Other Total

2017-18 2017-18 2017-18

£'000 £'000 £'000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

Payables:

·          NHS 0 2,571 2,571

·          Non-NHS 0 11,660 11,660

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations 0 0 0

Other borrowings 0 0 0

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2018 0 14,231 14,231

At ‘fair value 

through profit 

and loss’ Other Total

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

£'000 £'000 £'000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

Payables:

·          NHS 0 1,995 1,995

·          Non-NHS 0 11,370 11,370

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations 0 0 0

Other borrowings 0 0 0

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2017 0 13,365 13,365
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34. Operating segments

The CCG considers that it only has one operating segment: commissioning of healthcare services.

35. Pooled budgets

The CCG's shares of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year were:

2017-18 2016-17

£'000 £'000

Income 35,310 28,744

Expenditure (35,679) (30,808)

36. NHS Lift investments

The CCG had no LIFT investments as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

The CCG and Local Authority have pooled budgets for the majority of Continuing Health Care (CHC) and share 

financial risk on the pooled budget fund with the CCG contributing £20.9 million of the total pooled amount of 

£29.1 million.  CHC is hosted and managed by the Local Authority including the assessment and management of 

cases.  The pooled budget for the Better Care Fund is £22.12 million with the CCG contributing £14.4 million.
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37. Related party transactions

2017-18

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner in Park House Surgery 1,044 0 32 0

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member: Related Party is St Helens ROTA GP Member 897 0 123 0

Mr Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer (until April 17): Related Party is Chief Finance Officer of 

Knowsley CCG 820 (271) 0 (102)

Mr Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer (until April 17): Related Party is Chief Finance Officer of 

Halton CCG 29 (1) 0 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member: Related Party is St Helens GP ROTA Member 897 0 123 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner in Central Surgery GMS 

Practice 1,045 0 35 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner in Mill Street Medical Centre 1,591 0 45 (52)

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Member practice of St Helens ROTA 897 0 123 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Federation of Training Practices in St 

Helens business arm Aspect Health Ltd. 20 0 0 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner in Crossroads Medical Surgery 400 0 6 0

Mr Mike Wyatt - Recovery Director: Related Party is Strategic Director of People’s Services for St 

Helens Council 41,828 (1,037) 714 (44)

Mr Iain Stoddart - Chief Finance Officer: Related Party is NHS Knowsley CCG Chief Finance Officer 

until Jan-18 820 (271) 0 (102)

Mark Weights - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Director for SHAP Ltd 16 0 0 0

Susan Forster - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Director of Public Health for St Helens 

Council 41,828 (1,037) 714 (44)

Ruth Austin-Vincent - Lay Member: Related Party is Lay Member for Halton CCG 29 (1) 0 0

Julie Abbott - Deputy Chief Executive/ Director: Commissioning: Related Party is son employed by 

Mersey Internal Audit Agency hosted by Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen NHS Hospital Trust 6,168 0 2 (405)

James Catania -  Governing Body Member: Related Party is Stockport NHS FT 19 0 0 0

Tony Foy - Lay Member, Governing Body: Related Party is Observer at STHK trust board 136,306 (58) 369 (661)

Dr Omar Shaikh -Governing Body Member: Related Party is GP Member at Newholme Surgery 607 0 19 0

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party.  In the financial year 2017-18 the CCG has had a significant number of material 

transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are:

• St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust

• Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

• Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Liverpool Women's Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust

• Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust

• Wrightingon, Wigan and Leigh NHS Foundation Trust

• Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

• Alder Hey Childrens NHS Foundation Trust

• 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

• The Walton Centre NHS Foundation Trust

• North West Ambulance NHS Trust

• NHS Business Services Authority

• NHS Litigation Authority

• NHS Pensions Agency

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

• NHS England (including NHS Midlands & Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit and NHS Arden & Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit)

In addition, the CCG has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies.  Most of these 

transactions have been with St Helens Council.

Ruth Austen-Vincent 
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37. Related party transactions (cont'd)

2016-17

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£000 £000 £000 £000

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner in Park House Surgery 967 0 33 0

Dr Joseph Banat - Governing Body Member: Related Party is St Helens ROTA GP Member 1,106 0 89 0

Prof Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive and Governing Body Member (until Aug 16): Related 

Party is Partner at Spinney Medical Centre, St Helens.   984 0 47 (11)

Prof Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive and Governing Body Member (until Aug 16): Related 

Party is Practice is member of Federation of St Helens Training Practices which has a provider arm 

(Aspect Health Ltd).  18 (5) 13 0

Prof Stephen Cox - Clinical Chief Executive and Governing Body Member (until Aug 16): Related 

Party is Practice is a member of St Helens Rota Ltd - Out of Hours provider.  1,106 0 89 0

Mr Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer (until April 17): Related Party is Employee Knowsley CCG 1,266 (296) 103 0

Mr Paul Brickwood - Chief Finance Officer (until April 17): Related Party is Employee Halton CCG 64 (5) 0 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member: Related Party is St Helens GP Rota Member 1,106 0 89 0

Dr Michael Ejuoneatse - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Central Surgery GMS Practice 784 0 37 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner of Mill Street Medical Centre 1,613 0 97 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Member practice of St Helens Rota. 1,106 0 89 0

Dr Hilary Flett - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Federation of Training Practices in St 

Helens business arm Aspect Health Ltd. 18 (5) 13 0

Dr Paul Rose - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Partner in Crossroads Medical Surgery 405 0 10 0

Dr Julie Whittaker - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Patterdale Lodge Medical Services 

Ltd. 1,503 0 64 0

Mr Mike Wyatt - Recovery Director: Related Party is Strategic Director of People’s Services St 

Helens Council 31,978 (856) 238 (414)

Elaine Inglesby - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Executive Director of Salford Royal 

Foundation Trust/Pennine Acute NHS Trust. 590 0 0 (60)

Elaine Inglesby - Governing Body Member: Related Party is Trustee Willow Brook Hospice. 1,061 0 22 0

Mr Iain Stoddart - Chief Finance Officer (from Dec 2016): Related Party is NHS Knowsley CCG 

Employee 1,266 (296) 103 0

Prof Sarah O'Brien - Interim Clinical Chief Executive: Related Party is Diabetes Clinic services at The 

Spinney Medical Centre. Non paid role. 984 0 47 (11)

Susan Forster - Governing Body Member: Related Party is St Helens Council 31,978 (856) 238 (414)

Katie Power - Non-Voting Governing Body Member: Related Party is Spinney Medical Centre 984 0 47 (11)

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  In the financial year 2016-17 the CCG has had a significant number of material transactions with 

entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.  These entities are:

• St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust

• Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

• Aintree University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Liverpool Women's Hospital NHS Foundation Trust

• Royal Liverpool and Broadgreen University Hospitals NHS Trust

• Liverpool Heart and Chest NHS Foundation Trust

• Wrightingon, Wigan and Leigh NHS Foundation Trust

• Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

• Alder Hey Childrens NHS Foundation Trust

• 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

• The Walton Centre NHS Foundation Trust

• North West Ambulance NHS Trust

• NHS Business Services Authority

• NHS Litigation Authority

• NHS Pensions Agency

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

• NHS England (including NHS Midlands & Lancashire Commissioning Support Unit and NHS Arden & Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit)

In addition, the CCG has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies.  Most of these 

transactions have been with St Helens Council.
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38. Events after the end of the reporting period

39. Third party assets

The CCG held no third party assets as at 31 March 2018 (31 March 2017: nil).

40. Financial performance targets

The CCG's deficit is summarised in the following table:

£'000

Programme Allocation 324,937

Running Costs Allocation 4,192

Total Allocation 2017-18 329,129

Total Expenditure 337,769

Total Income (3,797)

Net Expenditure 2017-18 333,972

2017-18 Surplus/(Deficit) (4,843)

The CCG has a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

The CCG's performance against those duties was as follows:

2017-18 2017-18 2016-17 2016-17

Section Duty Maximum Performance Maximum Performance

£000 £000 £000 £000

223H(1)* Expenditure not to exceed income 333,131 337,974 319,756 328,483

223I(2)

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 205 205 0 0

223I(3)

Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 329,129 333,972 317,523 326,250

223J(1)

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not 

exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 0

223J(2)

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not 

exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 0

223J(3)

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed 

the amount specified in Directions 4,192 3,930 4,204 3,954

41. Impact of IFRS

Accounting under IFRS had no impact on the results of the CCG in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

42. Analysis of charitable reserves

The CCG held no charitable reserves in the financial year 2017-18 (2016-17: nil).

There are no events after the end of the reporting period that require disclosures.

The CCG met its statutory duty under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) under sections 223I(2), 223J(1), 223J(2) and 223J(3), however 

it did not meet its statutory duty under sections 223H(1) and 223I(3).

*Note: For the purposes of 223H(1); expenditure is defined as the aggregate of gross expenditure on revenue and capital in the f inancial year; and, income is 

defined as the aggregate of the notif ied maximum revenue resource, notif ied capital resource and all other amounts accounted as receiveable in the f inancial 

year (w hether under provisions of the Act or from other sources, and included here on a gross basis).


